Planning Committee
Agenda

)
iy

Reigate & Banstead
For enquiries regarding this agenda; BOROUGH COUNCIL
Contact: Democratic Services Banstead | Horley | Redhill | Reigate
Email: Democratic@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
21 April 2020
For enquiries regarding registering to speak at
Planning Committee meetings, visit our website.
To the Members of the PLANNING COMMITTEE
Councillors: D. Allcard (Chairman)
M. S. Blacker F. Kelly C. Stevens
J. S. Bray J. P. King R. S. Turner
H. Brown S. A. Kulka S. T. Walsh
P. Harp S. McKenna R. Absalom
J. Hudson R. Michalowski
Substitutes
Councillors:
Conservatives: G. Buttironi, N. C. Moses, J. Paul and K. Sachdeva
Residents’ Group: G. Adamson, R.J. Feeney, R.Harper, N.D. Harrison and
C. T. H. Whinney
Green Party: J. C. S. Essex, S. L. Fenton, R. Ritter and S. Sinden
Liberal Democrats D. A. Ross

For a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held on WEDNESDAY, 29 APRIL
2020 at 3.00 pm virtually using Webex.

John Jory
Chief Executive


http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/100/speaking_at_planning_meetings
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/100/speaking_at_planning_meetings

MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the previous
meeting.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.
ADDENDUM TO THE AGENDA

To note the addendum tabled at the meeting which provides an
update on the agenda of planning applications before the
Committee.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS:

NOTES:

1. The order in which the applications will be considered at
the meeting may be subject to change.

2. Plans are reproduced in the agenda for
reference purposes only and are not reproduced to scale.
Accordingly dimensions should not be taken from these
plans and the originals should be viewed for detailed
information. Most drawings in the agenda have been
scanned, and reproduced smaller than the original, thus
affecting image quality.

To consider the following applications :

19/02591/F SITE OF THE FORMER DE BURGH SCHOOL,
CHETWODE ROAD, TADWORTH

Reconfiguration of Area F to deliver net additional homes and
associated car and cycle parking, refuse and recycling storage,
and landscaping provision. As amended on 16/03/2020 and on
17/03/2020.

19/01488/F LAND BOUNDED BY CHEQUERS LANE AND
HURST DRIVE, WALTON ON THE HILL, SURREY

(Pages 5 - 6)

(To Be Tabled)

(Pages 7 - 36)

(Pages 37 - 110)



10.

11.

Creation of vehicular access from Chequers Lane, erection of a
two storey mansion block of 10 apartments and erection of four
houses and associated landscaping and car parking. As
amended on 19/12/2019, 22/01/2020 and on 03/02/2020.

19/02536/F LAND TO THE REAR OF 31-41 SHELVERS WAY,
TADWORTH, SURREY

Erection of 8 dwellings comprising 3 x pair of 3-bed
semidetached dwellings, and single pair of 2-bed semi-detached
dwellings along with access to Shelvers Way utilising the
approved access. As amended on 03/02/2020.

20/00162/F DEVELOPMENT SITE AT FORMER 18 BRIGHTON
ROAD, SALFORDS, SURREY

Erection of Class B1a office building, with associated landscaping
and parking.

19/02598/OUT 76, SHELVERS WAY, TADWORTH, KT20 5QF

Outline planning application (means of access and layout to be
determined at this stage with indicative scale, appearance and
landscaping) for residential development of 4 no. 4 bed detached
houses. As amended on 17/03/2020.

19/02553/F LAND ADJACENT TO THE FORMER ROYAL MAIL
DELIVERY OFFICE, REAR OF 28 HIGH STREET, BANSTEAD,
SURREY

Erection of block comprising 2 new apartments. As amended on
03/03/2020, 19/03/2020 and on 24/03/2020.

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any item(s) which, in the opinion of the Chairman,
should be considered as a matter of urgency.

(Pages 111 - 140)

(Pages 141 - 168)

(Pages 169 - 196)

(Pages 197 - 220)



Our meetings

As we would all appreciate, our meetings will be conducted in a
spirit of mutual respect and trust, working together for the
benefit of our Community and the Council, and in accordance
with our Member Code of Conduct. Courtesy will be shown to
all those taking part.

Virtual meeting

This meeting will be held virtually using Webex. Details about
how members of the public can observe this meeting will be
published on our website. A recording of the meeting will be
available on the Council’'s website shortly after the meeting. By
attending this meeting through Webex, participants are
recognising that they may be recorded and they consent to the
recording being available online for others to view.

Accessibility

The Council’s agenda and minutes are provided in English.
However, the Council also embraces its duty to anticipate the
need to provide documents in different formats, such as audio,
large print or in other languages. The Council will provide such
formats where a need is identified prior to publication or on
request. Any requests for a paper copy of the agenda and
reports must be made to Democratic Services no later than 2
working days before the meeting.

Information about registering to speak at a meeting of the
Planning Committee is available on our website.



https://reigate-banstead.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=1676
https://reigate-banstead.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=1676
mailto:democratic@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/100/speaking_at_planning_meetings

Agenda Iltem 1
Planning Committee

15 April 2020 Minutes

BOROUGH OF REIGATE AND BANSTEAD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held virtually on 15 April 2020 at 3.00 pm.

Present: Councillors D. Allcard (Chairman), M. S. Blacker (Vice-Chair), J.S. Bray,
J. Hudson, S. A.Kulka, S.McKenna, R. Michalowski, S.T.Walsh, R.Absalom,
J. C. S. Essex (Substitute) and N. D. Harrison (Substitute).

Also present: Councillors C. Neame, S. Parnall.

113. MINUTES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 March 2020 be
confirmed as a correct record.

114. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brown (substituted for by
Councillor Essex), Councillor Harp (substituted for by Councillor Harrison),
Councillor Kelly, Councillor King, Councillor Stevens and Councillor Turner.

115. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

116. ADDENDUM TO THE AGENDA
RESOLVED that the addendum be noted.

117. 19/01548/F AND 19/01549/LBC LEGAL AND GENERAL, KINGSWOOD
HOUSE, KINGSWOOD

The Committee considered an application at Legal and General, Kingswood House,
St Monicas Road, Kingswood for redevelopment of the site to create a Continuing
Care Retirement Community (Use Class C2), comprising refurbishment and
conversion of Legal & General House (Grade II* Listed) to provide 130 no. Assisted
Living Units and respite units, Assisted Living support facilities in the rotunda to
include a café, cinema/theatre and library, creche, ancillary on-site shop/store units
at lower ground floor level, a restaurant and wellness centre including refurbishment
of the existing swimming poll and car parking internally at lower ground levels,
refurbishment and conversion of St Monica’s House to provide 19 no. Assisted
Living Units, erection of new build accommodation on existing hard-
standing/parking areas to provide 131no. Assisted Living Units, creation of a new
access point from St Monica’s Road, with associated parking, landscaping and
open space, including retention of green space on land to the east.

It was supported that condition 22 of Application A — 19/01548/F be amended to
include other open fires.

It was supported that a delegated change be made to allow the Head of Planning to
improve the requirements of the sustainability strategy to accord with Policy CCF1

5



Agenda ltem 1

Planning Committee
15 April 2020 Minutes

118.

of the Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019, if this was
required.

RESOLVED that planning permission be GRANTED with conditions as per the
recommendation and amended conditions within the addendum, with additional
informative to encourage applicant to enter discussions with Surrey County Council
about providing some units as affordable extra care.

RESOLVED that listed building consent be GRANTED with conditions as per the
recommendation and amended conditions within the addendum.

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS
There was no urgent business to consider.

The Meeting closed at 5.34 pm



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F
TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
D DATE: 29t April 2020
J $ REPORT OF: HEAD OF PLANNING
N AUTHOR: James A
Reigate & Banstead omes Amoe
BOROUGH COUNCIL | TELEPHONE: | 01737 276188
e e IR | EpAlL; james.amos@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
AGENDA ITEM: 5 WARD: | Tattenham Corner and Preston
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/02591/F VALID: 20/01/2020
APPLICANT: London Square AGENT: Q Square
Developments Ltd
LOCATION: SITE OF THE FORMER DE BURGH SCHOOL, CHETWODE

ROAD, TADWORTH

DESCRIPTION: | Reconfiguration of Area F to deliver net additional homes and
associated car and cycle parking, refuse and recycling storage,
and landscaping provision.' As amended on 16/03/2020 and on
17/03/2020.

All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for
detail.

SUMMARY

This is a full planning application seeking permission for the erection of a three
storey block of 25 apartments on part of the residential redevelopment site at De
Burgh Gardens, Tadworth. Under the terms of planning permission 16/02949/F, full
planning permission was granted on the site for 229 dwellings, including 57
affordable units.

This application relates to Area F, located at the northern end of the site adjacent to
Chetwode Road, where the original application granted permission for 10 two storey
detached and semi-detached properties. It is proposed to replace these 10 houses
with a three storey block containing 25 one and two bedroom flats. The net increase
of 15 units would also make provision for an additional 4 units of affordable housing
on the larger development site.

The applicants state that the driver behind this application is a change in market
demand which means there is no longer a demand for larger three and four bed
family dwellings. They state that the provision of one and two bed dwellings is an
appropriate response to the challenging market conditions to allow for delivery of the
plots.

The design of proposed block of flats responds to the large sinkhole located on the
west of Area F. The proposed building would be L-shaped with the principle



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

elevation facing Chetwode Road, albeit set back behind the car parking court and
the amenity area. A shorter flank elevation would be located at the road front age.
The proposed building would be 3 storeys in height; this scale and massing is
considered to be appropriate given the size of site and other similar flatted blocks on
the development site. The building would be of traditional design, taking the form of
a large institutional style building and drawing elements from Surrey Arts & Crafts
style including steep pitch roof, asymmetrical gabled projections, areas of tile
hanging and render which are considered to be successful in breaking up the
elevations. The materials selection is appropriate to the area and would reinforce
local distinctiveness. The layout would also allow for the retention of a street tree, as
well as opportunities for additional planting to contribute to the visual amenity of the
site.

Whilst the proposed building would represent an increase in bulk, scale and
massing over the approved scheme for 2 storey houses, it is considered that it has
been designed successfully and in such a way that, overall, the building would
appear in keeping with the character of the area.

The layout of the development is such that separation distances in excess of 20m
would be achieved between the proposed building and neighbouring properties,
apart from the opposing buildings with a front-to-front relationship on the internal site
access road within the site where the distance is approximately 17m. This is similar
to other locations on the development site and would not result in adverse harm to
opposing properties.

A total of 34 parking spaces are proposed to serve the development, with 25
allocated spaces and 9 unallocated spaces in layby parking on Chetwode Road and
on the internal site road. This level of parking, although 4 spaces short of the
adopted standards in the DMP, is underpinned by Census data on car ownership
and by trip generation figures.

The proposed access and level of vehicular movements generated by the proposed
use is considered acceptable and would not result in a severe impact on the
highway network or highway safety in accordance with the provisions of the NPPF
(see para 109).

The proposal is not considered to give rise to any other impacts which are incapable
of being adequately mitigated through conditions.

The proposals would make effective use of a brownfield site within the urban area
and would provide for nursing care places, a need for which has been identified in
the Council’s and County Council’s own evidence, as well as in the applicant’s
submissions and would create some employment opportunities

RECOMMENDATIONS

Subject to the completion of all documentation required to create a planning
obligation under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended to secure:



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

(i) A provision of 4 dwellings for affordable housing
(i) Housing nominations protocol
(i)  The Council’s legal costs in preparing the agreement

Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions.

In the event that a satisfactorily completed obligation is not received by 15t October
2020 or such longer period as may be agreed, the Head of Places and Planning be

authorised to refuse permission for the following reason

1. The proposal fails to provide an agreed contribution of affordable housing
provision within the Borough of Reigate & Banstead and is therefore contrary

to policy CS15 of the Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014.



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

Consultations:

Highway Authority: The proposed development has been considered by the County
Highway Authority who having assessed the application on safety, capacity and
policy grounds, recommends that conditions relating to the provision of the proposed
vehicular access, the provision of the car parking areas, the provision of cycle
parking, the provision of electric vehicle charging points, the provision of a
Construction Transport Method Statement, and a revision to the approved Travel
Plan be imposed in any permission granted.

Drainage Authority: The LLFA are satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme
meets the requirements set out in the submitted documents and are content with the
development proposed, subject to their advice that, should planning permission be
granted, suitably worded conditions are applied to ensure that the SuDS Scheme is
properly implemented and maintained throughout the lifetime of the development.

Thames Water: No objections raised. Are satisfied that there is sufficient capacity in
both the surface and foul water infrastructure to accommodate the needs of the
development.

Representations:

Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 27" January 2020, a site notice was
posted 5" February 2020 and advertised in local press on 6" February 2020.
Neighbours were re-notified on the revised plans for a 14 day period commencing
18t March 2020.

61 responses have been received raising the following issues:

Issue Response
Inadequate parking See paragraph 6.19 - 6.24
No need for the development See paragraph 6.2
Noise & disturbance See paragraph 6.17
Inconvenience during construction See paragraph 6.17
Out of character with surrounding area See paragraph 6.9 - 6.13
Increase in traffic and congestion See paragraph 6.20
Hazard to highway safety See paragraph 6.19
Overdevelopment See paragraph 6.5 - 6.7
Overlooking and loss of privacy See paragraph 6.14 - 6.18
Overbearing relationship See paragraph 6.14 - 6.18
Crime fears See paragraph 6.18
Poor design See paragraph 6.8 — 6.13

10



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F
Loss of/harm to trees See paragraph 6.32
Harm to wildlife habitat See paragraph 6.32
Drainage/sewage capacity See paragraph 6.31

Harm to conservation area (the site is notina See paragraph 6.33
conservation area)

Harm to green belt/countryside (the site is not See paragraph 6.33
located within the Green Belt)
Flooding See paragraph 6.31

Property devaluation (This is not a material See paragraph 6.33
planning consideration)

No need for development / alternative location See paragraph 6.2
or proposal preferred

Impact on existing services/infrastructure See paragraph 6.30
Loss of private view (This is not a material See paragraph 6.33
planning consideration)

Support - Benefit to housing need See paragraph 6.2

1.0 Site and Character Appraisal

1.1 The application site forms part of the former De Burgh School which is in the
process of being redeveloped for a residential development of a mix of
houses and flats. The application site is located at the northern end of the
overall site and is known as Area F. It sits just to the south of Chetwode
Road and lies adjacent to Applewoods, a single storey building housing a
children's respite care facility run by Surrey County Council.

1.2 Under the terms of application 16/02949/F, planning permission was granted
for the construction of 229 dwellings together with associated car and cycle
parking, refuse and recycling storage and soft and hard landscaping
provision. That part of the site which is identified as Area F and which forms
the basis of this application contained 8 semi-detached and 2 detached two
storey dwellings, with three pairs arranged along the frontage of the site to
Chetwode Road, 2 to the rear and the detached pair located along the
internal access road within the site.

1.3  The site is sustainably located adjacent to the wider Preston Estate which
comprises mainly terraced housing and flats from the mid-twentieth century.
Chetwode Road forms the northern boundary with terraced housing and
blocks of flats on the opposite side of the road. Immediately adjacent to the
site to the south is the more recent development of De Burgh Gardens which
comprises the remaining part of the De Burgh Site, developed in 2001 and
comprising detached housing.

11



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F
1.4  Neighbouring properties are predominately two storey detached, semi-

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

detached and terraced housing with some 3 and 4 storey blocks of flats on
Chetwode Road and Hatch Gardens, with two storey houses and 3 storey
blocks of flats within the Tadworth Gardens development.

Added Value

Improvements secured at the pre-application stage: The applicants undertook
pre-application consultation with regards to a proposal to amend the form and
layout of the proposed development in 4 areas across the site. In the formal
response it was state that there was no in principle objection to an increase in
density and amendments to the approved layout. An uplift in housing
numbers would also be welcomed as part of the Council’s 5 year housing
supply. However, any modifications to the scheme need to be considered in
the context of the original scheme, such that the revised scheme continues to
have an acceptable impact with respect to design and character. Concerns
raised regarding the siting of a number of the additional flat blocks which
failed to take heed of how the original design evolved Concerns also raised
with regards to repetitive and unimaginative design of the flat blocks, largely
replicating what has already been consented on the scheme.

Advised to consider introducing new typologies to bring interest and variance
to the development and roofscape as opposed to replicating existing flat
blocks with minor changes to elevational treatments.

Concerns raised with regards to the approach taken for Areas D, E, G and
parts of F. In another part of F the applicants were advised that the
introduction of a flat block adjacent to Chetwode Road is considered
acceptable in principle. Further advice was also given with regards to open
space provision, car parking, play space, landscaping, neighbours amenity
and affordable housing.

Improvements secured during the course of the application: The application
has been amended during the course of the application to remove proposals
formerly proposed for Area D within the centre of the site which were
considered unacceptable. Further improvements have also been secured
with regard to the car parking layout for the Area F flats to present a more
sympathetic appearance to Chetwode Road and reduce the parking
dominated frontage.

Further improvements could be secured through the use of conditions and a
legal agreement to secure affordable housing provision.

12



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

Relevant Planning and Enforcement History

13/02282/0OUT - Outline consent for the erection of 180 dwellings (including
25% affordable housing) on the former De Burgh Playing Field, together with
associated parking and landscaping. Approved with conditions 23.09.2016

16/02949/F - The construction of 229 dwellings together with associated car
and cycle parking, refuse and recycling storage and soft and hard
landscaping provision. Approved with Conditions - 23.08.2017

Various conditions discharged in accordance with 16/02949/F.

16/02949/NMAMD1 — Non-material amendment: A revision of the proposed
site plan and tree protection plan to allow the addition of a substation,
variation of the parking layout for plot A19 and removal of a hawthorn tree —
Approved 19/12/2017.

17/02496/F - Temporary use of four units at plots A14 - 92 De Burgh
Gardens, A26 - 70 De Burgh Gardens, A27 - 68 De Burgh Gardens & A28 -
66 De Burgh Gardens as a marketing suite and show homes (sui generis) for
a period of 3 years and ancillary temporary car parking on plots B39 - 33 De
Burgh Gardens, B40 - 31 De Burgh Gardens & B41 - 29 De Burgh Gardens.
As amended on 03/01/2018 and on 04/01/2018 and on 08/01/2018 -
Approved 24.01.2018

18/02663/S73 - Variation of condition 1 of permission 16/02949/F allow
substitute plans showing minor design changes — Granted 25/09/2019

Proposal and Design Approach

This is a full application for the erection of a three block of 25 apartments on
part of the site of the former De Burgh School which is now being developed
for a mixed residential development of flats and houses. The block would
contain a mix of 13 x 1 bedroom flats and 12 x 2 bedroom flats. 4 additional
shared ownership units would be provided as affordable housing. At this
stage, the precise mix of affordable units has not yet been determined, but
the need from this proposal is likely to be for 2 bedroom shared ownership
units.

A total of 25 allocated parking spaces are proposed within a parking court
and to the rear of the building, with a further 9 spaces unallocated spaces in
the parking court and | layby parking off Chetwode Road and the site access
road. Areas in front of and to the rear of the block would be used for
communal amenity space. Cycle and refuse storage are located at the ground
floor level.

A design and access statement should illustrate the process that has led to

the development proposal, and justify the proposal in a structured way, by
demonstrating the steps taken to appraise the context of the proposed

13



Planning Committee
29t April 2020

4.4

4.5

5.0

5.1

development.
comprising:
Assessment;
Involvement;

Evaluation; and

Design.

Agenda Item 5

Agenda Item: 5
19/02591/F

It expects applicants to follow a four-stage design process

Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below:

Assessment

The character of the surrounding area is assessed as
including mid-twentieth century residential dwellings,
including flats and houses as well as more recent 2001
residential houses, and the new development taking place
to the south and east.

Some trees worthy of retention were identified.

Involvement

No community consultation took place for the current
proposals.

Evaluation

Other development options considered were for the
replacement of low density housing with higher density
blocks of apartments on a number of other areas on the
site, at pore-application stage and during the course of
this application. As noted above, these areas were
discounted due to concerns raised by officers and
members.

Design

The applicant’s reasons for choosing the proposal from
the available options were that it provides a more efficient
layout without detriment to the scheme.

Further details of the development are as follows:

Site area 0.28ha

Existing parking spaces 22 (+ 2 layby spaces)
Proposed parking spaces 25 (+ 8 layby spaces)
Parking standard 37

Number of affordable units 4

Net increase in dwellings 15

Existing site density 37 dpha

Proposed site density 42 dpha

Density of the surrounding area 38 dpha

Policy Context

Designation

Urban area

14




Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee
29t April 2020

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.0

6.1

Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy

CS1(Sustainable Development)

CS2 (Valued Landscapes and Natural Environment),
CS6 (Allocation of land for development),

CS10 (Sustainable Development),

CS11 (Sustainable Construction),

CS12 (Infrastructure Delivery),

CS13 (Housing Delivery)

CS14 (Housing Needs)

CS15 (Affordable Housing)

CS17 (Travel Options and accessibility)

.~ N TN~ A~

—~

Agenda Item: 5
19/02591/F

Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019

DES1 (Design of New development)
DES4 (Housing Mix)

DESS (Delivering high quality homes)
DESG6 (Affordable housing)

DESS8 (Construction Management)

TAP1 (Access, Parking and Servicing)
CCF1 (Climate Change Mitigation)

INF3 (Electronic communication networks)

Other Material Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide

Vehicle and Cycle Parking

Guidance 2018

Householder Extensions and

Alterations

Affordable Housing

Outdoor Playing Space Provision

Preston Planning Framework

Other Human Rights Act 1998
Community Infrastructure
Regulations 2010

Assessment

The principal of residential development on the site was established by the
grant of outline planning permission (ref 13/02282/OUT) in September 2016
and a detailed full permission (ref: 16/02949/F) in August 2017. The
application site is situated within the urban area where there is a presumption

15



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

in favour of sustainable development and where the principle of such
residential development is acceptable in land use terms.

The applicants have brought these proposals forward due a change in market
demand which they state, means there is no longer a demand for larger three
and four bed family dwellings. They state that the provision of one and two
bed flats would be an appropriate response to these challenging market
conditions to allow for delivery of these plots.

The applicants have also stated that the layout responds to a large sinkhole
located on the west side of Area F.

The main issues to consider are:

Density of development
Design appraisal

Neighbour amenity

Highway matters

Affordable Housing
Community Infrastructure Levy

Density of development

As approved and as is being built out on the site, the permitted scheme is for
229 homes which, over the whole site is at a density of circa 38 dwellings per
hectare (dpha). This proposal seeks to add a further 15 dwellings to the site
which would result in 244 dwellings, leading to a density across the site of 40
dpha. There would be a modest increase in floor area across the site amount
of 2.8%

Within Area F itself, the number of units would increase from 10 to 25
resulting in a higher density of development. However, the proposal is for
one and two bedroom flats to replace larger 3 and 4 bedroom houses. There
would also be an increase in floor area on this site of 286m? or 11% over the
permitted scheme of 10 houses.

This level of new development would be in keeping with the character of the
site and surrounding area and would be compliant with the Preston Planning
Framework policy of 30-50 dwellings per hectare. It is considered therefore
that there would not be any conflict with DMP Policy DES1.

Design appraisal

The proposal is in the form of a three storey ‘L’ shaped block containing 25
apartments in a mix of one and two bedroom units. The design of the
building Area F also responds to a large sinkhole which has been found
located on the western side of the application sit. The proposal not only
responds to this constraint but has also moved the majority of the height and
massing of the buildings further away from Chetwode Road, compared to the
previous planning permission, although a narrower northern elevation of the

16



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

proposed building is in a similar location to the formerly shown plots F5 and
F6. In the current scheme the frontage to this part of the building would be
softened by an area of landscaping and planting between the northern
elevation and the highway. Further details of planting and landscaping could
be secured by condition.

The scale of the proposed building is similar to other apartment blocks on the
development. The proposed block would be of a similar design to others on
development, and clearly draws inspiration from those that have already been
built, with varied roof forms and modulated elevations.

The building would be of traditional design, taking the form of a large
institutional style building and drawing elements from Surrey Arts & Crafts
style including steeply pitched roofs, symmetrical gabled projections, areas of
tile hanging and render which are considered to be successful in breaking up
the elevations. The materials selection is appropriate to the area and would
reinforce local distinctiveness. The layout would also allow for the retention of
a street tree, as well as opportunities for additional planting to contribute to
the visual amenity of the site.

The proposed layout includes parking and amenity space in front of the
building leading to a more open appearance to this part of the development.
This would provide an appropriate setting for the proposed building as well as
sufficient areas of parking and amenity space.

On this basis it is considered that a high quality design could be achieved
throughout the development and the layout, scale and appearance is
acceptable.

The proposal provides good quality homes designed to meet the Nationally
Described Space Standards. One bedroom flats would be between 48 and 50
sq.m gross internal floor area whilst two bedroom flats would be between 66
and 75 sg.m gross internal area. Each flat would also be provided with a
terrace or balcony facing south or east, together with access to the communal
amenity areas to the front and rear of the building.

Neighbour amenity

The proposed layout has been designed so as to afford acceptable levels of
amenity for existing neighbours and future occupiers of the development.
The new building would be set back from the road frontage at Chetwode
Road with good separation to the houses on the northern side of the road.
Windows in the north facing elevation, set back behind the amenity space
and car parking area would be over 45m from the south facing elevations of
properties in Chetwode Road.

Separation distances to new dwellings on the eastern side of the access road

within the site would be at least 20m, whilst the distance between the south
facing elevation of the proposed block and the rear elevations of the nearest

17



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

houses to the south would be approximately 23m. This would not be
dissimilar to other locations on the development.

The impact on the Applewood Centre has been assessed and is considered
acceptable. The separation distance between the proposed block of
apartments and Applewood is, at its closest point, no different to the
approved scheme. Furthermore, the flank elevation of the proposed block of
apartments would face the centre whereas previously, it was the rear
elevation of a pair of houses. As a result, it is considered that the proposals
would not result in a material loss of privacy and that no significant noise and
disturbance or overbearing impact would occur as a result of the proposed
development.

Objections have been received due to the loss of private views but this is not
a material planning consideration. Noise and disturbance resulting from the
development when completed would be acceptable and accord with normal
residential environments, whilst any noise resulting from construction would
be temporary and could be mitigated by condition.

Concern has been raised regarding crime fears. The applicant has confirmed
the development would meet Secure by Design standards and this could be
controlled by condition. A street lighting strategy/design has been submitted
and is subject to condition to ensure that all public areas, including car
parking courts and public amenity spaces, are adequately lit day and night. In
light of the above the application is not considered to result in increased risk
of crime.

Highway matters

Access to the parking court for the proposed block of flats would be via
Chetwode Road with a new access formed at the north-western corner of the
site. The location of the access is partly determined by the location of the
sinkhole on the site, but also maintains good separation to Applewoods. The
access is in the same location as one of the previous approved vehicle
crossovers for the dwelling on Plot F1 and is considered acceptable.

The Transport Assessment prepared by WSP for the planning application for
both Areas D and F concluded that the net uplift in vehicle movement would
not have a material impact on the surrounding highway network compared to
the consented scheme. In terms of trip generation, the proposed additional 15
units within Area F are forecast to generate an additional 9 two-way vehicle
trips in the AM peak hour and an additional 10 two-way vehicle trips in the PM
peak hour in relation to the consented scheme of 229 homes.

The access leads to a parking court containing 23 allocated spaces and 1
unallocated space. A further 2 allocated spaces are located to the rear of the
block. In addition, the plans show a further 8 layby spaces on the Chetwode
Road and internal site road frontages.

18



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F
6.22 Areas that are unchanged from the Consented Scheme of 229 homes have

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

retained the consented level of parking which complied with the adopted
Surrey Country Council Parking Standards in place at the time. The
applicants note that, as originally submitted, the revised proposal for Area F
complied with these current adopted standards for this phase. However,
during consideration of the application, changes were requested in order to
improve the character and appearance of the proposed development and
reduce the car dominated frontage that was previously shown. As a result,
the revised proposals, when applying the adopted standards to the Area F re-
plan area, show a shortfall of 4 car parking spaces. Notwithstanding this, the
parking level for this phase still exceeds the previously applied Surrey County
Council parking standards, that are applied to the remainder of the
masterplan.

In support of the current proposals, the transport consultants working of the
applicants have undertaken a review of Census car ownership data and
future year forecasts, which they state, demonstrates that the proposed
parking provision is sufficient to accommodate current and future parking
demands. Furthermore, they state that trends in mobility and driver habits
suggest that private car ownership levels are likely to decline in the long term,
and that the shortfall is considered acceptable.

The Highways Authority have commented on the application and are satisfied
that the increases in vehicle movements can be accommodated on the
highway network and it is not considered necessary to seek additional
highway improvements. In terms of car parking, the Highways Authority notes
that the proposed development would meet the minimum requirements for
one and two bed units. However, there will not be any visitor parking and
therefore there would be a shortfall of five spaces. This could be
accommodated within the development road network which is not to be
adopted. A condition is recommended for the developer to update the travel
plan to include the proposed 15 additional units.

Affordable Housing

Development Management Plan Policy DES6 applies to all types of
residential development sites including changes of use, mixed use sites that
incorporate an element of residential development, sheltered and extra care
schemes (Use Class C3), conversions and any other developments where
there is a net increase in the number of units on the site. Residential care
homes and nursing homes (Use Class C2) are not required to provide
affordable housing.

With regards to a residential scheme, Policy DES6 states that proposals which
provide 11 or more units would need to provide 30% of the units as affordable
housing.

For the consented proposal under ref: 16/02949/F, 25% of onsite affordable

housing was agreed as a suitable contribution with a 60:40 tenure split
between shared ownership and affordable rented which complies with the

19



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

Core Strategy and Preston Planning Framework affordable housing
requirement. However, Core Strategy Policy CS15 has now been
superseded by DMP Policy DES6 and is no loner relevant.

In this case, 4 additional shared ownership units are proposed to account for
the affordable provision for the re-plan of Area F. The applicants have
confirmed that the proposed affordable housing units would be provided
elsewhere on the site, specifically in Area E. These units have already been
constructed, were previously private market units but would now be re-
allocated for affordable housing. In order to ensure this provision, a section
106 agreement would need to be completed prior to the grant of planning
permission to ensure their delivery.

The overall affordable housing provision across the site would remain at 25%,
the same as in the consented scheme with an overall total of 60 units of
affordable housing to be provided. The provision in this specific case is
slightly below that required by DMP Policy DES6 but would nevertheless be
in accordance with the site Masterplan and would maintain an appropriate
balance between private and affordable housing on the larger development
site.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a fixed charge which the Council
will be collecting from some new developments from 1 April 2016. It will raise
money to help pay for a wide range of infrastructure including schools, road,
public transport and community facilities which are needed to support new
development. This development would be CIL liable and the exact amount
would be determined and collected after the grant of planning permission.

Other Issues

Concerns have been raised by third parties with regards to flooding and the
impact on drainage in the area. The site is located within Flood Zone 1
where the risk of flooding is assessed as low. The site would be linked into
the site wide drainage infrastructure which has been approved by both
Thames Water and the local drainage authority.

Concerns have been raised by third parties with regards to the impact of the
proposals on trees and ecology on the site. An existing street tree at the front
of the site is shown to be retained within the proposed development and
provided with an appropriate growing environment. This was shown to be
retained in the previous approved proposals and has been protected during
the construction process. With regards to the impact on bio-diversity, the site
has already been cleared in anticipation of development proceeding and is in
use for parking associated with the on-going development. As such the bio-
diversity interest of the site is assessed as low.

The loss of a private view and the loss of value in a property are not material
planning considerations. Third parties have raised as a concern the impact of

20



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

the proposal on the green belt and on a conservation area. It should be
noted that the site is not in the green belt nor in a conservation area.

CONDITIONS

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

Plan type Reference Version Date Received
Location Plan 1457-P-098 P1 23/12/2019
Proposed site plan 1457-P-101 P13 17/03/2020
Proposed north and 1457-P-411 P2 17/03/2020
east elevations

Proposed south and 1457-P-412 P1 17/03/2020
west elevations

Proposed Ground floor 1457-P-690 P1 17/03/2020
plan

First floor plan 1457-P-691 P1 17/03/2020
Second floor plan 1457-P-692 P1 17/03/2020
Proposed roof plan 1457-P-693 P1 17/03/2020

Reason: To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out
in accord with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning
Practice Guidance.

No development shall take place until the developer obtains the Local
Planning Authority’s written approval of details of both existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished ground floor levels of the buildings.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved levels.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details

of the proposal and its relationship with adjoining development and to
safeguard the visual amenities of the locality with regard to Reigate and
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 policy DES1.

No development shall take place above ground level until written details of
the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, including
fenestration and roof, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, and on development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

21



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details
of the proposal and its relationship with adjoining development and to
safeguard the visual amenities of the locality with regard to Reigate and
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 policy DES1.

5. No development above ground level shall commence on site until a scheme
for the landscaping of the site including the retention of existing landscape
features has been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.
Landscaping schemes shall include details of hard and soft landscaping,
including any tree removal/retention, planting plans, written specifications
(including cultivation and other operations associated with tree, shrub, and
hedge or grass establishment), schedules of plants, noting species, plant
sizes and proposed numbers/densities and an implementation and
management programme.

All hard and soft landscaping work shall be completed in full accordance with
the approved scheme, prior to occupation or within the first planting season
following completion of the development hereby approved or in accordance
with a programme agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Any trees shrubs or plants planted in accordance with this condition which
are removed, die or become damaged or become diseased within five years
of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees, shrubs
of the same size and species.

Reason: To ensure good arboricultural and landscape practice in the
interests of the maintenance of the character and appearance of the area and
to comply with Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019
policies DES1 and NHE3.

6. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management
Plan, to include details of:
(a) parking for venhicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
(f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation
(9) venhicle routing
(h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
(i) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a
commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused
(j) on-site turning for construction vehicles
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the
construction of the development.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development

should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework

22



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

10.

2019 and Policies DES1 and TAP1 Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until the
proposed vehicular access to Chetwode Road from Area F has been
constructed and provided with a means within the private land of preventing
private water from entering the highway and a means at the back edge of the
highway of preventing highway water from entering the private land and
visibility zones of 43 metres in both directions from a point 2.4 metres back
into the access from the near side carriageway edge in accordance with a
revised scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and thereafter the visibility zones shall be kept
permanently clear of any obstruction over 0.6 metres high above the ground.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead
Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans
for vehicles to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and
leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking /turning areas shall be
retained and maintained for their designated purposes.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead
Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until a
minimum of 5 of the car parking spaces have been provided with a fast
charge socket (current minimum requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2
connector - 230v AC 32 Amp single phase dedicated supply) and a further 5
of available spaces to be provided with power supply to provide additional
fast charge socket in accordance with a scheme to be submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter retained
and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17.

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approve, the previously
approved Travel Plan shall be revised to include the proposed flats and be
submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority in

23



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

11.

12.

accordance with the sustainable development aims and objectives of the
National Planning Policy Framework, Surrey County Council’s “Travel Plans
Good Practice Guide”, and in general accordance with the already approved
Travel Plan. And then the approved Travel Plan shall be implemented upon
first occupation and for each and every subsequent occupation of the
development, thereafter, maintain and develop the Travel Plan to the

satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17 (Travel
Options and Accessibility).

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until

an Energy and Water Efficiency Statement has been submitted to and

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall

detail how the development will:

a) Ensure that the potential water consumption by occupants of each new
dwelling does not exceed 110 litres per person per day

b) Achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the Dwelling Emission Rate
(DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as defined in Part L1A of the
2013 Building Regulations

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
and any measures specific to an individual dwelling(s) shall be implemented,
installed and operational prior to its occupation.

Reason: To ensure that the development supports the efficient use of
resources and minimises carbon emissions with regard to Policy CS10 of the
Reigate & Banstead Core Strategy 2014 and Policy CCF1 of the Reigate &
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

All dwellings within the development hereby approved shall be provided with

the necessary infrastructure to facilitate connection to a high speed

broadband. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning

Authority, this shall include as a minimum:

a) A broadband connection accessed directly from the nearest exchange or
cabinet

b) Cabling and associated installations which enable easy access for future
repair, replacement or upgrading.

Reason: To ensure that the development promotes access to, and the
expansion of, a high quality electronic communications network in
accordance with Policy INF3 of the Reigate & Banstead Development
Management Plan 2019.

24



Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F
INFORMATIVES

1. Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as

an integral part of new development. Further information is available at
www.firesprinklers.info.

. The applicant is advised that prior to the initial occupation of any individual

dwelling hereby permitted, to contact the Council’s Neighbourhood Services
team to confirm the number and specification of recycling and refuse bins that
are required to be supplied by the developer. The Council’s Neighbourhood
Services team can be contacted on 01737 276292 or via the Council’s website
at http://www.reigate-
banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling _and waste
developers guidance

You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be

taken during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking:

(a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be carried out
between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00hrs to 13:00hrs
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any Public and/or Bank Holidays;

(b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used on
site. Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are
necessary, they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels;

(c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) above;

(d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance
beyond the site boundary. Such uses include the use of hoses to damp
down stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate airborne dust,
to damp down during stone/slab cutting; and the use of bowsers and
wheel washes;

(e) There should be no burning on site;

(f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours stated
above; and

(g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the highway
and contractors’ vehicles should be parked with care so as not to cause
an obstruction or block visibility on the highway.

Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained from
the Council’s Environmental Health Services Unit.

In order to meet these requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the
Council recommends that this site is registered with the Considerate Constructors
Scheme - www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration.

4. The applicant is advised that the essential requirements for an acceptable

communication plan forming part of a Method of Construction Statement are
viewed as: (i) how those likely to be affected by the site's activities are
identified and how they will be informed about the project, site activities and
programme; (ii) how neighbours will be notified prior to any noisy/disruptive
work or of any significant changes to site activity that may affect them; (iii) the
arrangements that will be in place to ensure a reasonable telephone response
during working hours; (iv) the name and contact details of the site manager
who will be able to deal with complaints; and (v) how those who are interested

25


http://www.firesprinklers.info/
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration

Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

in or affected will be routinely advised regarding the progress of the work.
Registration and operation of the site to the standards set by the Considerate
Constructors Scheme (http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/) would help fulfil these
requirements.

5. The applicant is advised that the Borough Council is the street naming and
numbering authority and you will need to apply for addresses. This can be
done by contacting the Address and Gazetteer Officer prior to construction
commencing. You will need to complete the relevant application form and
upload supporting documents such as site and floor layout plans in order that
official street naming and numbering can be allocated as appropriate. If no
application is received the Council has the authority to allocate an address.
This also applies to replacement dwellings. If you are building a scheme of
more than 5 units please also supply a CAD file (back saved to 2010) of the
development based on OS Grid References. Full details of how to apply for
addresses can be found
http://www.reigatebanstead.gov.uk/info/20277/street_naming_and_numbering

6. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out
any works on the highway or any works that may affect a drainage
channel/culvert or water course. The applicant is advised that a permit and,
potentially, a Section 278 agreement must be obtained from the Highway
Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath,
carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. All works on the
highway will require a permit and an application will need to submitted to the
County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months in advance of the
intended start date, depending on the scale of the works proposed and the
classification of the road. Please see http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-
transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-traffic-management-permit-scheme.
The applicant is also advised that Consent may be required under Section 23
of the Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-
community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice.

7. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried
from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels
or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible,
to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway
surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders. (Highways Act 1980 Sections
131, 148, 149).

8. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge
developers for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of
vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any
excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage.

26


http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice

Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 5
29t April 2020 19/02591/F

REASON FOR PERMISSION

The development hereby permitted has been assessed against development plan
policies CS1, CS2, CS6, CS10, CS11, CS12, CS13, CS14, CS15, CS17, DESH1,
DES4, DES5, DES6, DES8, TAP1, CCF1, INF3 and material considerations,
including third party representations. It has been concluded that the development is
in accordance with the development plan and there are no material considerations
that justify refusal in the public interest.

Proactive and Positive Statements

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development where possible, as set out within
the National Planning Policy Framework.

27



da ltem 5
19/02591/F - Site Of Fofrar DeBurgh School,

Crown Copyright Reserved. Reigate and Banstead Borough Council. Scale 1:2,500
Licence No - 100019405-2018 o8



Agenda Iltem 5

Planning |ssue

P13

IEL-P-101

29



434t 8 by WaA Sy i s i .
s g T g o VT ol M L ol

(1T
14 8 Fem

=T
N

Agenda Item 5

l

Fiapesed Ares F Slock A Soutn Blevation

Planning Issue

Stanford Eatwell
Architecture

e Bt Chortern. Tochirsetr, sy K120 51
L Sipabn
-

1457-P-412 |

11004 A1
-
ety 2028

P1

Praposed Arel F Biock A Yae Eevaian

30



G bt ke o

Noms

1
" Pt
BT fmce A Exat Ewaisn nased

Agenda Item 5

A
O Bt Claripre, Tackwersh, Gaarny KTZ0.5H
|ormion Sauare

Planning lssue

Stanfard  Eanvell
Alcnteomin

2

Proposad Arse O Aeplan Blrvalions:
1 I

1457-P-410 ‘

Propoad Auwm O Bl & Eppl (San) Bhvilion (S B hmnca)

Pra o] Arecs D0 BGEK A WL (B ke Eleration (Bioch B harded)

=

I'Mﬂl.[.[||li||mm |

Profacdd il D Sk A Norih (Rear] Elrvaien (Block @ handed)
Propoeed A D Slean A S0uth (Front) Elvaion (Bkck B handed)

31




Zd LLp-d-iGF1

-ta

[Le I.- 1

T D W ob T U ookl

ey
TR O8] 3 el | ey

vy v M—-r=

RPN ST
llamjeg  plojuels

anss| Guuuerd

Agenda Item 5

I

(i
(il

|

| |

i iry D

| BN B PR e s e e
o onae i L
L =
.

o oy S R S i
s B it

oy

32



€d 108-d-/Sbi

E RLOR ATy
- -

n vl

(MICHARY ¥ L R RO 14" BCH) v

ay —
T G R s R U 0

| =eenssees |

Iaaeg : pronels

anss| buluue|d

Agenda Iltem 5

L0t .y
L= Eaciic) L
Ty
E
TR [ PRGN W0
LL g1 1%
Tl Ty
g g ey T
[RGB | LSaIpE SUA] Biaeg
MRS A (A - L
BLATING 0| D T SR S L3
g M)
O P B g My -
WP o s
kol Qg LT Demi ] PDRY
i M, yOSATT
D P
1% 2D e 2 I J ] s
W P S el KT
0 LUy ML MBS neng sesa
BT D S b Ly B B L
T T TR, IR AU T [
"
n
Wik e ) P T] TS AL
)
) i N0 Arirn S Al iy,
a0 faton,
B L e Sy = 00 )
Ll
=
T O N S L o]
.ﬂl.\ilxci.:.u.lllh
i
S e D WG R,
B e e T R RS
Ui SOSEE ey e
L]
B 4300 UMy (AR e [ L
PRI At e | HOEE
1 it Raot I £
B omss e famy Zd
L T L LT
== =
T ik Sl by g Ty o .
llll . e = WA U AT
e sy rm s

ol 1}

- [ :

33



Sd 009-d-/SbL
- P
] L]
- -
1 Lo
- — s Jo g S0y TN
TMEARE] ) e S v 1L B vy qww
-
y—
s TR e —
W U e TS _
I
T
= Y [F;
—!’.— by "a.hﬂ y
H - L X2) [ o
o e feds S
anss| Buiuueld 2=y
N hs —
LT L - i
O PAUNL: L DRl G e [ dea
EETI TR b b
S Yoo fiea W T WY o dww
o § ey =
Il R G @ Tkl o Ay
Dy’ ¥ o fullny O - WAy
Lumpo o
'3 Y e
MG I PR O
q mvoams ] - oy b=] wmiprm [
u b pa
Tl vy (el
oag L C
[FiGEed | Wneiped) S6AL DUTARG
TEMETC M U MR-
mureamn o furm b puen soae L)
g o
PRI I P ] e e ot
R i) W umise
P LN D TR Pty el iAoy
2 T o
v ]

Aqenda ltem 5

v
) ] st et meate T A AT
Burml mes dora i LUy

SO0 s e et mecum D =

R
-
R s AR TR Sy A Tl
-
D L g mading b

e =k
TR T ety DL T B VR
RO I
S ChE G e Y O e T P OF K G

g MOy w3 pRTR L g
BV OAE0UL WIN LA R 0T I RS v i pd
[ 31 wmy Bty o

i
2l "1 332 Mlinin | Uil B R Gl
51 w805 e |
=7 =
nw

-

L ~ P i xR ] o e ) B
Py ey

:

34




Sd §09-d-/5¥1

a1 L o]

- -
n Lyl

PR 4 UL 00 el 3 ) W

G s
MR Sy ) ey Y 8

Gk L

llahgeg : puojuels

anss| buluuelg

Agenda ltem 5

X P LA (]

UREI NS D el d
[LLoL] -=TY

I g e e @ -
L4 Ll

Gt L

T L =y

TSR] B DTS BALFOROD MH0GD, e
o ]
DG B ST APty MRSy T

Doen mpas ]
T 5 e g0t Yl B skl oy
U Wm0
k1

D L 1 WO YO

W LTI s o ) e
1 s ey Qo g
T R0 R TR TR L) D TR0 P L) W Gy
R WO LG R LD Y L 2
Tl WK WS R P B I R R T
21 MR L TE LT
== I=
.
o,
——
e e

35



Ed €29-d-L5v1

-r R

By DL LY

AN} P ] T T e WY

e g
AL P sy e g e o] g

[ ——
Pl i |

AT, ] A it
oo reanc |
AN |

RS | piojums

anss| bujuueld

Agenda Item 5

(LI - Ay

T Wy

&

T 10 T L

NET

| ey i s

Loy

G noaipsy) sk ] DU
A 1, DAPY FOE-AD

LS T BRSBTS W, b

FERE N P AL TR Heam
e K LT

AL LGN E Ty WOTDME G el ey

i e Il L T AN W,
A £{OR
S LT 0 T T ke
T T 1 B FERTHN
B N By v e 1) L

(ES0 Tl el O] i S b ]
-
) AR PR I Rl s
*

e oo
e b By
=

1l

= §1

£ & sy 1y
. - =

e ol s B e s
P A ] i B o B gy

e v e )

BT

36



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F
TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 29" April 2020
ALy REPORT OF: | HEAD OF PLANNING
Reiga & Bii’lstead AUTHOR: Hollie Marshall
BOROUGH COUNCIL | TELEPHONE: | 01737 276010
w EMAIL: Hollie.marshall@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
AGENDA ITEM: 6 WARD: | Lower Kingswood, Tadworth and Walton
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/01488/F VALID: 14.08.2019
APPLICANT: Vanderbilt Homes AGENT: Solve Planning Ltd
LOCATION: LAND BOUNDED BY CHEQUERS LANE AND HURST DRIVE
WALTON ON THE HILL
SURREY

DESCRIPTION: | Creation of vehicular access from Chequers Lane, erection of a
two storey mansion block of 10 apartments and erection of four
houses and associated landscaping and car parking. As
amended on 19/12/2019, 22/01/2020 and on 03/02/2020

All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for
detail.

SUMMARY

This is a full application for the creation of vehicular access from Chequers Lane,
the erection of a two-storey mansion block of 10 apartments and erection of four
houses and associated landscaping and car parking. A new entrance into the site is
proposed from Chequers Lane and the entrance road would head eastwards into
the site and branch north and southwards.

To the north three detached dwellings would be sited. To the eastern side of the site
is where the mansion block would be sited and to the south would be the parking
area to serve the mansion block and one further detached dwelling. The 4 dwellings
would be provided with areas of private garden spaces to the rear of these
properties.

The mansion block would have garden areas to the north and east and landscaped
areas would be provided around the parking area in the south eastern corner of the
site. A total of 38 parking spaces are proposed.

The most northern part of the site is within the Walton on the Hill Conservation Area
and the site is covered by numerous group and individual Tree Preservation Orders

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

BAN94. The site is covered by the Walton on the Hill Residential Area of Special
Character, and land to the west is designated Metropolitan Green Belt.

The apartment building would take the appearance of an Edwardian arts and crafts
style house. The dwellings around the main building have been designed to read as
ancillary structures, including coach houses, and a gate lodge. Each of these units
are individually designed however they have a cohesive character that accords with
one another and the main building proposed for the site. During the course of the
application amendments have been secured to address initial concerns raised by
the Conservation Officer and now subject to recommended conditions including
materials, landscaping and boundary details, no objection is raised by the
Conservation Officer.

During the course of the application, amendments have been sought to increase
parking space numbers whilst also increasing the number of trees to be retained.
Both these have been achieved through the submission of amended drawings and
tree protection details and subject to a recommended tree protection and
landscaping condition, no objection is raised by the Tree Officer

The proposal is not considered to result in a harmful impact upon neighbour amenity
and the County Highways Authority has raised no objection subject to
recommended conditions.

The application proposes a contribution towards offsite provision of affordable
housing. This is considered acceptable in this case given the timing of the
application’s submission. It was submitted prior to the adoption of the Council’s
Development Management Plan and, at 14 dwellings, fell below the threshold
whereby on-site affordable housing was required by the Local Plan, currently in
force at that time. It is therefore considered unreasonable to require the scheme to
be altered mid-way through its consideration to allow on-site affordable provision
and presents further difficulties both in finding a Registered Provider for the units
and their affordability. DMP Policy DES6 does allow for a contribution towards offsite
provision of affordable housing in exceptional circumstances such as this. It is
therefore considered that exceptional circumstances do exist in this instance to
justify a contribution towards offsite affordable housing provision. The initial
contribution of £270,000 put forward by the applicants was negotiated upwards by
Officers to the £340,000 now agreed.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

Subject to the completion of all documentation required to create a planning
obligation under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) to secure:

(i) The provision of a contribution of £340,000 towards offsite provision of affordable
housing;

(i) The Council’s legal costs in preparing the agreement

Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

In the event that a satisfactorily completed obligation is not received by 29t
September 2020 or such longer period as may be agreed, the Head of Places and
Planning be authorised to refuse permission for the following reason:

The proposal fails to provide an agreed affordable housing provision within the
Borough of Reigate & Banstead, and is therefore contrary to policy CS15 of the
Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 and policy DES6 of the Development
Management Plan 2019.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

Consultations:

Highway Authority: The County Highway Authority has undertaken an assessment in
terms of the likely net additional traffic generation, access arrangements and parking
provision and are satisfied that the application would not have a material impact on
the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway. The County Highway
Authority therefore has no highway requirements subject to conditions.

Conservation Officer: no objections subject to conditions.

Housing — no objection subject to affordable housing contribution

Divisional Crime Prevention Design Advisor - no objection subject to recommended
condition

Sustainable Drainage SCC — no objection subject to conditions

UK Power Networks - no comments received

Sutton and East Surrey Water Company — no comments received

Walton Village Forum - objects on the grounds of flooding, harm to Conservaiton
Area, Inadequate parking, inconvenience during construction, increase in traffic and
congestion, noise and disturbance, overdevelopment and hazard to highway safety.

Tadworth and Walton Residents Association — In principle we support this
application subject to minor changes suggested by the Conservation and Tree
Officer. Three main concerns, loss of protected trees, inadequate parking and
hazard to highway safety

Thames Water — There are public sewers crossing or close to the development.
Informatives would be added to the decision

Minerals and Waste Planning SCC - ‘In terms of minerals and waste, | know of no
nearby minerals or waste sites that would be affected (or could affect) this
development proposal; and | note the site is not within a minerals area of
search/safeguarding area. Therefore we do not have any further comments to make
on this consultation.’

Surrey Wildlife Trust — no objection subject to conditions

Representations:

Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 19" August 2019 and 23"
December 2019 , a site notice was posted 23 August 2019 and advertised in local
press on 29" August 2019.

13 responses have been received raising the following issues:

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee
29t April 2020

Agenda Item: 6
19/01488/F

Issue

Hazard to highway safety
Inadequate parking

Increase in traffic and congestion
Overdevelopment

Crime fears

Drainage/sewage capacity

Flooding

Harm to Conservation Area
Harm to Green Belt/countryside
Harm to wildlife habitat

Health fears

Inconvenience during construction
Loss of a private view

Loss of/harm to trees

Noise and disturbance

Out of character with surrounding
area

Overbearing relationship
Overlooking and loss of privacy
Overshadowing

Poor design

Property devaluation

Smells

Nearby residential developments

Alternative location/proposal
preferred

Impact on infrastructure

Response

See paragraphs 6.27 — 6.28
and conditions 6, 7 and 8

See paragraph 6.21 — 6.27
and condition 7

See paragraph 6.28 — 6.28
See paragraph 6.3 — 6.8
See paragraph 6.55

See paragraph 6.56 and
conditions 13 and 14

See paragraph 6.56 and
conditions 13 and 14

See paragraph 6.8

See paragraph 6.53

See paragraph 6.31 — 6.38
See paragraph 6.55

See paragraph 6.54

See paragraph 6.52

See paragraph 6.17 — 6.20
and conditions 11 and 12

See paragraph 6.15 - 6.16
See paragraph 6.3 — 6.8

See paragraph 6.9 - 6.15
See paragraph 6.9 - 6.15
See paragraph 6.9 - 6.15
See paragraph 6.3 — 6.8
See paragraph 6.52

See paragraph 6.52

See paragraph 6.52

See paragraph 6.52

See paragraph 6.57

1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
1.1 The site comprises a parcel of land the rear (south) of The Grange, Heath

Drive. The parcel of land extends southwards to the entrance to Hurst Drive.
The most northern part of the site is within the Walton on the Hill

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

Conservation Area and the site is covered by numerous group and individual
Tree Preservation Orders BAN94. The site is covered by the Walton on the
Hill Residential Area of Special Character, and land to the west is designated
Metropolitan Green Belt. The site is relatively well screened due to boundary
vegetation, particularly along the boundary with Chequers Lane and is
relatively flat.

The site was the garden of the Grange and was laid in 1921 by the landscape
gardener Alfred Luff of Wimbledon for Walter Scott Henderson. It included an
impressive circular rose garden and long herbaceous border with sunken
paths, both backed by Yew hedges and a rock garden at the south end.
These were all lost in the clearance works by previous owners around 2016.
The garden was known for its rhododendrons, azaleas, Japanese maples
and other shrubs. It is evident that these survive in a belt about 14 metres
wide running the length of the east boundary although are overgrown.

To the north of the site is Heath Drive and immediately to the south is Hurst
Drive. Both roads are characterised by large dwellings, individually designed
that occupy spacious plots with a dominance of landscaping. Chequers Lane
is verdant in character, particularly the western side which is bounded by
fields.

Added Value

Improvements secured at the pre-application stage: Pre-application advice
was sought a reduction in the number of units was recommended, impact on
trees to inform proposed layout and design guidance provided.

Improvements secured during the course of the application: During the
course of the application amendments to the proposed layout have been
sought to address concern over loss of trees and increase parking provision
provided,

Further improvements could be secured: Conditions regarding the use of
materials and tree protection would be added to a grant of permission.

Relevant Planning and Enforcement History

10/02095/TPO On eastern boundary of larger rear Approved with
garden Prune 1 Poplar tree by conditions
shortening back long extended 1 August 2011

branches plus as exempt work
remove dead wood from 3 Lime
trees and 1 stump Other tree works
on this site to an Oak and 13 Limes
are dealt with under a simultaneous
conservation area notification.

08/00930/TPO Within southern half of large garden Approved with
adjacent to Chequers Lane & Hurst conditions

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29th April 2020 19/01488/F
Drive Fell 1 Birch tree and Prune 8 25 June 2008

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

other trees [2 Oak, 1 Lime, 1 Beech,
1 Catalpa, 3 Douglas Firs]

Proposal and Design Approach

This is a full application for the creation of vehicular access from Chequers
Lane, the erection of a two-storey mansion block of 10 apartments and
erection of four houses and associated landscaping and car parking.

A new entrance into the site is proposed from Chequers Lane, at the
approximate centre of the western site boundary. The entrance road would
head eastwards into the site and branch north and southwards. To the north
three detached dwellings would be sited. To the eastern side of the site is
where the mansion block would be sited and to the south would be the
parking area to serve the mansion block and one further detached dwelling.

The 10 apartment mansion block would be served by 22 parking spaces, 20
for the dwellings and 2 for visitors. 10 of the parking spaces would be within 2
car ports. The total number of spaces serving the 4 detached dwellings would
be 16. This brings the total number of parking spaces for the site to 38.

The 4 dwellings would be provided with areas of private garden spaces to the
rear of these properties. The mansion block would have garden areas to the
north and east and landscaped areas would be provided around the parking
area in the south eastern corner of the site.

A design and access statement should illustrate the process that has led to
the development proposal, and justify the proposal in a structured way, by
demonstrating the steps taken to appraise the context of the proposed
development. It expects applicants to follow a four-stage design process
comprising:

Assessment;

Involvement;

Evaluation; and

Design.

Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below:

Assessment The character of the surrounding area is assessed as a
pre-Victorian village. Historical infill has occurred
throughout the preceding Victorian and Edwardian
periods with additional developments around the 30’s and
50’s. This infilling has given the village its distinct
character and appearance. Plot and dwelling sizes vary
throughout Hurst Drive and Heath Drive. However, these
are all predominantly spacious in appearance,
maintaining a visual separation between each dwelling.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc




Planning Committee

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item: 6

29t April 2020 19/01488/F
Site features meriting retention are listed as the majority
of the trees across the site.

Involvement No community consultation took place.

Evaluation The statement does not include any evidence of other
development options being considered.

Design The applicant’s reasons for choosing the proposal from
the available options were to seek to address the
comments made at pre-application stage

4.5 Further details of the development are as follows:

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

Site area

Existing use

Proposed use

Proposed parking spaces
Parking standard

Affordable housing contribution
Net increase in dwellings
Proposed site density

Density of the surrounding area

1.04 hectares

Former garden land

Residential

38

33 (minimum)

£340,000

14

13.5 dwellings per hectare
Heath Drive - 10.6 dwellings per

hectare
Wonford Close 13.3
Hurst Drive 17

Policy Context

Designation

Urban area

Residential Area of Special Character — Walton on the Hill
Tree Preservation Order — BAN94
Conservation Area — Walton on the Hill (most northern part of the site)

Reigate and Banstead Core Strateqgy

CS1(Sustainable Development)

CS4 (Valued Townscapes and Historic Environment)
CS10 (Sustainable Development),

CS11 (Sustainable Construction),

CS14 (Housing Needs)

CS15 (Affordable Housing)

Development Management Plan 2019

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc




Agenda Item 6
Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

DES1 (Design of new development)

DES2 (Residential garden land development)

DES3 (Residential Area of Special Character)

DES4 (Housing mix)

DESS (Delivering high quality homes)

DESG6 (Affordable housing)

DESS8 (Construction management)

TAP1 (Access, parking and servicing)

CCF1 (Climate change mitigation)

CCF2 (Flood risk)

NHEZ2 (Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and areas of geological
importance)

NHE3 (Protecting trees, woodland areas and natural habitats)
NHE9 (Heritage assets)

INF3 (Electronic communication networks)

54 Other Material Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide
A Parking Strategy for Surrey
Parking Standards for Development
Householder Extensions and
Alterations
Affordable Housing

Other Human Rights Act 1998
Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010

6.0 Assessment

6.1 The application site is situated within the urban area where there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and where the principle of
such residential development is acceptable in land use terms

6.2 The main issues to consider are:

Design appraisal

Neighbour amenity

Impact on trees

Highway matters

Amenity for future occupants
Housing mix

Wildlife

Infrastructure contributions

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F
o Affordable Housing
o Other matters
o Community infrastructure levy

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Design appraisal

The most northern part of application site is located within the Conservation
Area and as such any development must cause no harm to the setting of the
Conservation Area, in accordance with policy NHE9 of the Development
Management Plan (DMP). The site as a whole is within a Residential Area of
Special Character (RASC). The specific characteristics of RASCs include a
prevailing low density character, with detached buildings set back from the
road, within wide, spacious plots, and with mature soft landscaping, wide
verges and a general leafy character and any proposal should retain, protect
and enhance these characteristics as per policy DES3 of the DMP.

The application proposes the development of the site and the erection of a
block of 10 apartments and 4 detached houses. The apartment building
would take the appearance of an Edwardian arts and crafts style house. The
main building includes features such as gable roofs, handmade clay tiles,
steep roof pitches, short roof spans and limited roof accommodation.

The dwellings around the main building have been designed to read as
ancillary structures, including coach houses, and a gate lodge. Each of these
units are individually designed however they have a cohesive character that
accords with one another and the main building proposed for the site. This
design approach avoids a repetitive suburban style that would be out of
character with the surrounding area. The proposed finishing materials would
include a palette that complements local distinctiveness and the main
building. The layout avoids undue formality and rigidity, and forms a grouping
around the “main” flatted building. Subdivision of the frontages of the
detached dwellings is largely avoided so that the development reads as a
single site.

It is intended to include the outer boundaries and the consideration of the
site's impact on the setting of the Conservation Area is a material
consideration, as a small part of the site is within the Conservation Area, as
the land formerly was part of the Grange of 1905. The garden was known for
its rhododendrons, azaleas,Japanese maples and other shrubs. It is evident
that these survive in a belt about 14 metres wide running the length of the
east boundary it is considered these should be mapped and retained where
they fall within areas of garden and soft landscaping. They are in need of
management due to overgrowth from neglect and is recommended that this is
secured by way of a landscaping condition.

It is considered the laurel boundaries to Chequers Lane and the south
boundary should be retained or replanted as more typical of the Conservation
Area in this vicinity than the proposed Yew or Beech hedging. Yew tends to
occur in more formal use than a boundary hedge and Beech tends to be a
late 20th century hybrid introduction. Any scheme to show the roadside verge

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

in Chequers Lane and Hurst Drive retained outside the site, the two metre
buffer of laurel to Chequers Lane retained in communal ownership, with some
addition tree planting to the boundary. Again, this is recommended to be
secured by way of a landscaping and boundary condition.

The Conservation Officer has raised no objection to the proposal subject to
conditions regarding materials, landscaping and boundary treatments. As
such, it would be considered the proposal would cause no harm to the
character of the area and would comply with policies DES1, DES2 and DES3.

Neighbour amenity

The proposed development has been assessed with regards to its impact on
the amenity of neighbouring properties. The main building would be sited
towards the eastern part of the site with a separation distance of 20m to the
eastern side boundary of the site. The neighbouring dwelling to the east is
Cartmel Lodge, Wonford Close, and recently consent has been granted for a
new dwelling to the front of this property (19/00027/F). The rear elevation of
the apartment building would face towards the eastern boundary and the
southern part of the garden of Cartmel Lodge and the plot of the consented
dwelling would be sited. The new dwelling would be separated from the
shared boundary by between 12m to 13m.

The eastern boundary of the site is lined with mature trees that provides a
high level of screening between the two sites. The tree protection plans
submitted with the application shows that these trees are within the
application site boundary and therefore within the control of the application.
The majority of the trees are to be retained as part of the application therefore
maintaining the high level of screening between the sites. Conditions would
be attached to secure the protection of these trees and furthermore these
trees are protected by way of a Tree Preservation Order meaning any future
works to or removal of these trees would require permission.

It is acknowledged that trees may become damaged or diseased and cannot
be relied upon to provide permanent screening. However given the number of
trees along this boundary, the total loss through these causes is considered
unlikely, and the generous separation distance of approximately 32m is
considered sufficient to avoid a harmful impact upon the amenities of Cartmel
Lodge and the consented dwelling if built.

The pair of ‘coach houses’ would be separated from the northern site
boundary by between approximately 23m to 25m, and the most easterly
coach house separated to the eastern boundary by 12.7m. Given the level of
separation to neighbouring dwellings, the proposal is not considered to result
in a harmful impact upon the amenities of dwellings to the north and east of
the site. As above in paragraphs 6.10 and 6.11, the boundary trees provide
screening between the sites and condition recommended to secure tree
protection.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F
6.13 Tiburon Chequers Lane is a detached dwelling to the north of the site.

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

Directly to the south of this dwelling is the proposed ‘Gate House’. The
proposed dwelling would be sited 27.5m south of the southern boundary of
Tiburnon, with a separation distance of approximately 45m between the
dwellings. Given this level of separation, this element of the proposal is not
considered to result in a harmful impact upon the amenities of this dwelling in
terms of overbearing, domination, loss of light or privacy.

To the south east of Tiburon would one of the ‘Coach Houses’. The attached
garage of the proposed dwelling would be sited 4.5m from the south eastern
corner of the plot of Tiburnon, and the main dwelling sited approximately
10.6m from the corner of the plot. There would be separation distance of
approximately 23m between the closest points of the proposed dwelling and
Tiburnon. It is considered that given the level of separation and juxtaposition
between the two plots, this element of the proposal would not result in a
harmful impact upon the amenities of the dwelling Tiburnon.

Turning to the south east of the site is where the parking area of the
apartments would be sited. There would be a separation distance of between
11m to 13m to the eastern boundary of the site, shared with White Cottage,
Hurst Drive. A dense tree boundary exists to screen this element of the
proposal from the neighbouring dwelling and during the course of the
application, amendments have been sought to retain a higher number of
trees. Given the level of separation and level of screening, the proposal is not
considered to result in a harmful impact upon the amenities of this property in
terms of noise and disturbance or overbearing.

The site would be residential in nature and is not considered to give rise to a
harmful degree of noise and disturbance. Overall, the proposal is not
considered to result in a harmful impact upon the amenities of neighbouring
properties and complies with policy DES1, DES2 and DESS.

Impact on trees

The site is covered by a number of mature trees, many protected by way of
tree preservation orders and these make a highly valued, positive contribution
to the visual amenities of the area.

During the course of the application the Tree Officer noted the proposed
layout has been designed to have minimal impact on the root protection areas
(RPA) of the existing trees, most are part of TPO BAN 94 and therefore an
important part of the local area. However, initially concern was raised about
the short and long term impact this layout will have on the trees and ultimately
the character of the area. The short term impact is the removal of sixteen
protected trees is contrary policy NHE3 of the Reigate and Banstead
Development Management Plan 2019 and therefore is unacceptable. With
regards to the long term impact, the number parking spaces may be
adequate for the residents, but will probably be inadequate for visitors and
result in parking in any available spaces, for example underneath T785, T787
and T788, which part of G14 of the same order will result in soil compaction

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

which will prevent roots from developing and functioning leading the
premature loss of the affected trees. The distance between the guest house
and T787 is a cause of concern, part of the crown is shown to be reduced to
increase the distance between the house and tree, and this will require
regular maintenance and will have an impact on its visual amenity. Amended
plans were sought which has seen the creation of more parking spaces and
also an amendment to the layout to retain more protected trees, most notably
a beech tree near the eastern side boundary.

Following the submission of the amended drawings, further concern was
expressed, noting that in order for the car park to be constructed this will
require the levels to be lowered resulting in the loss of the existing rooting
environment which is essential for the trees survival. Additional information
was provided and the Tree Officer has made final comments:

‘The addendum reference SJA air add 19478-01 dated January 2020
addresses my concerns regarding the installation of the car park will mean
T865 and the surrounding trees will be integrated into the proposed layout.
The arboricultural report does not show the location of the underground
services and given the density of the trees and the lack of any underground
constraints that will influence the rooting morphology, this information needs
to be shown on the finalised tree protection plan to ensure the relevant
protective measures are implemented.

A condition is recommended to secure a finalised tree protection plan to be
submitted and approved prior to commencement of development.

Highway matters

The application proposes a total of 38 parking spaces (excluding tandem).
The 10 apartments would be served by 22 parking spaces that would
comprise of 2 per dwelling and 2 visitor spaces. This meets the minimum car
parking spaces required as per the DMP.

The ‘Guest House’ would be served by a detached double garage (6.5m in
width; the minimum width measurement considered to count as double
garage) and 4 parking spaces to the front of the garage, bringing the total to 6
parking spaces for this dwelling.

The ‘Gate House’ would be served by a detached garage (measuring 5.9m in
width and therefore counted as a single parking space) and 2 parking spaces
to the front, bringing the total to 3 parking spaces for this dwelling.

The ‘Coach House’ to the west would be served by an attached garage (5.9m
in width at its narrowest point and therefore counted as a single parking
space), and 2 parking spaces to the front, bringing the total to 3 parking
spaces for this dwelling.

The ‘Coach House’ to the east would be served by an attached double
garage (7.1m in width and therefore counted as 2 parking spaces) and 2

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

parking spaces to the front, bringing the total to 4 parking spaces for this
dwelling.

This gives a total of 16 parking spaces to serve the 4 dwellings which meets
the minimum requirements for residential and visitor parking spaces.

The County Highway Authority has undertaken an assessment in terms of the
likely net additional traffic generation, access arrangements and parking
provision and are satisfied that the application would not have a material
impact on the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway. They are
satisfied that adequate sightlines exist, commensurate with travel speeds
along the road. The County Highway Authority therefore has no highway
requirements subject to conditions. The conditions require the access to the
site to be constructed in accordance with the site lines as shown on the plan
numbered 1805058 SKO01 C, the parking to be constructed and electric
charge points all be provided prior to occupation. Prior to the commencement
of development, a construction transport management plan is required to be
submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

An initial request by the CHA for a condition to require a footway to be
created was retracted by the CHA, commenting: The footway on Chequers
Road site frontage is unlikely in hind sight to make the site anymore
sustainable than it currently is. The developer is proposing a footpath from
the site to Hurst Drive from where users of the site could walk to Heath Drive
and onto Howards Close where there are bus stops located. The bus service
is 800 metres from the site. The bus service has a frequency of one bus
every hour and one bus every two hours.

Amenity for future occupants

The proposed dwellings exceed the minimum internal space standards and
accord with the requirements of policy DESS5.

Housing mix

The application proposes 10 x 2 bedroom apartments and 4 x 4 bedroom
houses. Accordingly the proposal would comply with policy DES4 and would
include the provision of smaller homes.

Wildlife

The following report has been submitted in support of the application:
‘Ecological Assessment’ Land Rear of Kitlands, Chequers Lane, Walton on
the Hill, author George Clutterbuck ACIEEM, Ethos Environmental Planning,
Unit 2 The Old Estate Yard, North Stoke Lane, Upton Cheyney, Bristol BS30
6ND dated April 2019.

Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT) have been consulted upon the application and
noted in regard to bats the report appears appropriate in scope and
methodology and has demonstrated likely absence within the structures

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

6.37

6.38

subject to the current planning application. SWT therefore advise that bats do
not appear to present a constraint to the proposed development.

SWT note that the application should ensure that the proposed development
will not result in no net increase in external artificial lighting and a condition is
recommended to secure details of any proposed external lighting.

With regard to Great Crested Newts (GCN), SWT have commented the
submitted report provided no Habitat Suitability Index survey for either of the
ponds identified with a 500m buffer of the site. However, due to the
development site’s low suitability for GCN and distance from the ponds,
recommendations for precautionary working are appropriate working on the
assumption of likely presence and should be adhered to as detailed in the
above report. SWT therefore recommend that should the Council be minded
to grant permission of the proposed development that the development
proceed only in accordance with the methodology presented within paragraph
8.1.5 of the above referenced Ecological Assessment report. Where a Great
Crested Newt is identified on site, all works should cease immediately and
Natural England contact for advice as to whether a European Protected
Species Licence may be necessary in order to facilitate development lawfully.
A condition to secure the methodology would be actioned would be attached
to a grant of permission.

There is a reasonable likelihood of reptiles being present within the
development site. A condition is recommended to require the development to
only proceed in a precautionary manner that will avoid the killing or injuring of
any individual reptiles that may be identified during development as identified
in the above report.

The development site appears to host some suitable badger foraging habitat.
While the above referenced ecological report did not confirm the presence of
badger within the development site, badgers are highly mobile and excavate
new setts regularly. A condition is therefore recommended to secure that
immediately prior to the start of development works, a survey of the site by an
appropriately qualified ecologist should be undertaken, to check for any new
signs of badger sett construction on site.

This development offers opportunities to restore or enhance biodiversity and
such measures will assist the Local Authority in meeting the above obligation
and also help offset any localised harm to biodiversity caused by the
development process. Any trees that have been removed should be replaced
by replanting suitable native species replacements. A tree protection
condition and landscaping condition are recommended and include
replacement planting requirements.

A condition is also recommended to incorporate recommendations in section
8 of the above report and the following; Providing bird and bat boxes erected
on or integral within the new building as detailed above. Using native species
when planting replacement and new trees and shrubs, preferably of local
provenance from seed collected, raised and grown only in the UK, suitable for

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

6.39

6.40

6.41

6.42

6.43

6.44

site conditions and complimentary to surrounding natural habitat. Planting
should focus on nectar-rich flowers and/or berries as these can also be of
considerable value to wildlife.

be encouraged to incorporate bat roosting opportunities as integral design
features within the built development and implement the suggested
enhancements as detailed in the above report.

Affordable Housing

Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy states that the Council will negotiate to
achieve affordable housing taking account of the mix of affordable units
proposed and the overall viability of the proposed development at the time
the application is made. This Policy has been superseded by Policy DES6 of
the DMP.

Policy DES6 of the Development Management Plan states the Council will
negotiate affordable housing provision and contributions taking into account
the specifics of the site, including financial viability. Criterion (b) requires
developments providing 11 or more homes, 30% of the homes on the site
should be affordable housing. In exceptional circumstances, where it can be
robustly justified, should the Council consider it would not be suitable or
practical to provide affordable housing on site it may accept affordable
housing provided on an alternative site or as a payment in lieu.

In this instance, the planning application was submitted in August 2019 at
which time policy CS15 of the Core Strategy required a financial contribution
broadly equivalent to a provision of 20 percent affordable housing so that
affordable housing can be provided elsewhere in the borough. The
application was submitted with an undertaking to provide this.

Since this time, the Development Management Plan was adopted and the
requirements of policy DES6 are now a material consideration and require
30% of the homes on the site to be affordable housing. Given the change in
policy during the course of the application, it is not considered reasonable to
require the scheme to be retrofitted to provide on-site affordable provision
and its current form would make it difficult for a registered provider to take on
units on site or that they would be affordable to local residents.

In exceptional circumstances, policy DES6 does allow for a contribution
towards offsite provision of affordable housing. To address this, a contribution
was sought from the applicant, higher than that originally required under
policy CS15. The initially submitted contribution of £270,000 equivalent to the
Core Strategy requirement was increased to £340,000 through negotiation.

The Applicant maintains ‘at the time the application was submitted to the
Council, the relevant Affordable Housing policy in force was policy CS15 from
the adopted Core Strategy (July 2014), which, under part b), required
residential developments of between 10 and 14 net dwellings to pay a
financial contribution broadly equivalent of 20% affordable housing
(£270,000), so that affordable housing could be provided elsewhere in the

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

6.45

6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

6.50

6.51

Borough. The applicant was fully committed to pay this contribution in line
with policy.

Part way through the life of the application, the Council adopted its
Development Management Plan (26 September 2019) which set different
thresholds and standards for affordable housing provision. Policy DES6
became the relevant policy, where part b) specified that on all other
developments providing 11 or more homes, 30% of the homes on the site
should be affordable housing.

It further states that, where the Council consider it would not be suitable or
practical to provide affordable housing on site, it may accept affordable
housing provided as a payment in lieu.

It is clear that an application which transitions across two Policies
requirements is going to have significant ramifications, however we are keen
to continue to work constructively with the Council and, as such, we have
been able to increase our affordable housing contribution beyond what would
have been required under CS15, to a figure of £340,000.

Should the affordable housing contribution sought be beyond this amount, we
would need to undertake a full viability review of the schemes commercial
position, which experience suggests could likely result in an affordable
housing offering far less than the £340,000 offered.;

In this instance, it is considered reasonable to accept the raised offer made
by the Applicant as a compromise between the two policy requirements. It
also reflects the problems associated with a Registered Provider needing to
buy a mixed block of rented, shared ownership and market dwellings in a
single block with one entrance. This would require a re-design of the site with
a residential block designated for affordable housing. Also given the
extensive consultation n undertaken with the Conservation Officer and
amendments provided by the Applicant to achieve a high-quality design and
layout that compliments the RASC and setting of the Conservation Area,
further redesign would be further problematic. Amendments to the scheme to
provide a second flatted residential development is considered to be
detrimental to the design and layout proposed in this instance.

Furthermore the location and cost of the units will be challenging for future
buyers of the individual units, not only the cost of buying the units but also a
likely high service charge. Also, there are issues in attracting Registered
Providers to buy a small number of dwellings such as the four that this site
would provide.

Therefore, the proposed contribution is agreeable and the application is
recommended for approval subject to the completion of a legal agreement to
secure the affordable housing contribution.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

6.52

6.53

6.54

6.55

6.56

6.57

Other matters

Loss of a private view and property devaluation are not material planning
considerations. Objection was raised on the grounds of setting a precedent;
each application must be assessed on its own merits. The site would be in
residential use and is not considered to give rise to a harmful impact upon
amenities in regard to smells. Objection was raised on the grounds of other
residential developments in the locality and no need for the development;
each application must be assessed on its own merits.

Land beyond the Chequers Lane to the west of the site is within the
Metropolitan Green Belt designation, however the proposal is considered
significantly spaced so as to create an acceptable transition to the green belt
beyond Chequers Lane. Furthermore, there are examples of development
closer to this green belt boundary along Chequers Lane to the north and
south of the site.

Objection was raised on the grounds of inconvenience during the
construction period. Whilst it is acknowledged there may be a degree of
disruption during the construction phase, the proposal would not warrant
refusal on this basis and statutory nuisance legislation exists to control any
significant disturbance caused during the construction of the proposal. A
construction method statement would be secured by planning condition

The proposal would result in the redevelopment of garden land, new
boundary treatment is proposed and the development is not considered to
cause crime issues. No significant health issues are considered to arise as a
result of the planning application.

Objection was received on the grounds of drainage/sewage capacity. The site
is within Flood Zone 1. Surrey County Council as the Lead Local Flood
Authority have reviewed the submitted information and subject to
recommended conditions, raise no objection to the application.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a fixed charge which the Council
will be collecting from some new developments from 1 April 2016. It will raise
money to help pay for a wide range of infrastructure including schools, road,
public transport and community facilities which are needed to support new
development. This development would be CIL liable and, although the exact
amount would be determined and collected after the grant of planning
permission, an informal calculation shows a CIL liability of around £256,270.

CONDITIONS

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason:

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act

2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
Plan Type Reference Version Date Received
Street Scene 1846 080 14.08.2019
Arb / Tree Protection Plan SJA TPP 19478-042a 03.02.2020
Proposed Plans 1805058-0100-01 C 03.02.2020
Location Plan 1846_001 D 29.07.2019
Floor Plan 1846_010 p8 29.07.2019
Floor Plan 1846_011 p7 29.07.2019
Floor Plan 1846 _012 p8 29.07.2019
Roof Plan 1846 _013 p7 29.07.2019
Floor Plan 1846_020 p5 29.07.2019
Roof Plan 1846_021 p4 29.07.2019
Proposed Plans 1846 025 p3 29.07.2019
Floor Plan 1846_030 p4 29.07.2019
Floor Plan 1846_031 p4 29.07.2019
Roof Plan 1846 _032 p4 29.07.2019
Proposed Plans 1846 050 p5 29.07.2019
Proposed Plans 1846 055 p3 29.07.2019
Elevation Plan 1846_060 p2 29.07.2019
Elevation Plan 1846_065 p2 29.07.2019
Proposed Plans 1846 070 p1 29.07.2019
Proposed Plans 1846 075 p1 29.07.2019
Site Layout Plan 1846_006 p5 19.12.2019
Site Layout Plan 1846_005 p15 19.12.2019
Block Plan 1846_002 p3 19.12.2019
Landscaping Plan 855-MP-01 E 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846 015 p11 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846_016 p10 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846 017 p9 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846 _018 p8 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846 022 p8 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846_033 p6 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846 034 p6 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846_085 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 1846 052 p8 19.12.2019
Reason:

To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out in accord
with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning Practice
Guidance.

3. No development shall take place until the developer obtains the Local
Planning Authority’s written approval of details of both existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished ground floor levels of the buildings.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved levels.
Reason:

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details of the
proposal and its relationship with adjoining development and to safeguard the
visual amenities of the locality with regard to Development Management Plan
2019 policy DES1.

4. Notwithstanding the drawings, the proposed external finishing materials and
details shall be carried out using the external facing materials and details
specified below and there shall be no variation without the prior approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority;

a) The roof and tile hanging shall be of handmade sandfaced plain clay tiles.
b) All external joinery shall be of painted timber with architraved bargeboards
with no box ends.

c) All casement windows shall be of white casements and external glazing
bars of traditional profile, details of which should be submitted to and
approved in writing by the LPA before installation.

d) All fascias shall be no more than two bricks depth.

e) All footpaths and drives shall be of fixed gravel.

f) Any rooflights shall be black painted metal conservation rooflight with a
single vertical glazing bar.

g) The brick shall be sandfaced multistock brick a sample of which shall be
submitted and approved in writing by the LPA before brickwork is
commenced.

Reason:

To ensure that a satisfactory external appearance is achieved of the
development with regard to Development Management Plan policies DES1
and NHE9.

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification), no works permitted by Class A
(enlargement, improvement or other alteration of a dwellinghouse), Class B
(The enlargement of a dwellinghouse consisting of an addition or alteration to
its roof), Class C ( other alterations to the roof of a dwellinghouse), Class D
(The erection or construction of a porch outside any external door of a
dwellinghouse), Class G( The installation, alteration or replacement of a
chimney, flue or soil and vent pipe on a dwellinghouse) of Part 1 of the
Second Schedule of the 2015 Order or its successors, shall be constructed
(other than those expressly authorised by this permission) without an
application.

Reason:
To protect the visual amenities of the area in accordance with the
Development Management Plan 2019 policies DES1 and NHE9.

6. No part of the development shall be first occupied until the proposed
vehicular access to Chequers Lane has been constructed and provided with
sight lines of 2. 4 metres bac from the carriageway edge by 48 metres to the
south and by 48 metres to the north, both as shown on the plan numbered
1805058 SK01 C and tactile paving and dropped kerbs at the pedestrian
crossing points access the access and thereafter the visibility zones shall be

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6

29th April 2020 19/01488/F
kept permanently clear of any obstruction over 0.6metres high above the
ground.
Reason:

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy
TAP1 Parking, access , and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead Local
Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

7. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans
for cars to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave
the site in forward gear.

Reason:

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy
TAP1 Parking, access , and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead Local
Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

8. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management
Plan, to include details of:
(a) parking for venhicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones
(f) vehicle routing
(g) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
(h) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a
commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused
(i) on-site turning for construction vehicles
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the
construction of the development.
Reason:
The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and polices
TAP1 and DESS8 of the Development Management Plan 2019.

9. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until a
minimum of two of the available parking spaces for the flats are provided with
a fast charge socket (current minimum requirement: 7kw Mode 3 with Type 2
connector - 230 v AC 32 amp single phase dedicated supply) and a minimum
of 2 of the available parking spaces are fitted with the infrastructure to provide
fast charge sockets (current minimum requirement: 7kw Mode 3 with Type 2
connector - 230 v AC 32 amp single phase dedicated supply) in accordance
with a scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F
Reason:

10.

11.

12.

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy
TAP1 of the Development Management Plan 2019.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until
each of the proposed dwelling(s) are provided with a fast charge socket
(current minimum requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v
AC 32 Amp single phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a scheme to
be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
thereafter retained and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason:

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy
TAP1 of the Development Management Plan 2019.

No development shall commence including demolition and or groundworks
preparation until a detailed, scaled finalised Tree Protection Plan (TPP) and
the related finalized Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) is submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). These shall
include details of the specification and location of exclusion fencing, ground
protection and any construction activity that may take place within the Root
Protection Areas of trees (RPA) shown to scale on the TPP, including the
installation of service routings and location of site offices. The AMS shall also
include a pre commencement meeting, supervisory regime for their
implementation & monitoring with an agreed reporting process to the LPA.
All works shall be carried out in strict accordance with these details when
approved.

Reason:

To ensure good arboricultural practice in the interests of the maintenance of
the character and appearance of the area and to comply with British Standard
5837:2012 ‘“Trees in Relation to Design, demolition and Construction —
Recommendations’ and policies DES1 and NHE3 of the Development
Management Plan 2019.

No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the landscaping
of the site, including the retention of existing landscape features that include
the surviving arts and crafts shrubbery (historic rhododendrons, azaleas,
Japanese maples and other shrubs) in a belt approximately 14 metres wide
running the length of the east boundary and the mapping and retention where
they fall within areas of garden and soft landscaping, has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the LPA. Landscaping schemes shall include
details of hard and soft landscaping, including any tree removal/retention,
planting plans, written specifications (including cultivation and other
operations associated with tree, shrub, and hedge or grass establishment),
schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities and an implementation and management programme.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

13.

14.

All hard and soft landscaping work shall be completed in full accordance with
the approved scheme, prior to occupation or within the first planting season
following completion of the development hereby approved or in accordance
with a programme agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Any trees shrubs or plants planted in accordance with this condition which
are removed, die or become damaged or become diseased within five years
of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees, shrubs
of the same size and species.

Reason:

To ensure good arboricultural and landscape practice in the interests of the
maintenance of the character and appearance of the area and to comply with
policies NHE3, NHE9 and DES1 of the Development Management Plan
2019.

The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the
design of a surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority. The design must satisfy the
SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical
Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on SuDS. The required
drainage details shall include:

a) The results of deep bore infiltration testing completed in accordance with
BRE Digest: 365 and confirmation of groundwater levels.

b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 1 in
30 & 1 in 100 (+40% allowance for climate change) storm events and 10%
allowance for urban creep, during all stages of the development. If deep bore
infiltration is deemed unfeasible, associated discharge rates and storage
volumes shall be provided using a maximum discharge rate of 3.28 l/s/ha
applied to the proposed impermeable area.

c) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised
drainage layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe diameters,
levels, and long and cross sections of each element including details of any
flow restrictions and maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection
chambers etc.).

d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design
events or during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected.
e) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes
for the drainage system.

f) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction
and how runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be
managed before the drainage system is operational.

Reason:

To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards
for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off
site.

Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried
out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority. This must demonstrate that the drainage

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme (or detail any minor
variations), provide the details of any management company and state the
national grid reference of any key drainage elements (surface water
attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction devices and outfalls).

Reason:

To ensure the Drainage System is constructed to the National Non-Statutory
Technical Standards for SuDS.

15. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance with
the methodology presented within paragraph 8.1.5 of the Ecological
Assessment’ Land Rear of Kitlands, Chequers Lane, Walton on the Hill,
author George Clutterbuck ACIEEM, dated April 2019. Where a Great
Crested Newt is identified on site, all works should cease immediately and
Natural England contact for advice as to whether a European Protected
Species Licence may be necessary in order to facilitate development lawfully.
Reason:

To protect the important species on the site in accordance with Policy NHE2
of the Development Management Plan 2019, Natural England standing
advice and the provisions of the NPPF

16. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance with
the precautionary methods and enhancement recommendations in section 8
of the Ecological Assessment’ Land Rear of Kitlands, Chequers Lane,
Walton on the Hill, author George Clutterbuck ACIEEM, dated April 2019.
Reason:

To protect the important species on the site in accordance with Policy NHE2
of the Development Management Plan 2019, Natural England standing
advice and the provisions of the NPPF

17.  Immediately prior to the start of development works, a survey of the site by an
appropriately qualified ecologist shall be undertaken, to check for any new
signs of badger sett construction on site. Details of the badger survey and
results shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. If any badger activity is detected a suitable course of action shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority to
prevent harm to this species.

Reason:

To protect the important species on the site in accordance with Policy NHE2
of the Development Management Plan 2019, Natural England standing
advice and the provisions of the NPPF

18.  Prior to commencement of development, details of external lighting, including
proposed operating times and details of shielding to control light spill, shall be
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Planning Authority, and there
shall be no variance in external lighting other than as approved.

Reason:

In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
ensure the protection of the protected species with regard to Development
Management Plan 2019 policy NHE2 and Reigate and Banstead Core

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

19.

20.

Strategy 2014 policy CS2, the NPPF and the Natural Environment and Rural
Communities Act (2006).

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until

an Energy and Water Efficiency Statement has been submitted to and

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall

detail how the development will:

a) Ensure that the potential water consumption by occupants of each new
dwelling does not exceed 110 litres per person per day

b) Achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the Dwelling Emission Rate
(DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as defined in Part L1A of the
2013 Building Regulations

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
and any measures specific to an individual dwelling(s) shall be implemented,
installed and operational prior to its occupation.

Reason: To ensure that the development supports the efficient use of
resources and minimises carbon emissions with regard to Policy CS10 of the
Reigate & Banstead Core Strategy 2014 and Policy CCF1 of the Reigate &
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

All dwellings within the development hereby approved shall be provided with

the necessary infrastructure to facilitate connection to a high speed

broadband. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning

Authority, this shall include as a minimum:

a) A broadband connection accessed directly from the nearest exchange or
cabinet

b) Cabling and associated installations which enable easy access for future
repair, replacement or upgrading.

Reason: To ensure that the development promotes access to, and the

expansion of, a high quality electronic communications network in
accordance with Policy INF3 of the Reigate & Banstead Development
Management Plan 2019.

INFORMATIVES

1.

Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as
an integral part of new development. Further information is available at
www.firesprinklers.info.

The applicant is encouraged to provide renewable technology within the
development hereby permitted in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that this permission is subject to a legal
agreement the provisions of which should be complied with in full. A payment
of affordable housing contributions is required and there is a requirement to

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc


http://www.firesprinklers.info/

Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

notify the Council in advance of commencement of development. Payment of
£340,000 then becomes due.

On commencement of development, notice should be sent to the Planning
Authority in writing or email to planning.applications@reigate-
banstead.gov.uk advising that works have started. The sum described above
is payable within a period of 28 days from commencement of development.

The development, once started, will be monitored by my enforcement staff to
ensure compliance with the legal agreement and the conditions. Failure to
pay the agreed infrastructure contribution will result in legal action being
taken against the developer and/or owner of the land for default of the
relevant agreement.

The applicant is advised that prior to the initial occupation of any individual
dwelling hereby permitted, a 140 litre wheeled bin conforming to British
Standard BSEN840 and a 60 litre recycling box should be provided for the
exclusive use of the occupants of that dwelling. Prior to the initial occupation
of any communal dwellings or flats, wheeled refuse bins conforming to British
Standard BSEN840, separate recycling bins for paper/card and mixed cans,
and storage facilities for the bins should be installed by the developer prior to
the initial occupation of any dwelling hereby permitted. Further details on the
required number and specification of wheeled bins and recycling boxes is
available from the Council’s Neighbourhood Services on 01737 276501 or
01737 276097, or on the Council’'s website at www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk.
Bins and boxes meeting the specification may be purchased from any
appropriate source, including the Council’s Neighbourhood Services Unit on
01737 276775.

You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be
taken during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking:

(a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be carried out
between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00hrs to 13:00hrs
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any Public and/or Bank Holidays;

(b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used on
site. Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are
necessary, they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels;

(c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) above;

(d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance
beyond the site boundary. Such uses include the use of hoses to damp
down stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate airborne dust,
to damp down during stone/slab cutting; and the use of bowsers and
wheel washes;

(e) There should be no burning on site;

(f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours stated
above; and

(g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the highway
and contractors’ vehicles should be parked with care so as not to cause
an obstruction or block visibility on the highway.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc


mailto:planning.applications@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
mailto:planning.applications@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/

Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained from
the Council’s Environmental Health Services Unit.

In order to meet these requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the
Council recommends that this site is registered with the Considerate Constructors
Scheme - www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration.

6. The applicant is advised that the essential requirements for an acceptable
communication plan forming part of a Method of Construction Statement are
viewed as: (i) how those likely to be affected by the site's activities are
identified and how they will be informed about the project, site activities and
programme; (ii) how neighbours will be notified prior to any noisy/disruptive
work or of any significant changes to site activity that may affect them; (iii) the
arrangements that will be in place to ensure a reasonable telephone
response during working hours; (iv) the name and contact details of the site
manager who will be able to deal with complaints; and (v) how those who are
interested in or affected will be routinely advised regarding the progress of
the work. Registration and operation of the site to the standards set by the
Considerate Constructors Scheme (http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/) would help
fulfil these requirements

7. Any deep excavations left overnight should be provided with a ramped means
of escape and stockpiles of soft materials shall be covered overnight to
prevent badgers excavating new setts.

8. All clearance works should ideally be taken when common reptiles are likely
to be fully active i.e. during the April to September period
- Clearance of logs, brash, stones, rocks or piles of similar debris will be
undertaken carefully and by hand.
- Clearance of tall vegetation should be undertaken using a strimmer or brush
cutter with all cuttings raked and removed the same day. Cutting will only be
undertaken in a phased way which may either include:
o Cutting vegetation to a height of no less than 30mm, clearing no more than
one third of the site in anyone day or;
o Cutting vegetation over three consecutive days to a height of no less
than150mm at the first cut, 75mm at the second cut and 30mm at the third
cut
- Following removal of tall vegetation using the methods outlined above,
remaining vegetation will be maintained at a height of 30mm through regular
mowing or strimming to discourage common reptiles from returning.
- Ground clearance of any remaining low vegetation (if required) and any
ground works will only be undertaken following the works outlined above.
- Any trenches left overnight will be covered or provided with ramps to
prevent common reptiles from becoming trapped.
- Any building materials such a bricks, stone etc. will be stored on pallets to
discourage reptiles from using them as shelter. Any demolition materials will
be stored in skips or similar containers rather than in piles on ground.
- Should any common reptiles be discovered during construction, which are
likely to be effected by the development, works will cease immediately. The
developer will then seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc


http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration

Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

ecologist and works will only proceed in accordance with the advice they
provide.

Public sewers run through or close to the development site. The Applicant is
advised to contact Thames Water Risk Management Team prior to the
commencement of development; Tel: 020 3577 9483 or email:
wwgriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk and for information regarding
surface water drainage. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a
public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services is
required. More information can be found at www.thameswater.co.uk.

The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry
out any works on the highway or any works that may affect a drainage
channel/culvert or water course. The applicant is advised that a permit and,
potentially, a Section 278 agreement must be obtained from the Highway
Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath,
carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. All works on the
highway will require a permit and an application will need to submitted to the
County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months in advance of the
intended start date, depending on the scale of the works proposed and the
classification of the road. Please see http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-
transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-traffic-management-permit-scheme.

The applicant is also advised that Consent may be required under Section 23
of the Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-
and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/floodingadvice.

The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be
carried from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from
uncleaned wheels or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek,
wherever possible, to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or
repairing highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders. (Highways
Act 1980 Sections 131, 148, 149).

Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge
developers for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of
vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of
any excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage.

The applicant is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway
works required by the above condition(s), the County Highway Authority may
require necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road
markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges,
highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street
furniture/equipment.

Reason: To ensure good landscape practice in the interests of the
maintenance of the character and appearance of the area and to comply with
policies NHE3, DES1 and DES3 of the Reigate and Banstead Development

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc


mailto:wwqriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk
http://www.thameswater.co.uk/
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/floodingadvice
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/floodingadvice

Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 6
29t April 2020 19/01488/F

Management Plan 2019 and the recommendations within British Standard
5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction.

15. The development shall achieve standards contained with the Secured by
Design award scheme to be successfully granted the award.

REASON FOR PERMISSION

The development hereby permitted has been assessed against development plan
policies DES1, DES2, DES3, DES5, DES6, DES8, TAP1, CCF1, CCF2, NHEZ2,
NHE3, NHE9, INF3 and material considerations, including third party
representations. It has been concluded that the development is in accordance with
the development plan and there are no material considerations that justify refusal in
the public interest.

Proactive and Positive Statements

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development where possible, as set out within
the National Planning Policy Framework.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane.doc



Agenda Item 6

19/01488/F - Land Bounded By Chequers Lane & Hurst Drlve
Walton On The Hill ‘

= S

Cottage

a
E18ub S Gabl fcc
‘e Hoybe m
@n ath Housigath Lodg(
wood

= T64.1
. The Granf&h TERNENG "n-"-l nford Housg Lavington
‘a ]
® -

Kitlan
—
uro H| O
o] b
nipe!
g'| Cranford Canhon Ho!
oxeth Falr Win
M
Am ‘V G}
ard
D Chatel 4
SdutfrHat Uffcot
shdy allo 0
|:'I] |:
ley D¢
1 o O
SGemer 0 n Lodge
o
t Cott D
dor Cottage Damory
quers Cormer
riwood Houg
i i
@ thersi
\/ riegda & - Moor Cry
Lands Vie - R Sle rfield
eyrmou

Chdckmate = ﬁ
. Thlckbﬂ or Edg
ethany |0

an uillins

O

NV 167. Heathcroft /6.5m

&0

tecks Mead

Crown Copyright Reserved. Reigate and Banstead Borough Council. Scale 1:2,500
Licence No - 100019405-2018

66



-

g leigE wa e By ag e

mz_ 500 9781 -
SSUWOH “__b_uﬁcm.)_ — q_|:|L_uﬁ : E N

x BIBAAY DN MY HE ue|d Bus pasodosg SpUepy 18 puET

R L1D3r0dd

LN

S1O3LIHOYYV e
3INssi >v._<z_§_._m_mn_

R
1adn: Txrlld i
L335Ls Ayyeno dFIE M ¥ ,:_Lu_ H

i

AED4INTD

e

Agenda Item 6

67



r _ ml
- Owo @qw —. SUDIeAI3
oW a5 3Tw0S "

niy YIGWNN INIMYED Joans pasadaoly SPUEL 18 puET SOWOH Ipguapuep
: . S | ] | L

3711 R = s INFIND wes ar il ol a9 [u} B EE af MIAgnY A2:

v 4 L 4 8 R A e s e T

e ) D T Y DRSS 0 P ey sk e aia® Ty AT e 4 ST
o A o B 5 P £ T R kit

3NSSI AYYNIAIMIYA

- DY W 3 R G
- v (s e

B T s bl e VA

ROSTSILVIZOSIY - E1AT ST LIIHOEY

LIGL0E EATID ANE NS L4EECA w._u.>l—

GEGAUINDT  LI34L5 A5ev0 J%3IH MivlNROd mT__..

UOKIRAS |3 J231]5 FUR) u._a-.-—n‘w:u

sbriiey

U
3
g

UDIlEAE|E (BAILS FALIP 151Ny

Agenda Item

veyd a1t




AITIAAET T [0 AT ) Dot A gy 7 d

p1d 50079781
naE FAEATE DN ue|4 311§ pasodold SpUBIEY 1€ PueT SBWOH H__.Ewn.cm.> | £ i 0.2 L ETY e -

Ex
TIfode

S1I3LIHIYY SRR R S
3NSSI AGYNINIIZYd

a1

a40291in9

Aeyts Riparnin
g ot e

Agenda Item 6

69



__.A_ 900 9¥81

d39WNN SRIMysd

fw B 0UscL 31928

pue Buijieq pascdosy SIUIOH JIQI2pUBA,

SPUED 38 puE]

-

dagdurning

Agenda Iltem 6

Buvea sousin [ |
Bujued 3Bpe wen D
Burype, 2 i) ton \prod D

Burired | 1Un 3sney yaeo) j

Bunpieg #snoy isang E

(pasano3)
Dupyed 0|8 uoisuey

Buppeq oo vopeny [ |

Wy Bupytey

WO S31¥I00559-37140
L9910E EFpLD) .
LIIYLS AHHYAD

S1J31IHIYV

OwiH N YLINNO4 IHL

L LN Eal W3 oape Shaes By kg pd
TN ATERL n INTNESTAY AT
T PREANT A A E 2 7 B1oBie LR P o o ey

T AT o I B VO 13 LR by g e
o i, i g 0 ENTA L T A3 Frhe P o e e -
e VAo s T P O A Uk e ey AR O A e

nssi >x<Z__>__._mxn_

M FOH

ST N

70



10150 ridge

Agenda ltem 6

==\

|1 B T' I:l |1 i

Wl'i
] |r| I l|n||'l
]M

E T
i |u M‘H[

1‘.|

71

! | (T
MM
TiaIT j
]
I 'i ' !
b3
Tl
=t | K |
|
bl i
f \'W"'lll
l:!]i | | ||i
L
||}

front (east) elevation

TeE FOUNTA W HEAD DUAIERY 3TRIET GCUILDFORD
GUL Uy 1453 01661

SURREY

ARC.HITECTS Ly TLE-ASSOLIATES £k

Lytle

e
e

o Tt b 11 Lo

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

by b el L e 15wk R

= .
i 3 e O ni A P e, P

i a i Skl s ok D) ey MBS 0] B2 7oL e o Sl 1S40 A TR

Cilpre meme o v, v

g s R

Aarizn

PRI

TEmT
Vanderbilt Homes

Proposed Front (East)

Elevation

REW

P1}

MUMBER

1846_015

IMG

DR A

Land at Kitlands

FoooTnn o A%

SA L

Chamrey STacs Mlbeabons



10150 ridge

T

Agenda ltem 6

1

j 1“ i"r 1 | 1||“| lll "h

." ! "
: il

3150
R v

|".;|

I |||]

| |‘h|r,

u “ |
|
i” Ll I |

rear (west) elevation

T

H: FOUNTA N HEAD OQUARRY $TRZET GUILDFORD

SURREY

ARCHITECTS i1

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

01453 305EGI

GU* Uy
LE-A580C1ATES COh

Lytle

=
o
-
=
=)
=
1
ES
=
L4
-
a
=
-
g
-
]
o
[~
o
L
v
o &
- S
-l e
= .
L)
k)
c
i)
=
St
7
| ®
s}
o =
3 -]
—
L
@
£
=]
T
=]
£
)
e
| ™
o >
z
&
-
ke
@
(=]
o
o
i
=
(o]
o

Eack dpes Mg,

p19

1846_016

Elevation



'6d 21079v81

uoness|y
Alu HIFWTM BHIMYas {ynaoN) spig pasodoud SpUey e puel SBLUOH 1GIapuUes t @ D0, 3TWDL
EREE 210 3 L * [
FHELT ITEIRE] ¢ : I ]

D w3l rakdrsid-41148"
193L0s EL4FID Lt 16 LIMHOY

Qyo4d70® 1z3ELd Ardw D QYWIH MIYINAOS THL

S1J31IHJYWYV

AT

uoljeas|a (yydou) apis

= e

7=
abipus psToT




Agenda ltem 6

i ' mmlnmmrmnumnw

I

IR

i | ulunmmmmmnm

i 'uumm :!»muw

74

side {south) elevation

SURREY  GLN zU
ARCHITECTS wTiLE-253221ATES COL

Lytle

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

e
G b sz
Ty oAaE

Proposed Side (SouthY  chawiso womeen qkv

Land at Kitlands

Vanderbilt Homes

vOAMFRME RS Y
=] Py dhcs BeBliar

1846_018

tion

leva

E

P8



Agenda Item 6

------
LY B
il

ridge

9150

m
ﬂHIHIIIF;H

A

............

i

4 —_— =i
—

N EE=E|([A

| =

N —
sz

Tidge

9150
=

75

rear (north) elevation

front (south) elevation

RIFT  GUILDFORD

RAY 5T

aqua

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

M AE4l
oyt

TH: FOUKTA

SURRE

¥ Oraky I0MER]

Ey 13 E
Ly TLE-a%50CIATE: Dk

ARCHITECTS

Lytle

TITLE

Land at Kittands

TEW

WMUMBER

1846_022

Proposed Front and Rear e xwiue

Elavations

Vanderbilt Homes

TCALE T 00 @ a3

P,

Guest House



9150 ridge

=l

Agenda Item 6

L
.mmmummum

pATIIIY

76

side (west) elevation

side {east) elevation

CUAIRY sTRZET  GUIIDFORD

rTAIN HEAD

LE-A8SECIATES Canl

- THE FOU

ARCHITECTS «vr1

Lytle

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

e
[T
N ET LY

Proposed Side Elevations oaswinG nUMeLs

Guest House

Land at Kitlandls

Vanderbilt Homes

SCALE 1:100 @ Az

P35,

1846_023



Agenda ltem 6

.1rr|irrnii|ii mmmmmm

r'l 1]| \:‘

|
| |
" | T
M | d-i'l | i
i sttt o= i ”‘Ii V| ]1 ]‘['h ||
A
I::| HLSH 'I :
il o

x>
‘l““ ”'i a o0
1|'||\ = T
-
l 27k
26

li|
I' ||

l‘lli ri

[
I
|
I
|
|
|
|
|
l (!
itIne |
‘ |
! ey =
| (AR D
T
| [ Nt 1o
i
| l' [l 'I11 | W
| i it i
a i [ ey o I h
Il Ii 11 U il = | ! )
I u :'li! fi A | n I | %
| AL | 5 R
| N i HURAI) 1 .1_ A
! k. (i e = L i It Ii'
: I ikl ::".: Al ; : X T
-'i)
| [ | |
| | | | |
| 1 | | |
I t 1 I
I | |

1 l

elev

ront

<
B
3

'”

il mn

| | TR

.|.n

Unit 1 side eleva

Lytle

Coach House Linit 1

Elevations

pgl

Land at Kidands

Vanderbilt Homes

1846033



Agenda ltem 6

llllllll

[
-------
............

| ’)i. | Hi |
N 5 | nuu

IIIIIIIIIIII

Amma

T
Ly
=l

¢ HM

lllllllllllllllllll

mi IM

---------

VNHHIIMIIIIUH

umumlllmiml

|

Lz

At w

i | |!|i| |£ n

"I 1 il E“ il =
b e 'I‘

__Mllll_m» o
m[ , | M“ r% :[ ﬂm ' |
'|IUIMIMHIJIUINWHHWHII!I [BJW | 1l

1 l illll
]
| |mm
N
’ [|mm
i
) am
N e
A i [
i 1]
. |i=
|

il
| =sr’)|||J
: Il ===
| i il E===
: Jl R i |,i[ I'I il
l I
| |
) g | c
.I_'"D.I > hl R [zl

ach House Unit
roposed Elevations

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

1846034 p6



9825 ridg:

e e e e e e, B R e e e s e, B S R e, e T T, o [ i

5825 ridge
R, e T N e S L i

In

5859 fil

vl

5850 ff
Ay

3000

v

150 M
v SR

B

|:} i{‘

-

3000 A

Agenda Item 6

rear elavation

front elevation

G825 ridge

o

~
(o]

tside elevation

h’"M

l!“'i .Fjl

side elevation

= THE FOUMTAIN HEAD QUARRY STREET  GUILDFORD

= CYRREY S JY LY G1483 INTALT

AF'QI:HI"TE[.‘TS LYTLE-ASSCCIATES DOk

Lytle

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

- O O BT A bt W 1 o 1AL BN
T

PROJECT

Lm

anderbilt Homes

DRAWING MUMEBER

Gate Lodge -

Land af Kitflands

SCALE 0100 @ A3

e

P8,

1846_052

Proposed Elevations



" seo ovsl

uonead;
hzd IR SMimvdd aiuesul sps pasodalg SPUE[LY 18 pue] SIWOH PgIIpusp ¥ D 0571 3T¥ IS
I L I L I )
ERET 12371084 IRETRE wiosL bo§0 e _
WO S ID058Y-3T0147 m._.om.:In_xd .
I801L0% E2FI0  A0E LD x3aunt . >
Jd 049712 133dLs abd¥10  J¥IH MIVIMNAOGY IHL 7 45 m.—H I—

.
1

Agenda Item 6

UOIlEBA3|? 20UBJIUSB 3118

~

L AL LD da L)
FLuC a3HD AE ININOHINY _..um
3 T
e e 141 B
Tt BT L ¢ b 5 A T Al [T 2 i £ e
T W e ) b
TR R P A A R P R 3 L 8 b L P e b S T

3NSSI AUYNINIMIN



'a 100798l -

i Sy 5 G |qJ2pu
14 YIARNN ONIMYEd B4 Uo/1eI0 PUELD 18 pue] s H Y 1QIPPUEA
37114 3013 i) 0

133{0Ye IN3

O3 §3ILYVI3055Y-31141 S1Q3LIHOYY

LEFLAE ERFLD MAE LAD  ATHENS : m._u.>l_

JIFHLE AGHWID AWk MIWLINACS 3HL

G40437iNS
ZEHEZPO0L

Age&da ltem 6

N= | |

1

L L o] W E¥ = papumwny a
ER Y >3 M2 ad ITMznesgon ade

b e e ol

e i B TR T b 02 bt B Lo L 1 T M 0

_____

JBQINY 39U3DT PRAIPSSI Sjubu 1Y 8102 WBuAdoD umosn Aaning 3auBUPIO

81



2d 200 98! 1

A3y YIGWNE ON Mvya ue|d 3201 pasodolg SPUBDy 18 pueT SIUIDH JIGJapuea EY. D 087l A0S o 0 o o o 2¢
) 1 I 1 I 1 L
ERFEN 123r0dd I ETR wos at 0 ElwG *3AHT ad IMIMQHIRE A3
. . | AL P M l!?lin—nh.w““whbulwm(.\.“
NUD'SILFIODSSY-21L4" S1OILIHOHY B Pt e g4 B e o
. e ot o e oo e R L e T S L

19919€ E9p10 ANE 1ANS LIWdNg P . >
THO4GUND LIFYLS Ad¥¥NZ  dVIH MIvLMAQd4 JHL DT Vo d wdu J

180 WNY BIUSD|T PEAISEEI 14 1% "R IDE 1uBuddon umosn SAINS SIUEURID




1

T SHRN SN AT ue|4 ang pasodoly spuUepy 18 pue SO JIQIRKUEA : _ m«_ 2 n.; - _m:_ 5 ,. | oo = € My LEgEUN RO o Ak 5
ERFIR! EEICEE ICERE w5 b 8l 5 =y TR aie: A e
oS e e :

e e

3NSSI ASYNIAIIIYd

Te e

R i .m:.w,_mt.j S10311HJYV
teEM iy LEELL SEL ATedTE
et W > q_.,:q.z_:_ou"_ ER - m.—u.>l—

G4:GTAE 0 1134y ArEVNID avs

Hryds Aipgria
g5 X Wiy

DAL KM O AU

Agenda Item 6

Bupnnging

83



°d 90079v8] st

¥ ©® 00571 31V¥DS

AEY wigman sriwvyo pue Buiied pasodosy spuepny 12 pueT SOWIOH JIGIPUBA P —— P
T 1 T 1 I 1 —] L
31111 L¥3rrde LNEITD e 0o 4 ol 5 [E] R R A PRGN TAT A
At e S s o 1 ] a8
ML s2Leo08sy 3Ll SIJ3LIHOYY O e ¢ by ety A S b > o L 0
VEOL0E FEFLD AME LD A3HHNS PSS > e ey e YAy’ t e
JdF4dTI0% 144dLF vayw1 > J¥3IH MITINGOS JHL Fal by - wd“ J m:mm- >m<2_§ I—W“Q
SO0y g

aruq) jsing

Agenda Iltem 6

Buppea sousa [
Buppey 2Bpor a1e9 [
Burgeeg 7 ) ssno o3 [

fiunyed | Puf #sN0H Yoeas m

Bupites #snoH 159n0) u e — ——

Buapiea yoorg uosuen [ ]

kay Buryreg

AT SNt

84



8d 0L079v8L o

€V @ 00L:L 3IVDS

AT HIBROAN SRS 00 PUNQIG pRsodond SPLBI 18 pue SWOH WaIRPUEA _ 7 _ i @
3n 123704d INTILY Wt F i ] o TLvE 3w ==
O3 SALYIDossY-23LAT7 §133LIHOYY e . s b it s i
199108 £3¥13 AN LD KAdECS > P e SNt P e M 2 EAS o4 PR 1 PRB L0 23 LEWEm 4 8o e | 0 o1 o 1nd P
Qg 02300 13341y AHARND dudH RITLNNTGL IR mdﬂ. |— m:mm_ >M{Z_—>__|_MN_&

uejd Joo|y punoltb

Agenda Item 6

__E
[
lﬂ

M 0001/,W 0°¢6 © +10d
M SZLL, WSOl € lod
A SE0L/,W 096 : 2 10/d
A SPOL/w 046 - L Jord

(@AM V1D

85



7d LL07ov8L oo

hEH HIAWNM SNIMYYQ cm_.u ._0.0_u_ u_.m.__u_ _ommoaoha mtcm_—_v_ e pueq S2UOH H__bgw_ur_m\, £V @ 00Lil 37¥D5S
I L I 1 I 1
: R F e EETE T LNFITD ur 3 L < i
MO2SILVIISESY 11147 S1OTLIHAYY
PROL0E FREI0 AT E LT AJEHMS g pey o e e
QaOd0TIaD L3Z2dLs addvn0 A¥:H MI¥_ &0 JHL SRS - w._ I—

Agenda Iltem 6

| TR

m;ﬁm: H '; o 'rr]

[TITIN

~

1 L ] B R ]
IV MY aF INIMANINGG ARE
oyl W W i B i A e kﬂ_g\n[ar WA
R b 1 L o 1o T O 125 0 ST by 1 R M e
—I B g B LR T eI S (PPN Y v P g el it bt 1 T o

INSsi >m_<2_2_._m_~_a

ue|d so00)4 18414

A 0001/, 0'€6 : g 30)d
M STLL/W S0l - 2 30|d
M SE0L/,W 096 9 101d
M §86/;W 516 1 10d

W YD

86



'ed ZL07ov8|

LR

gARMAN ST ED J00]{ PuoIBs pasodolg

uoIsue A

wed

spuepy Je pue

SALOH Y QISPUEA

£y @ Jo0L 3Tvwas

= 1 I

qyo4a1inge

Agenda Item 6

FQ2 8310100553104
AJ¥ans

19910t E3FI0
133els Add¥nD

ANE NG

OWaH MIwLYNOd

e 8

iHL

1237044

S1331LIHOHY

M7

ATETRIE g

E-L T

£l ] L]

LT b

-

Ll

wd o 2MIME

SRZNIMILT AdY

.!.i!aﬂ.ﬂﬂ:?ﬁlt—i.ﬁ.
i all

e 1) AR | Ut T b LT

INSSI AYVNIW

ue|d Jo0|} pPuodas

_ N SR
|1/ L
{ 4
It Aoy ! e oF
e I ) Lo 7 uooupag
foi01s >
/ = samousq| [T B =
\J _5 | el g8Lx
oL C 8D L fieH Al e
............... y
€ e Y Y
oy -
2 wy
M
-
L= T

A 0621/,W 0'02L - 01 toid
M O0LpL/WoLEL s 610d

(BHW VD

e}

dd

87



7d cL07ov81

ueid |00y pasodoiy

spuepni e pue

S3WICH 1IQIIpUEA

~

) sobiiygmyy g

S133LIHOYYV

i

1

Agenda Item 6

Rt WAL A1 DS B TR 200 DA p A i BT

- AL 35U i AP E VAT AR DAL nE o Lt
| e s, -

INSSI AYYNIAMTI

ue(d jool

L]

88



Agenda Item 6

rml"
||]| 1‘!

1
1 1
1 |
. : .
H | : '.
1] ]
g £l g | £ |
- w
Sy ) anl R

89

Ry

P19

1846_015

CraWING LUMBEZR

TH: FOUNTa M HEADR  OUARRY ~TREET GCUILOFORD

SURBEY  GuUl Fuy  DidEd I81EGSH
Ly TLE-ASEOCIATES 00k

Proposed Front (East)

Elevation

ARCHITECTS
Lang at Kitlands

PEQECT

Lytle

Vanderbilt Homes

CLIERT

DR @ Al

AL

[ =

front {(east}) elevation

AAEMD R EY "

e o et s Ao ur g e am O
1 a1 T & KAV EENEIYE 0 VI e e =
1t S i

A A A Sy A T s 8 A s g s 8 e 1 e e A AL A
o A8 e # PP e u maey " way b
Ak Comwesweniah

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

RE



10150 ridge

Agenda ltem 6

[

> —————§

N
T

=

| [
'.: 1‘“ | |“ m:‘ t

[H] !"

rear {west) elevation

THE FOUNTAIN HFAD  OUARPY STREET GSUILDFORD

SLREEY  GLY 30y 0D 483 3C1écn

ARCHITECTS v

i HTE

T

T,

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

e
I e g A Sy R S A G ] P4 R

Dl et

v i
L St Ol

TLE ASSOCIATES SO

Lytle

PROIECT

CLIEMT

AMEMENENT

Proposed Rear (West)

Elevation

REV

CRAMN NG MUMEZR

Langd at Kitlands

Yanderbilt Homes

REY

SCALE 1:100 & A3

p%_

1846_016



'sd 71079v81

L] HIgwiny DMifydd

uoeAs|y
{4UON]} BPIS pasodold

spUE[Iy 18 pue

SBWOH 1IqURpUEA

~

PO SLTi0EsT - 2TLAT
Ladlus £2v10 AR IS L3d4dANS

Ad040751F  L44dLly AdHENd  U¥WIH M TLNNOd THL

121{0dd

SLI3LIHDOYV

i

La3ind

$ BN

by B o000 3TY0S A | wharpaan 5
I il ; D 1 L

el 12 i 2 3 o Bpve 1] REdinin e Adk
AT
et s A1 ¢ e T A s 3
ST bty e 2 B T e g Sk B St e O S
P DA R S0, T U e T ke R L pe- i

anssi >m_42__2_._m_mn_

dolieaa|a (Yidou) 2apis

abpu 05101

— B -



Agenda ltem 6

| AR I HH

llﬂ" INHI Hﬁ

Iﬂl’m“

92

side (south) elevation

- . SURREY  Sul 5Ly Q14
ARCHITECTS Lv7L0-A350CIATES, CON

Lytle

Aiard b

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

FrnA B g e W gy B Y s Y B S, W T e
ien Sir Bt <l

H I
293¢ o
[
o] =i

Proposed Side {South})  DrowinG HUWEER R

Land at Kitlands

Vanderbilt Hornes

1846_018

Elevation

pﬂ



= = SSAOH 159n0) 1
m Q ONO Oww —‘ sueld 100l 35414
T @ QUL 31Tas 0w LI TR |

A3d dIGWNON DHImsYd UB PUnOIS asodos SPUBY 1€ pUBET SAWOH J1I045puUe
H i | g —1 L
STl 13105 IREF S g r L] g 5 o TE ERE ] ' LNZACNANY AdY
WOD s3LeIo0ssy 37147 §133LIHOHY T A B e e et Y e s e :
LOILOE FRFLY AME LND AJdENS > rapincecsian A tapomi iy o ey 1S T A g g gt —
QE0ICTINS 134417 AYEYND  d¥IH N YLNAQY THL m.—H I— JNSS| AYYNINITIEC

ue(d Joo|} puncib

ue|d 100} 1511}

Agenda Item 6

93



Yd |20 9pgl

35N0H 15anD)

A3y YIAANN ONIMY YL wed jooy pasodoly spuepy 1e puet SBWOH Jllgsapuep YV 900 1Y IS
L23rged N3 2 _.—”m h m m “ .m
SLO3LIHAYY
. M

Agenda Iltem 6

~

41w vy ltougy 1
—_
ENR N

33 1HD X =hFNIWIRY AJY

e i

oy szt S R B b Y
e e S

o S I o s

RN MTIA AT ¥ b,
R e =y a1 Ll i Erasm L (o b i PO A AU 3, [VEPU T B8 e

ANSSI AJVNINITI™d

Y S02Z/,W 0'S0Z © (/W) V1D ue|d joo0.

oa — —_—
- =

00| ——

\

N

-
—.-f A
N
111

94



Agenda: ltem 6

9150 ridge

=

=

&

B =25

Ry ——
I

150 ridge

rear (north) elevation

front (south) elevation

pra%3 301

SURREY  GU ILY
ARCHITECTS (vTebE-AssaclATES. SO

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

Lytle

e

LY ARG TR R T T |
I

s

e

=4 1 i
v Eat v cEeunaan S

P7,

1846_022

Proposed Front and Rear o rew:nc JUMEFR

Elevations
Guest House

Land at Kitlandis

Vanderbilt Homes




9150 rid
iz

4150 ridge

Agenda ltem 6

R

96

||Ii|' I
S
mﬂh'u
il ||

| |-.|
il

!

side {west) elevation

side {(east) elevation

THE FOURTAIN HEAD CUAIRY =TRZET GUILDFORD

© SURREY &L Tuw G452 In1an!

ARCHITECTS

LYTLE-ASSQCLATES COH

Lytle

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

T TeE

FROLCECT

] Sey
1

REW

Proposed Side Elevations crawite numeeR

(Guest House

Land at Kitlands

Vanderbilt Homes

ERY 1 3

o] 1
—

SCALE 10100 @ Az

oF

[l Prgmany s

P4

1846_023



7087

8

Elevation B

Elevation A

Proposed Roof Plan

Agenda Item 6

F087
v

Area for Refuse and

Cycle Store

Ground Floor Plan

fevation D

Elevation C

)
P
i)
ol
7]
1
!
-
e
=
b
e
=
<
e
L
TE
=4
o)
N
Toe
e
STz
=)
=T
=
[
w Yy
e
[P
T35
= =
L
[l
[
L
-
X
(W)
X
-

Lytle

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

FRO)DC

Froposed Guest House
Garage Elevations

Vanderbilt Haomes

REV

DRAWING NUMBER

_and at Kitlands

COMLE 00 e s

2N

5 [+

p-j

1846_025



vd 0goTovel

SUE|4 JDOJ] punuo
LR 380N 9N T D pRsOdold SSN0H YyoeoD)

SPUEnEy je puen

S3WOH J[IqIspuep

WO S3Le120889- 31041
L9910: e4FLd AAE LND  A3dans
J4040700F  L13ZYLS A¥YYAD  QAWIH MIYLNNOL FHL

e H|
ity ] p—

Agenda Iltem 6

L3231 0d4

SL1J33LIHJYV

a1

21015 a2in
PUR S5nyY 10} ey

ICEIRE]

L Hun
35uenu

LI e L ]

q

RACOY pes RERUDY

ILYG FHIHD A9

bt VA a2

LRAASMANY AN

L B L L T2 T L BT e T 1 L8 B B IR

VP AT (TR L Eurilh gy i o £ o 8 e Iy L Wit o o o 5 e 5 e

Py TR P S [l s o

brus
fhyue;

T b At et | TG (T o MPRAL WAL B o b

ANSSI AYVYNINITIAd

Mbs gpzL Fwbs ZLL - Z N
Hbs i)/ wbsagp - | wun

'sealy A|qeas 1oo]4 punoiD

uejd 100} punoip

20015 A
pue ssnyay 10y eaay

98



_WQ _\ mo1®.vm —. SUB|g JOCI4 35414

A GIswn 96 My s PRSOdold PSNOH YIeo)

v @ 0011 3T¥23

-

B e, AKBLARY gt

SALIOH JIqIapueA

spuery 1e puet

FTL

W21 SILvID0597-13L0A°
1E9.0F EdFL0 0 ANE NS AddHEAS
ayo+4alinge 134415 A9 Avad MIYiHMGd THI

Ty
‘sua

woolpaq

H = _ /_\\ Ja1seul

Burssaup

N

wa /N

Agenda ltem 6

LINIFWANZAY AZ2

o TR IR P A AN M 1 AR o B

m._.um_.m._Io.w_d.

iNnssi >w_<Z__>__._mMn_

ybs 0| /wbs 26 -2 Hun
3bs 526 / wibs a8 - | nun

‘SE2Ny 2|QE3S() 10014 1541y

ve|d 100|) 15114

£ paq zpeg =

99




vd 2c07ovel R

Add HAAWNMH NIy EY @ 00l =%
WY HG h._m.(__c.___m._n_ o5N0oH ﬁ.umOU SPUEIY 1B puUeq STUOH JIQlepues, | ' ; b : w V= ._ L e @ do cwpy e AERE pd
3T L BT ) NI wig F £ & L 0 Idwd AR 3] INiran: A 83
Q1P Ty A 1k B

TIDTIIALYINAESY 2107 GUAFLIIHOEY - Fim K345t el et ] 4L e 2 e
4. ¥ ot T a1 eyt b £ g o e & o« e Lot o 3 17

PROLGE £4FI0 ADNE LND AFdENS P SRR ATV bl

020401189 14:41% n9a¥il0  UviH N vlaiiod 1F] Do e 125D Y w.—u_>l_
aNss

i
,ﬂ !
I ybs srzz /wbs 5oz - 2 un

ybs sope Jwbs 25| - L wun

o

sealy aqesn ool 0L (=

ue|d jooy

Agenda ltem6

== = I||J‘ ‘
= ‘. ,.
’ ‘
—— = =
=— = | == |
= i ,
r|._;



"w i ]‘
‘“L“ ;h i l“lh

. Hlllﬂl'lllﬂll

Agenda Item 6

i
“W‘]

n i
1]! !EF i 1' l“ 1'| m

i :

! ’ h ’I l'[HM |=

f"-‘ii'.
.....

E 2"‘._
= ov
; cie

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

Vanderbilt Homes

Coach Hou

Land at Kitlands

1346 053

pS,

Elevations



Agenda Item 6

Unit2 front elevation A

Sy
—

AN e AR LTS SURREY GU EREY:
ARCHITECTS L¥"LE-ASSOCIATLS.COW

HITHE

Land 3t Kitlands

Py

Coach House Unit 2

Vande rbilt Homes

1846 034

Proposed Elevations



sd 0o ov8l

YIFWAN DMIMYHT

pasodoid abpo aieq

mr_m_n_ hDO_n‘
spuepy 1e puel

SAUOH JIqIspueA

£y ® 0011 37¥DS

q49437119

Agenda Item 6

L1243 AddwWna

:oumw:_uuwm«.m.:im._.m_m:__._umq
L931UE LEFLY AN TND  ATHYCS . o
AwaH MIVLYNQ: IFL B

ER FEF L123{0H4

L .2

W @ooul Twos £0

ue|d jooy pasodold

ubs 1£12 / whs et

m

a7

I ELRIE

s v t ¢ L 1

O OLL IS
20

uRlg 10013 Jsa1y pasodoig

hs L0gL / wbs g6
Ry JOO0|] 181

s oy iy, wcTry

it oy e T

Dunaa w3 Dumaieg Gomimey

L B IL £ ) i
— 1 ¢71 d13H AE f
PN Uy AR
Wi IR LTI R A T s TR g
HNH&N:J VL s T e it et et o
INSSI AYVYNIWITIY
wom v
ueld JoO}4 punoug pasodolg
ybs ot/ whs S0
281y JOD{{ PUNCID)
g ——————. ' ”
\ w9 :
—

- 0
Buiay . ] it

L] | vew = dpmas

|

_.=- s =n
“au Bnus I
_ ﬁ _ o 7 4 Hpwey |
= A - __
=7 ! —
_.— Agn
i
I usyony Bup -__
3% _
i -
.41 ||||| o -
_ _
I I] —__
I —
— |
==




:
_ e

9825

r

Agenda Iltem 6

rear elevation

,i'--i‘.
|-
i

front elevation

T ”’““"11M1|mmmﬂ

104

____________ Il = i
gtesgiiiing o It
m | = ]

: i

..... le =

_________ : |

@ L ?
L= o s
M) A
_
| e
| & i
E | < 5
8| =i
| = §i
| — i
w3
x
oo i

LeTLE-ASS0CIATES COra

SIPRRFY

ARCHITECTS

Lytle - DT OC THE FOUNTA N HEAD CUAERY STREET  CLIIDFORD
. d -4 W8 % GUT zuY 01483 4

side elevation

EER

1846 052

Gate Lodge -
Proposed Elevations

Land at Kitlands

Vanderbilt Homes

TCA_E 42102 A

LA *

P/,



6730
=

2250 A=
=z o

L=l

Elevation A

A730
=
2250
=7

Proposed Roof Plan

Elevation B

Agenda Item 6

Araa for Refuse and

Cycle Store

|

.
.

Elavation D Ground Floor Plan

Elevation C

+ THE FOLMTAIN HEAD  OQU&3IRY STREFT  SUILDFORD
(<R RTA Cl4£3 3018&1

=" LUYRREY

ARCHH ITECTS LYTLE-ASSSCIATES COM

Lytle

P

ilom furtlat w . ru. AL Pun e, sy (T B i BEC P2 VR

i v

o At P A

F Lt I
FARReTIRT e

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

o kR
PR v

FRFLTYE YENTRCYT LAY Ve
iy
PR Ay ST

it p ol

SEORECT

Em

Ry

Land at Kitlands Gate Lodge - DRAWING NUMBFR

Vanderbilt Homes

L2519

e

g Ampngitdd Folkan’a Clanl Cammanis

P3

1846_055

Proposed Garage

Elevatians



%d 090798l

SudNeaa|q
HzH HIAWAN THIMY 4] _uuwoanzn_ L HO(d 1e7) SPUE|IY 1o pueq SAWOH J|IGISPURA S¥ @ LO0LTL AT DE
ERE 121°CH e CEIRE _h_m : h ] “

WO 230w 00585%9-371140
L2308 §9b:0 AT .08 AJHETE

QY2 40MND L2341 AHgwnD

Agenda Iltem 6

QFIH MIYLMAOd THL

D

S1331IHJ3dY

i

[T

SLRICE

L+

Wt euns by 7o

Bl

)

D 3

i ST 4 LA T N 5 AL 1 23 e 0
- BIN] N h  0 t # mty ey e
e e e

s v B £

31 Tt i b o P e, PR R e 4

m_Dmm_ >«_<2=>__._m_xa

106



d 907orgl

Agenda Item 6

SUOIIeA3[]
Asd AIBWOM SMIMTHG UmmOQohn_ 2 Hog e SpUE(lY 1€ pueq SaLLOH 1IJapues, ;
R [EE RN = EN3INTZ £
PO T SILMIO0LSY o dilAT S10311HDYY
159 0: $5%L0 AME TS AZYENG
JYCEONGG 130 LiuenD OF3aM M FINADS THL wﬂ“>4
‘quol
S i Ly

~

D

Iy

=

R Ay

a

o et TP TS Br BB T, AR ey o

Ve, e A L e Tty

0TTs

1} st ST ' E

419 11

107



"d 0079781

SAUUOH YlGIBpues

€V @ 00L:L 31¥DS
I

LER] MIAWAH SMIMYY] = Y181 m_u>u _uumoao_a SPUEIN 1B pueT
] L ]
3L L34 LMD LG 3 i
- WO 83 Lvis0ssy-31.41 S1IJLIHAYMY >
L9910: §871L0 #NE LND A3dens . o s 3o g w.—u. I—

Q40407 NS i3:4L05 Laygwno

O¥IH MIYIiNMO04 IHL .

Agenda Iltem 6

=

. L swom Y o lesuay 0
0 TLND vDasD E FMININY
3o 1 05 o B e
i owenlco oh
T Truing W Ly ) phcasrdadd ded 1 B3 61 LA b Rl el IV TR T
e o LGN e YERTT A
Uit e o o A L £ it mana B

ue|d jooy

INSSI AAYNIN 1IN

Dy

ue|d 1004 puUnoIn

]

an—

-y

hnl.| £82s IL

108



3500

Roof Plan

Ground Floor Plan

Agenda Item 6

Y

109

n14p3 141861

THE FOURTAIN HEAD QUARAY STRZET GUIIDFORD
13 ]
ARCHITECTS LyTuiE-aSsOCIATES 2w

Lytle

PRELIMINARY ISSUE

D i
.
KEY AMAERT

TITLE

CLIEMT

Proposed Refuse Store prawinG nUMAZR

Land &t Kitlands

Yanderbilt Homes

P1,

1846_075



This page is intentionally left blank

110



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th April 2020 19/02536/F
TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 29/04/2020
; REPORT OF: HEAD OF PLANNING
e AUTHOR: Matthew Sheahan
Reigate & Banstead
BOROUGH COUNCIL | TELEPHONE: | 01737 276514
S e LY | EMAIL: Matthew.sheahan@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
AGENDA ITEM: 7 WARD: | Lower Kingswood Tadworth And Walton
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/02536/F VALID: 06/01/2020
APPLICANT: Devine Homes PLC AGENT:
LOCATION: LAND TO THE REAR OF 31-41 SHELVERS WAY TADWORTH

SURREY KT20 5QJ

DESCRIPTION: | Erection of 8 dwellings comprising 3 x pair of 3-bed semi-
detached dwellings, and single pair of 2-bed semi-detached
dwellings along with access to Shelvers Way utilising the
approved access. As amended on 03/02/2020.

All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for
detail.

SUMMARY

The application relates to a backland site within the urban area towards the eastern
end of Shelvers Way, a residential thoroughfare composed mainly of properties
fronting the road. The site is to the west of (and is a continuation of) land to the rear
of 1-7 Shelvers Way, which has the benefit of planning permission for 6 dwellings,
now completed (17/00016/S73 following allowing of appeal under ref.15/02752/F);
and to the rear of 9-17 for 4 dwellings (17/02097/F) involving an elongation of the
access drive. Permission was granted for a further 6 dwellings to the west of these
(18/01134/F).

The application is for 8 dwellings consisting of 3 pairs of 3 bed dwellings and a
single pair of 2 bedroom dwellings, designed to be of a style, scale and layout
similar to the approved schemes to the east.

The proposal would provide a layout and a scale of development with similar house
designs and opportunity for landscaping consistent with the approved developments
as identified above. The Inspector, in determining the appeal on application
15/02752/F, concluded in that case that whilst “The two detached and four semi-
detached dwellings would occupy smaller plots than is characteristic along the south
side of Shelvers Way and the spacing between the four building blocks would be
less generous. However in the context of a new group of buildings that would be

111



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

seen primarily from within the development, rather than in association with the
Shelvers Way street scene, the plot sizes and the spacing between the buildings
would not be unusual for this type of development: they would not result in an
unduly cramped form of development.” With regard to the layout and landscaping
the Inspector concluded also that: “The width of the corridor for the access road and
the overall layout in front of the houses would create opportunities for additional
landscaping despite the relatively small spaces of differing sizes and shapes directly
in front of each house.”

The proposal represents an acceptable continuation of the approved schemes within
the established context described above. In light of this and the similar residential
impacts on amenity and privacy with neighbouring houses to that already
considered to be consistent with policy and approved it is concluded that this
proposal would provide a suitable residential environment and not be harmful to the
local character or amenity of neighbouring properties.

As regards intensification of use of the access onto Shelvers Way that this proposal
would result in, the impact on the highway network has been the subject of survey
analysis and close review by SCC as the County Highway Authority (CHA). The
CHA is satisfied that the access is safe and suitable to accommodate the cumulative
traffic that would be generated by the current proposal and the development already
approved and, in the case of the dwellings to the rear of nos. 1-7,
completed/occupied. The development would exceed the level of parking space
provision required by the Councils adopted parking standards.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions.

112



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

Consultations:

Highway Authority: The County Highway Authority has undertaken an assessment in
terms of the likely net additional traffic generation, access arrangements and parking
provision and are satisfied that the application would not have a material impact on
the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway. The County Highway
Authority therefore has no highway requirements subject to conditions. This is
discussed in greater detail in paragraphs 6.1-6.26.

SES Water: No objection raised. Informative to be attached.

Southern Gas Network: No objection raised. Informative to be attached.

Tadworth and Walton Residents Association: Comments summarised as follows:

Concern has been raised regarding the increased level of vehicular traffic that would
be generated and the safety implications of this on the operation of the highway
network, particularly on the A217 junction, and considering other similar
development sites on Shelvers Way and the resultant cumulative impact.

Further concern that the internal road network and turning head are inadequate to
allow access for refuse vehicles and that the level of parking within the site is
insufficient, resulting in additional overspill parking on to Shelvers Way, causing
further highway safety concerns.

The overall loss of trees is considered to be unacceptable. It is the view that should
the development be granted there would be future pressure to prune or remove
remaining trees.

The scheme is considered to be a cramped form of overdevelopment. It has also
been questioned whether an affordable housing contribution cannot be obtained
given earlier development phases without such a contribution having been made.

Representations:
Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 13" January 2020. A site noticed

was posted in the 31t January 2020. A total of 9 responses have been received
raising the following issues:

Overdevelopment See paragraph 6.3-6.4
Overlooking and loss of privacy See paragraph 6.8-6.11
No need for the development See paragraph 6.3-6.4
Loss of/ harm to trees See paragraph 6.18
Loss of private view See paragraph 6.12
Hazard to highway safety See paragraph 6.19-6.26
Inadequate parking See paragraph 6.19-6.26
Increased traffic congestion See paragraph 6.19-6.26

113



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7

29th. April 2020 19/02536/F

Poor access See paragraph 6.19-6.26

Conflict with a covenant See paragraph 6.15

Property values See paragraph 6.15

Crime fears See paragraph 6.16

Inconvenience during construction See paragraph 6.16

Increased Noise and disturbance See paragraph 6.13

Harm to Conservation See paragraph 6.14

Harm to Green Belt See paragraph 6.14

1.0 Site and Character Appraisal

1.1 The application site has an area of 0.46ha is on the south side of Shelvers
Way approaching its eastern end, near the junction with the A217 (Brighton
Road) dual carriageway in a predominantly residential neighbourhood
approximately 1.7 km to the south east of Tattenham Corner Local Shopping
Centre and approximately 1km to the east of Shelvers Way Local Shopping
to the west. The site sits adjacent to the site of the approved development of
6 dwellings to the east, beyond which lies the site four houses to the rear of
9-17 Shelvers Way (ref. 17/02097/F) which are yet to be constructed and, to
the east of that, six houses on the demolished Stanton Lodge and to the rear
of 1-7 Shelvers Way, which have been completed (ref. 17/00016/S73)
following the grant of planning permission on appeal, Ref: 15/02752/F. The
current proposal would be served by an extension of the access drive serving
the development to the rear of nos. 1-29.

1.2  Shelvers Way is generally typified by semi-detached dwellings set to the front
of quite narrow yet very deep plots with very generous rear gardens.
Properties are typical of 1930s-50s suburbia.

2.0 Added Value

2.1 Improvements secured at the pre-application stage: The applicant did not
approach the Council for pre-application advice prior to the submission of the
current planning application.

2.2 Improvements secured during the course of the application: None.

2.3  Further improvements could be secured: Improvements to the scheme could
be secured by way of suitably worded conditions.

3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
The following list of applications are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

3.1 15/02752/F 6 dwellings, Stanton Lodge and r/o Refused

1-7 Shelvers Way 31 March 2016

114



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

Appeal allowed
14 November 2016

16/01437/F 5 dwellings, Stanton Lodge and r/o Refused
1-7 Shelvers Way 1 September 2016

Appeal allowed

28 December 2016

17/00016/S73 6 dwellings, Stanton Lodge and r/o Granted
1-7 Shelvers Way 1 March 2017
17/02097/F Erection of 4 dwellings comprising 2 Granted 21
x 4 bedroom detached dwelling, and December 2017

1 x pair of semi detached dwellings,
along with access to Shelvers Way
utilising the approved access from
17/00016/S73, and all associated
landscaping, and ancillary work. As
amended on 06/12/2017

Proposal and Design Approach

This is a full application for the construction of four pairs of semi-detached
dwellings, to the south side of Shelvers Way in Tadworth, to the rear of
numbers 31-41. The development would comprise 3 pairs of 3 bedroom semi-
detached dwellings and a single pair of 2 bedroom semi-detached dwellings.
They would each have the appearance of a large single dwelling and would
be approximately 8.8m in height, covering a width of 17m. Each would have a
traditional appearance, having been designed with shallow sloping hipped
roofs and pitched roof gables projecting from the principal elevation.
Traditional materials would be utilised in the form of plain tiles and brickwork
of a tawny colour palette typical of the vernacular. Elements of architectural
detail would feature to the gables in the form of timber bargeboard and ridge
detail.

Externally each property would be provided with a rear garden approximately
11m in depth, with small area of garden and landscaping to the front. Plots
would be divided by 1.8m high close boarded timber fence. Each dwelling
would be provided with two parking spaces to the front with the potential to
utilise a garage as an additional space. Two visitor parking spaces would site
on the opposite side of the extended access road, parallel to plots 6 and 7,
with additional strip of new soft landscaping beyond, separating the proposed
development from the donor properties beyond.

A design and access statement should illustrate the process that has led to
the development proposal, and justify the proposal in a structured way, by
demonstrating the steps taken to appraise the context of the proposed
development. It expects applicants to follow a four-stage design process
comprising:

Assessment;

115



Planning Committee
29th April 2020

4.4

4.5

Involvement;
Evaluation; and
Design.

Agenda Iltem 7

Agenda Item: 7
19/02536/F

Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below:

Assessment

The design and access statement submitted in support of
the application identifies the surrounding area as being
characterised by residential development comprising a
mix of detached and semi-detached suburban houses.
The land to the north of the site is identified as being
within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The site is identified
as being in close proximity shops and services are
located in the Kingswood and Tadworth areas, which also
provide access to a number of public transport links,
including various bus routes as well as Kingswood and
Tadworth Railway Stations.

No site features worthy of retention were identified.

Involvement

No community consultation is intimated as having taken
place.

Evaluation

It is not indicated that alternative development options
have been considered.

Design

The design, form and scale of the proposed dwellings has
been informed by the character of the surrounding area,
which comprises a mix of detached and semi-detached
dwellings of varying, yet traditional, 1930s-50s suburban
character. This includes the recently approved residential
development to the east of the application site. The
development would consist of dwellings that would be two
storey height with pitched roofs. They would utilise
traditional materials of facing brickwork, render, plain tiles
with elements of timber weatherboarding. The level of
amenity space and size of plot has been informed by
consented development to the east which.

Further details of the development are as follows:

Site area

Site Density
Existing Use
Proposed Use

0.46 hectares
27.5d.p.h

C3 Residential
C3 Residential

Proposed parking spaces 24

Parking standard

2 car parking spaces per dwelling

116




Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th. April 2020 19/02536/F
5.0 Policy Context
5.1 Designation
Urban area
5.2 Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
CS1(Sustainable Development)
CS10 (Sustainable Development),
5.3 Reigate & Banstead Development Management Plan 2019
Design DES1 DES2 DES5 DESS8
Access and Parking TAP1
Natural and Historic Environment NHE2 NHE3
5.4  Other Material Considerations
National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide
A Parking Strategy for Surrey
Parking Standards for Development
Other Human Rights Act 1998
Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010
6.0 Assessment
6.1  The application seeks permission for the erection of 8 dwellings consisting of
3 x pairs of 3 bed semi-detached dwellings, and a single pair of 2 bed semi-
detached dwellings.
6.2 The main issues to consider are:

Design and Impact on the character of the area;
Amenity of future occupiers;

Impact on neighbouring amenity;

Trees and Landscaping;

Highway Impact, Access and parking;

CIL

Affordable Housing

117



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

6.3

6.4

Design and Character

The properties have been designed to reflect the style that is typical of the
1930s-1950s suburban dwellings found in northern part of the borough and
carry on the design approach of the development permitted and under
construction. They would be of a scale that is typical of the immediate
surrounding area in terms of height, having been informed by both existing
properties along Shelvers Way, as well as the previously approved
development phases to the east. The design would also be a continuation of
the approved development in terms of the roof forms, overall scale, materials
and architectural detailing. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 8 dwellings
proposed would be quite similar in terms of their appearance, they would
differ in certain respects, most noticeably the front gables, which would utilise
varying shades of either brick work or hanging tile, which would add enough
visual interest within the street scene to be deemed acceptable. The
extension of the existing arrangement is not considered to give rise to any
further harm to established character and would be no more apparent or
prominent than the development permitted previously. By virtue of being a
longer cul-de-sac, there would be a change to character but this would be
contained.

It is not considered that the scheme would constitute a cramped form of
development when considering the principle established to the east and is of
comparable density. The level of space around each property and to the side
boundaries of the development site would be acceptable and again
comparable to the other recently approved schemes. It would be appropriate
to examine the appeal decision relating to application no. 18/00082/F,
replacement of detached house with pair of semi-detached houses on plot 2,
immediately to the west of the application site. The inspector had the
following to say about how successful the appeal proposal was in respecting
local distinctiveness.

“...the proposal would be read as part of a newly formed street scene, which
has a character distinctively different to that of Shelvers Way. Indeed, due to
the limited intervisibility there would be no material harm to the local
distinctiveness of Shelvers Way...The scale and design of the proposed
dwellings would be similar to that approved for plots 1, 4 and 5 and would not
therefore appear out of place. The spacing between dwellings would also be
comparable to that approved and would not give rise to a cramped,
overdevelopment of the site...”. The inspector also commented on the matter
of a car parking dominated frontage and how this compared with other
recently approved development in the vicinity, as follows.

“...the approved parking arrangement for the completed six dwelling scheme
includes double width parking in front of three of the dwelling, with tandem
parking in front of another. It would not therefore be an unusual arrangement
in this context. Indeed, the arrangement would be very similar to that at plots
1 and 2, which are positioned in a much more prominent and sensitive
location at the entrance to the new development...”.

The present proposal does have side by side frontage/tandem parking but the
impact of this on the street is comparable to existing parking arrangements in

118



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

the neighbourhood, as identified by the appeal inspector, and the presence of
amenity space featuring a TPO tree elsewhere along the frontage.

Amenity of future occupiers

It is a fundamental objective of planning policy and stated within the National
Planning Policy Framework that we provide high quality housing that is well
designed and built to a high standard. The advice is amplified further by
policies DES2 and DES5 of the Development Management Plan, which
requires developments to demonstrate that dwellings have been designed to
ensure that a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants
and meet the minimum relevant nationally described space standards and be
arranged to ensure that habitable rooms are arranged to have an acceptable
outlook and where possible receive direct sunlight.

Nationally Described Space Standards require a two storey 3 bedroom
dwelling to provide a minimum of 102 sqg. metres of internal floor area. All
eight of the proposed dwellings would more than exceed this requirement.
Each of the bedrooms would be of an acceptable size, two of which would be
south facing, with windows appropriately placed to ensure each would be
provided with an acceptable level of sunlight/ daylight as well as a reasonable
outlook. Each property would have a rear garden of acceptable size that
would be consistent with neighbouring properties in the development.

The development is considered to comply with Policy DESS of the
Development Management Plan 2019 with regard to ensuring the provision of
high quality homes for future occupants.

Impact on neighbouring residential amenity

As has been noted, the traditional pattern of existing development on
Shelvers way has been typified by long rear gardens. Given this feature and
the separation distances therefore between existing properties and the
proposal which are comparable to the development which has been built to
the rear of 1-7 Shelvers Way, it is unlikely that harm to neighbouring
residential amenities would occur as regards overlooking, overshadowing or
overbearing effect.

The proposed dwellings would be sited in excess of 45m from the donor
properties to the north. Whilst the dwellings would feature front facing
windows serving the master bedrooms the separation distance would be
more than sufficient to ensure the relationship does not result in undue
overlooking/ loss of privacy, particularly to the rear gardens of these
properties. It is proposed to incorporate a strip of landscaping to the northern
part of the application site, which would serve to provide screening between
the proposed dwellings and these properties.

Number 43 Shelvers Way to the west of the site features an outbuilding along
the very rear boundary of the plot, which is used for ancillary purposes to the

119



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

main dwelling. The garage of plot 8 would be sited approximately 1m from the
shared boundary between the two plots; however the main bulk of the
proposed dwelling would be in excess of 4.5m from the neighbours’
outbuilding. Whilst the presence of the new dwelling would result in a change
in the relationship between the two properties, it is not considered that the
scale of the dwelling would be sufficiently overbearing in nature to warrant
refusal.

The proposed dwellings have been sited in such a way as to avoid undue
impact on each other. Whilst there would be some overlooking of rear
gardens afforded from rear bedroom windows, this would not be untypical of
such an arrangement.

Objection has been made on the grounds that the development would result
in a poor outlook and loss of view for neighbouring properties, including to the
rear. Whilst there are properties located to the south, unlike the first
development of the site which abutted woodland, these are a significant
distance away such that no har to amenity would arise. It is recognised that
the development would result in change, but it is not considered that this
would be materially harmful as the proposed dwellings would be a sufficient
distance away from neighbouring properties to not impact on outlook. It is
also the case that a ‘right to a view’ is not a material planning consideration in
the assessment of a planning application.

Regarding inconvenience and increased noise and disturbance during
construction, whilst it is accepted that this can be an issue for residents, it is a
temporary impact, rather than being capable of a reason for refusal. Statutory
noise legislation is in place to deal with excessive noise levels. A condition
requiring the submission and approval of a construction transport
management plan would be included on any grant of permission.

Regarding objection on the grounds of harm to a Conservation Area, the site
is not located within such designated areas. The site is also not within the
Metropolitan Green Belt, though it is acknowledged that the development site
is adjacent to the Green Belt.

As regards to concern about impact on property values, this is not a material
planning consideration that can be taken in to account. With regard to the
development being in conflict with a covenant, this is not a material planning
consideration that can be taken in to account.

Any concern around crime fears would be a police matter. It is also not the
view that such a development would give rise to health issues.

On balance it is considered that the proposed development would not give
rise to a sufficient level of harm to neighbouring residential amenity to warrant
refusal on this basis. The proposal would therefore comply with policy DES1
of the Development Management Plan 2019.

120



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

Trees and Landscaping

To the south, beyond the application site, is a wooded area of dense tree
cover, all of which are protected by a group tree preservation order. It is noted
that a number of non-protected trees have been pre-emptively felled, which is
unfortunate. However the proposed development would provide opportunity
for a landscape scheme to be implemented along the northern boundary of
the site. In the event of permission being granted conditions requiring the
submission of both a finalised tree protection plan and full landscaping details
to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of development. Subject to compliance with these conditions
the development would be acceptable with regard to tree matters, in
accordance with Policy NHE3 of the Development Management Plan 2019.

Highway Impact, Access and Parking

The County Highway Authority (CHA) has been consulted on the application
and acknowledges that historically a large number of objections have been
raised by local residents and the Tadworth & Walton Residents Association
(TWRA) in relation to the proposed developments that have been submitted
during the past few years, particularly in terms of its impact upon traffic
congestion, highway safety, and on street parking. However, the CHA has
reached a different conclusion in terms of the severity of the impact of the
development on the local highway network. The CHA has addressed the
main highway concerns below.

The National Planning Policy Framework states that development should only
be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative
impacts of development are "severe". The CHA acknowledges that the
current proposed development of six three bed units and two x two bed units
on top of the approved six dwellings to the rear of 19-29 Shelvers Way ,
together with the permitted development of 4 dwellings to the rear of 9 to 17
Shelvers Way and 6 dwellings on land to the rear of 1-7 Shelvers Way, would
have a cumulative impact in terms of increasing the number of vehicular
movements to and from the site via Shelvers Way. However, an increase in
traffic does not necessarily equate to a reduction in highway safety.

The CHA's views on traffic impact have been supported by the Planning
Inspectorate. In the Appeal Decision for application 16/01437, which was for
the erection of 5 dwellings on land to the rear of 1-7 Shelvers Way, the
Inspector concluded: "A development of 5 dwellings would not be likely to
generate a great deal of traffic, and in the wider context of the junction of
Shelvers Way with the A217, is unlikely to materially affect current
conditions". Likewise, in the Appeal Decision for application 15/02752, which
was for 6 dwellings on land to rear of 1-7 Shelvers Way, a different Inspector
stated: "l have borne in mind that Shelvers Way is a relatively busy road and
that the proposed access drive would meet it at a point relatively close to the
junction with the A217 .... On balance | find insufficient grounds to conclude
the access arrangements for a net increase of five dwellings in this location
would compromise highway safety".

121



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

6.22 The total provision of dwellings on the site if this application were to gain
planning permission would be 26 units. In terms of traffic generation the site
is likely to produce about 16 vehicle movements during the development peak
in vehicle movements between 0800 and 0900 hours. During the evening
peak in development vehicle movements the site would generate about 17
movements. The peak in development vehicle movements coincides with
network peak. The increase in vehicle movements is small compared to the
flow of vehicles on the neighbouring strategic highway network and the
increase in movements does not come close to the threshold in movements
we used to ask for transport assessments. This threshold is 30 movements.

Access

6.23 Local residents and the TWRA have previously expressed strong concerns
regarding the suitability of the site access, in terms of it being located in close
proximity to the junction of Shelvers Way with the A217 Brighton Road. An
independent speed survey has been carried out on behalf of the applicant,
and the recorded 85th percentile speed on approach to the site access from
both directions was 20-21mph. The site access has been provided with a
visibility splay of 2.4m X' distance by 27.5m 'y' distance to the east, which is
appropriate for speeds of 20-21mph, based on the guidance in 'Manual for
Streets'. Furthermore, there is an existing speed table located on Shelvers
Way between the A217 junction and the site access, which will help to control
traffic speeds and ensure that speeds on approach to the access from this
direction remain low. The CHA is therefore satisfied that the site access is
both safe and suitable to accommodate the additional traffic that would be
generated by the proposed 5 dwellings.

6.24 The site access is 4.8m wide, which is sufficient to allow two cars to enter and
exit the site simultaneously. The applicant has also demonstrated that a 2.5m
wide by 10.3m long refuse vehicle would be able to turn around within the site
and exit in forward gear. The development already has a turning area towards
the eastern end of the original site. The current development includes a
turning area too. The CHA is therefore satisfied that the proposed
development would not result in any vehicles waiting or queuing on Shelvers
Way to access the site, or to vehicles reversing out of the site onto the public
highway, in close proximity to the A217 junction.

Parking

6.25 The proposed development includes two parking spaces and a garage per 6
of the proposed units. This equates to 18 parking spaces. The seventh and
eighth dwellings would have one parking space and a garage. The developer
is proposing two visitor spaces. In total the proposed development includes
24 parking spaces which includes two visitor spaces. According to Reigate
and Banstead Parking Standards the development should have 16 spaces for
the residential units and 2 visitor spaces. The development is providing well in
excess of the minimum required spaces for each of the units.

122



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F
Turning

6.26 The developer is proposing an adequate turning area within the proposed
development for refuse vehicles. There is also an adequate turning area in
the development behind 09 to 29 Shelvers Way.

CIL

6.27 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a fixed charge which the Council
will be collecting from some new developments from 1 April 2016. It will raise
money to help pay for a wide range of infrastructure including schools, roads,
public transport and community facilities which are needed to support new
development. This development would be CIL liable although, the exact
amount would be determined and collected after the grant of planning
permission.

Affordable Housing

6.28 The proposed development is below the threshold at which affordable
housing can be required by Policy DES6 of the DMP. However, when
considered cumulatively together with the preceding developments to the
east, the total size of the new development would exceed the 11-unit
threshold. However, case law dictates that in order to consider successive
developments as cumulative for the purposes of requiring affordable housing,
then there must be evidence that the entire development has been planned
‘as one’. In this case there is no evidence to dispute that each phase was
planned independently of each other and successive to each other. Indeed,
residents from parts of the development now included were objectors to the
original schemes, indicating that they were not signed up to be part of a
wider, eventual scheme. Counsel advice has been obtained which confirms
that it would therefore be unreasonable to require affordable housing form the
development as a result.

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

Plan Type Reference Version Date Received
Arboricultural AS/TCP/19102019 1 17.12.2019
Plan

Location Plan 19004-A-PLO1 A 17.12.2019
Site Layout Plan  19004-A-PL03 A 17.12.2019
Site Layout Plan  19004-A-PL02 A 17.12.2019
Proposed Plans  19004-A-PL08 A 17.12.2019
Proposed Plans  19004-A-PL06 A 17.12.2019
Proposed Plans  19004-A-PL07 A 17.12.2019
Proposed Plans  19004-A-PL05 A 17.12.2019
Street Scene 19004-A-PL10 A 17.12.2019

123



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7

29th. April 2020 19/02536/F
Street Scene 19004-A-PL09 A 17.12.2019
Site Layout Plan  19004-A-PL11 A 17.12.2019
Block Plan 19004-A-PL0O4 A 17.12.2019
Other Plan 19004-A-PL12 A 17.12.2019
Arboricultural M331-240 A 17.12.2019
Plan
Proposed Plans  19004-A-PL100 A 17.12.2019

Reason:

To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out in accord
with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning Practice
Guidance.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason:
To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

3. No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used in
the construction of the external surfaces, including fenestration and roof,
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, and on development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory external appearance is achieved of the
development with regard to Policies DES1 of the Development Management
Plan 2019 and the NPPF 2019.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification), no extensions permitted by Classes
A, B and C of Part 1 of the Second Schedule of the 2015 Order shall be
constructed.

Reason: To control any subsequent enlargements in the interests of the
visual and residential amenities of the locality with regard to Policies DES1 of
Development Management Plan 2019.

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, (or any Order revoking and
re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no first floor windows,
dormer windows or rooflights other than those expressly authorised by this
permission shall be constructed.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not affect the amenity of the
neighbouring properties by overlooking and to protect the visual amenities of
the area in accordance with DES1 of Development Management Plan 2019.

124



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

6. The first floor windows in the side (east and West) elevations of the
development hereby permitted shall be glazed with obscured glass which
shall be fixed shut, apart from a top hung opening fanlight whose cill height
shall not be less than 1.7 metres above internal floor level, and shall be
maintained as such at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not affect the amenity of the
neighbouring property by overlooking with regard to DES1 of Development
Management Plan 2019.

7. No development shall commence including demolition and or groundworks
preparation until a detailed, scaled finalised Tree Protection Plan (TPP) and
the related finalized Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) is submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). These shall
include details of the specification and location of exclusion fencing, ground
protection and any construction activity that may take place within the Root
Protection Areas of trees (RPA) shown to scale on the TPP, including the
installation of service routings and location of site offices. The AMS shall also
include a pre commencement meeting, supervisory regime for their
implementation & monitoring with an agreed reporting process to the LPA.

All works shall be carried out in strict accordance with these details when
approved.

Reason:

To ensure good arboricultural practice in the interests of the maintenance of
the character and appearance of the area and to comply with British Standard
5837:2012 ‘Trees in Relation to Design, demolition and Construction —
Recommendations’ and DES1 and NHE3 of Development Management Plan
2019.

8. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the landscaping
of the site including the retention of existing landscape features has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. Landscaping schemes shall
include details of hard and soft landscaping, including any tree
removal/retention, planting plans, written specifications (including specialised
urban planting pits, cultivation and other operations associated with tree,
shrub, and hedge or grass establishment), schedules of plants, noting
species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities and an implementation
and management programme.

All hard and soft landscaping work shall be completed in full accordance with
the approved scheme, prior to occupation or within the first planting season
following completion of the development hereby approved or in accordance
with a programme agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Any trees shrubs or plants planted in accordance with this condition which
are removed, die or become damaged or become diseased within five years
of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees, shrubs
of the same size and species.

125



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

Reason: To ensure good landscape practice in the interests of the
maintenance of the character and appearance of the area and to comply with
policies NHE3, DES1 and DES3 of the Reigate and Banstead Development
Management Plan 2019 and the recommendations within British Standard
5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction.

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans
for vehicles to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and
leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking turning areas shall be
retained and maintained for their designated purposes.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead
Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

10.No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management

11

Plan, to include details of:

(a) parking for venhicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors

(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

(c) storage of plant and materials

(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones

(f) HGV deliveries and hours of operation

(g) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway

(h) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a
commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused

(i) on-site turning for construction vehicles

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the
construction of the development.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Policy DES8 Construction Management of the Reigate and
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until

each of the proposed dwellings are provided with a fast charge socket
(current minimum requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v
AC 32 Amp single phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a

scheme to be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and thereafter retained and maintained to the satisfaction of the
Local Planning Authority.

126



Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17 (Travel
Options and Accessibility).

12.  All dwellings within the development hereby approved shall be provided with
the necessary infrastructure to facilitate connection to a high speed
broadband. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority, this shall include as a minimum:

a) A broadband connection accessed directly from the nearest exchange
or cabinet

b) Cabling and associated installations which enable easy access for
future repair, replacement or upgrading.

Reason: To ensure that the development promotes access to, and the
expansion of, a high quality electronic communications network in
accordance with Policy INF3 of the Reigate & Banstead Development
Management Plan 2019.

13.  The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until
an Energy and Water Efficiency Statement has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall
detail how the development will:

a) Ensure that the potential water consumption by occupants of each new
dwelling does not exceed 110 litres per person per day

b) Achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the Dwelling Emission Rate
(DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as defined in Part L1A of the
2013 Building Regulations

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details

and any measures specific to an individual dwelling(s) shall be implemented,

installed and operational prior to its occupation.

Reason: To ensure that the development supports the efficient use of

resources and minimises carbon emissions with regard to Policy CS10 of the

Reigate & Banstead Core Strategy 2014 and Policy CCF1 of the Reigate &

Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

INFORMATIVES

1. Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as
an integral part of new development. Further information is available at
www.firesprinklers.info.

2. The applicant is encouraged to provide renewable technology within the

development hereby permitted in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

127


http://www.firesprinklers.info/

Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th. April 2020 19/02536/F
3. The applicant is advised that prior to the initial occupation of any individual

dwelling hereby permitted, a 140 litre wheeled bin conforming to British
Standard BSEN840 and a 60 litre recycling box should be provided for the
exclusive use of the occupants of that dwelling. Prior to the initial occupation
of any communal dwellings or flats, wheeled refuse bins conforming to British
Standard BSEN840, separate recycling bins for paper/card and mixed cans,
and storage facilities for the bins should be installed by the developer prior to
the initial occupation of any dwelling hereby permitted. Further details on the
required number and specification of wheeled bins and recycling boxes is
available from the Council’s Neighbourhood Services on 01737 276501 or
01737 276097, or on the Council’s website at www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk.
Bins and boxes meeting the specification may be purchased from any
appropriate source, including the Council’s Neighbourhood Services Unit on
01737 276775.

4. You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be
taken during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking:

(a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be carried out
between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00hrs to 13:00hrs
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any Public and/or Bank Holidays;

(b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used on
site. Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are
necessary, they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels;

(c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) above;

(d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance
beyond the site boundary. Such uses include the use of hoses to damp
down stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate airborne dust,
to damp down during stone/slab cutting; and the use of bowsers and
wheel washes;

(e) There should be no burning on site;

(f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours stated
above; and

(g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the highway
and contractors’ vehicles should be parked with care so as not to cause
an obstruction or block visibility on the highway.

Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained
from the Council’s Environmental Health Services Unit.

In order to meet these requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the
Council recommends that this site is registered with the Considerate
Constructors Scheme - www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration.

5. The use of landscape/arboricultural consultant is considered essential to
provide acceptable submissions in respect of the above relevant conditions.
Replacement planting of trees and shrubs shall be in keeping with the
character and appearance of the locality. There is an opportunity to
incorporate substantial sized trees into the scheme to provide for future
amenity and long term continued structural tree cover in this area. It is
expected that the replacement structural landscape trees will be of Semi-

128


http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration

Agenda Iltem 7

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 7
29th: April 2020 19/02536/F

Extra Heavy Standard size with initial planting heights of not less than 4m
with girth measurements at 1m above ground level in excess of 14/16cm.

6. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried
from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned
wheels or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever
possible, to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing
highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders. (Highways Act 1980
Sections 131, 148, 149).

7. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge
developers for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of
vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of
any excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage.

REASON FOR PERMISSION

The development hereby permitted has been assessed against the NPPF 2019 and
Development Management Plan policies DES1 DES2 DES5 DES8 TAP1 NHEZ2
NHE3 and material considerations, including third party representations. It has been
concluded that the development is in accordance with the development plan and
there are no material considerations that justify refusal in the public interest.

Proactive and Positive Statements

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development where possible, as set out within
the National Planning Policy Framework.

129



it
19/02536/F - Land To THES8ar e} £1-41 Shelvers Way,
Tadworth

| [S

ge

1 5.3m
-\
6.8m

1

Crown Copyright Reserved. Reigate and Banstead Borough Council. Scale 1:2,500
Licence No - 100019405-2018 130



Agenda Item 7

v LAMKING APPACATION

131

VISIOMm

arec s tecls

19004-APLTT v A




Agenda ‘Item 7 -
5L

¢
.

y '} v I
ISP
z A O
Szl el
p %
NHEIEYES
i a z
e » | Z
o | m =
Ik 20O
|9
n
ENE J
zla b >
AHEE =
814 .§ Q o
=l
ae | 1= -
KT a | W
oy =0
3(3 z I
=Y 5| m ro
B4 ¢ [
(LY
ANEEE=
& - T
A -|m
w
b
1]
3
i
g
=
£
~ o
gt ¥
Llo|mfn
b =t
= 2
w
- T - am 1K @A aen DEWINE HOWES FLG CHRRLEE . LA
1 ONT0 0640 €1 enny
1 Tur dmanges b Grreaghh ot vinbem 1 bty raded
o Ozl vy v | v Droartr 2008 puast Lindal21 (0 4" Shilens Way.
T, KT20 501
st et Y wemay  Piopossd ke | syoul {Cofoured} W
architeclts
L3
" Fluag WU AE AK
Rty LI Lo e T A Y T mre FLANNING APRLICATION omiogtis 19004-A:PLO3

132




Agenda Iltem 7

133

ACCOMMODATION SCHEDULE
=45 {04 starey 11




Agenda‘ltem 14

weLich bowle umne e bok s

i DEVINE HOMES FLC

s 1200 A

.
3
2
T
2
=

C
J
d
>

archilecis
19004-A-PL10D

Way. Tudwxris KTH] 50,
wihin af= {calouredy

pont Landst 31 i 41 Stebears

ey Pigpoted Sheal Stand

Dacarber 010
LN

-~
o

A

e

Aniwring Mo

i PLANNIG SPPLICATION

134

P LRI T T
e

Anvy e
e mewa

A

) openy Remarnad

feilem

1 Moy phrmer b o F Ll v e lncin b

Bt

AODGL AL REFRNGAGE- 0T,




Agenda Item 7




Agenda |Item 14 -

£ LOd

NY1d ¥OOTd ANNOED

!

i I | |
{|||||||||I||||||||||

L 9Ly
L

NYld ¥0010d4 1541

ol

]
fruor, 1
STHHILIHN QL =N

Bupscog iwqui c

1 9%,
+E0 FUE SAOPAY DA e

— Lo ] wh  [HTDEM
1 Thackmvag b ol oo, st Rebiod
DO HET e, dex Dncamie 2
e AUC
Py - FLRH L e
WO I REFERENGE hS04A A L bl ainl| I




Agend? ltem 7

NV J007d ANNOED

NYId WO L5l

2eag

e Fea

u3rg

Biput

| Py

I I I

HORIATI L LR

HOUWATTA 150 HLNDG

HHHHER
F

1 T Eeeg  Ea v 0 e waets besilad

EF Gy Aa vy

7 POMOTiRLAma

WOOLL ML ALFEATNSE: kAR

0 OAE AL
L] o

w5010 A ww DEVE HOMES PLC
we Dicembes 38 i Lt 31 0 41 Spabvars
Wy, Tadwodh, KT20 50,
da AKX wtws P} 18- Propiaed
Floor Phusat L Elvalicine
o A e FLANMING APPLICATION

131

B




Agenda Iltem 7 =

© —r 5 z
iyl
8 : i
S e ;
5 3
5 ) : |
o
prat )
n
%
=
g1
g
:
g
£
= j
: :
74 : | g |
9 r[ :
T - £
»] 4 o
Q 2
= 5
5 .
=
¥ . 1
i <!
SR (o
1 »

3
€=

~ im 1Y a E
I EREAES rle d §
E B, @ PEIEBIEEIE g ¢
- H :[@L S i [ R P L
118 B3y i ol glz(315]® E
il s HHHH I
' LR i b ?
S
3
anm o) Sl v w1507 1R @Al dve  (EVINE HOMES PLC
1 Thesemrtalsl B coprrich HTiea st el AL .
@ DOMDT o % i Deowmos 2019 ot Ll 3 0 41 Shalvers v l '
Wy, Tachewrth KT20 90 S ( ) ' I
o swen AN FobbLB-
T e Pused thomtans archirecis
Ll s LU HIRIZD A Lo
OB FHE MTEREWEE: ERAAT e LU nian roe AKX rin  PLANNNG APPLIEATION drawing 19004-A-FLO7 N o

138



Agenda ltem 7 3

) & =
5 g | 1
ol @ ?
Q g
m & i
g o I ’: A _.
- °
'l
3]
. ]
3 |
&
;
g
?
$
N = -
| 1
. [j 5
L
& ] = :
2 | -
e g
*
) ‘N
5 N
i . t
it 5|
il fEo) .
g b B g‘ ny
P & g
S 1 Y N
@ £
®| -
S m
3 . £
.g- n " Ly | m 6
£
¢ TT|Es : AERRRREH
122 (U .
il oy R
5 ? E
$|-m'|| |;='I I
- .|||IH”1I|”|”||| J|I hl I
—— B Eapright mored. Ed 1507 1100 A1 e DEVINE HOMES PLG
:;:':::""'"m_"""'""' ke Decembn H19 et Lane 31 o d | Swhoars
Wiy, Tadworth, KT0 502 V I S ' C) r—]
] s AT wvay Pk &7 Pugpesod
Fiott Piatt & Ejvaloes agdc hrreots
T - e e runmio sercanon [N w  19004-4-PL0S

139



This page is intentionally left blank

140



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29th April 2020 20/00162/F
TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 29" April 2020
REPORT OF: | HEAD OF PLANNING
. b AUTHOR: Hollie Marshall
Reigate & Banstead
SR i | Rl LB | EMAIL: Hollie.marshall@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
AGENDA ITEM: 8 WARD: | Horley East and Salfords
APPLICATION NUMBER: 20/00162/F VALID: 30 January 2020
APPLICANT: Gold Property Developments | AGENT: Future PD
Ltd
LOCATION: DEVELOPMENT SITE AT FORMER 18 BRIGHTON ROAD

SALFORDS SURREY

DESCRIPTION: Erection of Class B1a office building, with associated
landscaping and parking.

All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for
detail.

SUMMARY

This is a full for the erection of a two storey building to be used as offices. The
proposed building would be sited towards the southern side of the site and would
share the existing access to the A23 with the neighbouring residential development.
The building would be similar in design and appearance to the residential dwellings
with a gable roof to the southern side of the building and a hipped roof design to the
north. Ten additional parking spaces are proposed, along with the relocation of six of
the existing parking spaces that serve the residential properties.

The site is located partly within Flood Zone 3 and partly within Flood Zone 2. Local
and National Policy require the proposals for development in Flood Zones 2 and 3
must pass the Exception and Sequential Test in order for the development to be
acceptable in Floor Risk terms.

The application follows an identical proposal that was refused in August 2018, and
dismissed at appeal in September 2019. Despite a refusal on flood grounds, the
Inspector deemed the flood impacts to be acceptable, in the absence of sufficient
sites for employment use in sequentially preferable sites at lesser flood risk.
However, the Inspector did dismiss the appeal on the basis of the proposed use
being outside a designated employment area and so contrary to Local Plan Policy
EM10 at place at that time: ‘Whilst | have found that the development proposed
would meet the requirement of the Sequential Assessment test, would have no
harmful effect on flood risk and would be safe for its lifetime, it would represent

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

development outside of the designated employment areas.’ The proposal was found
to be contrary to policy Local Plan policy EM10 criterion (iii) whereby the proposal
was approximately 10% greater in floor area than the threshold of the policy
allowed.

Since the previous application/appeal the policy position has changed through the
adoption of the Development Management Plan and the proposal must now be
considered in the context of policy EMP3 of the 2019 DMP which replaces policy
EM10 of the Borough Local Plan 2005. Where policy EM10 of the Borough Local
Plan 2005 restricted employment development outside of employment areas to be
no greater than 300sgm in floor area, policy EMP3 of the DMP does not have this
same restriction. The reason being to promote flexibility of uses across the Borough,
in accordance with the provisions of the NPPF.

A flood risk assessment was submitted with the application and no objection subject
to conditions is raised by the Environment Agency. In view of this and the previous
appeal decision, there is no objection to the proposed technical design and it is
considered that the development could be made safe for its lifetime without
increasing flood risk elsewhere. In this context, it is considered to satisfy this limb of
the Exception Test as set out in National Policy. A condition is recommended to
secure the implementation of the flood mitigation measures contained in the flood
risk assessment.

No objection is raised by the County Highways Authority subject to recommended
conditions.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

Consultations:

Highway Authority: The County Highway Authority has undertaken an assessment in
terms of the likely net additional traffic generation, access arrangements and parking
provision and are satisfied that the application would not have a material impact on
the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway. The County Highway
Authority therefore has no highway requirements subject to conditions.

Salfords and Sidlow Parish Council — Objects on the grounds of flood risk, hazard to

highway safety, loss of open space and loss of amenity

Environment Agency — no objection subject to conditions

Representations:

Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 3 February 2020.

8 responses have been received raising the following issues:

Issue
Drainage/sewage/capacity

Flooding
Inadequate parking
Inconvenience during construction

Increase in traffic and congestion

Loss of a private view
No need for the development

Overlooking and loss of privacy

Property devaluation

Noise and disturbance

Alternative location/proposal preferred
Harm to Green Belt/countryside

Harm to wildlife habitat

Hazard to highway safety

Overdevelopment
Loss of a private view

Response

See paragraph 6.3 -6.16 and

condition 5

See paragraph 6.3 -6.12 and
condition 5

See paragraph 6.24 to 6.26
and condition 6

See paragraph 6.20 and
condition 8

See paragraph 6.24 — 6.26
See paragraph 6.29
See paragraph 6.10 -6.13

See paragraph 6.18 — 6.19
and condition 13

See paragraph 6.29
See paragraph 6.21
See paragraph 6.3 -6.12
See paragraph 6.16
See paragraph 6.30

See paragraph 6.24 — 6.28
and conditions 6 - 10

See paragraph 6.13 — 6.16
See paragraph 6.29

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29th April 2020 20/00162/F
Overshadowing See paragraph 6.18 — 6.19
Overbearing relationship See paragraph 6.18 — 6.19

1.0 Site and Character Appraisal

1.1 The site occupies a plot on the western side of the A23, Brighton Road. It is
within the urban area although the Metropolitan Green Belt abuts to the north.

1.2 The site comprises a former caravan sales site that has been partly
developed to provide 20 residential dwellings comprising of terraced houses
and a block of flats. To the north of the site is the Salfords Stream. West of
the site are located residential properties whilst to the south are various retail
and residential uses associated with its designation within a local shopping

centre.

1.3  The part of the site to which the proposal pertains lies within EA Food Zones
2 and 3 and was previously proposed to be an open area of shared space to

serve the residential properties recently built.

2.0 Added Value

2.1 Improvements secured at the pre-application stage: Pre-application advice

was sought and provided in regard to flooding issues.

2.2 Improvements secured during the course of the application: None

2.3  Further improvements could be secured: Flood mitigation and drainage would

be secured by way of conditions.

3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History

3.1 15/00451/F Demolition of existing buildings and Approved with
erection of 14 dwellings with conditions
associated landscaping, access and 5 June 2015
parking

3.2 15/02755/F Demolition of existing buildings and Approved with
erection of 20 dwellings with conditions
associated landscaping, access and 28 September
parking.

3.3 18/00751/F Erection of Class B1a office Refused
building, with associated 24 August 2018
landscaping and parking. Appeal dismissed

3.4  Application 18/00715/F was refused for the following reasons:

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

3.5

1. The proposed development, by virtue its location in Flood Zones 2 and
3, would result in development being unnecessarily directed towards a
site at higher probability and risk of flooding. Notwithstanding the
information supplied by the applicant, it is concluded that the proposal
fails to meet the Sequential Test as other sites at lower probability risk
of flooding are available and the proposal is therefore contrary to policy
Ut4 of the Reigate and Banstead Borough Local Plan 2005, policy CS10
of the Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 and the provisions of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

2.  The proposed new office building, by virtue of its size, location outside a
designated Employment Area without evidence to demonstrate there
are no suitable alternative sites within the designated Employment
Areas and t a quantitative need for the particular office provision
proposed on this site, as well as the environmental harm that would
result from its location within an area at risk from flooding fails to comply
with policy Em10 of the Reigate and Banstead Borough Local Plan
2005.

A subsequent appeal was dismissed in September 2019. The Inspector in
his decision letter identified two issues as follows:

e Whether the appeal site is a suitable location for employment
development; and,
e The effect on the risk of flooding.

In his letter the Inspector noted that the Council had indicated that the
Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan was at an advanced
stage and that significant weight should be attached to it. He then stated that
he had no further details with respect to the emerging Plan before him and
that as it had not yet been adopted, he attached little weight to it.

With regards to the first issue, the Inspector noted that the development
would provide approximately 336m2 of B1(a) office floorspace, on a site
formerly in commercial use, but not part of a designated employment area.
He noted that the Council referred to then Local Plan policy EM10
(Employment outside Employment Policy Areas) and that the proposal did not
comply with parts (i), (ii) and (iii) of the policy. With respect to saved Policy
EM10 of the LP criteria (i) the proposal would need to comply with saved
Policy EM2 of the LP, which amongst other things would seek to ensure the
Council is satisfied that it has sufficient land and premises available for
employment purposes.

The Inspector noted that the appellant had undertaken a detailed assessment
of the commercial market and from the evidence presented he concluded that
given the shortfall of suitable alternative sites and significant loss of office
floorspace identified in previous years, the development proposed would
make a modest contribution to the Council’s commercial space provision and
therefore would meet criterion (i) of saved Policy EM2.

With respect to criteria (ii) of Policy EM10 of the LP, the Inspector noted that
the Council did not raise any concerns with respect to the impact of the

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

proposed development on the character of the wider area or any harmful
effects to the occupiers of the neighbouring properties. He therefore
concluded that this criterion would be met.

Criteria (iii) of former Local Plan Policy EM10 stated that no individual unit
should exceed 300m? gross floorspace, unless it was for an existing firm
wishing to extend or redevelop within its own curtilage or on land immediately
adjacent for its own occupation.

The Inspector noted that whilst the development proposed would provide two
separate office units intended for separate occupation, with a net floor area of
approximately 138m? and 150m?, with shared entrance, core and WC'’s, these
uses would be accommodated within a single building with a total gross
internal floorspace of approximately 336m?2.

He also noted that the amplification text to former Local Plan Policy EM10
stated that the term individual unit meant a structurally separate building of
not more than 300m?2. Whilst the development proposed would make effective
use of the land, he considered that it would be significantly bigger, being
more than 10% of the threshold set out in criterion (iii).

He also considered that the appellant has provided no evidence which
indicates that the appeal site would be occupied by an existing business or
that it would meet the expansion needs of an existing firm and concluded that
it would not meet the requirement as defined by criteria (iii) of saved Policy
EM10 of the LP.

On the second issue, Risk to Flooding, the Inspector noted that the site was
partly within Flood Zone 2 and party within Flood Zone 3, which indicated that
part of the site would have a high probability of flooding.

The Inspector referred to paragraph 155 of the NPPF, which states that
inappropriate development in areas of flood risk should be avoided by
directing development away from areas of highest flood risk, but where
development is necessary, making it safe without increasing flood risk
elsewhere. The Framework advises that development should not be
permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed
development with a lower probability of flooding.

He also referred to para 157 which indicates that a Sequential Test should be
applied to proposals for new development. He noted that the appellant
submitted a flood risk assessment and no objection was raised by the
Environment Agency, subject to conditions if the development proposed was
allowed. He also noted that the Council had stated that there was no
objection to the technical design which meant that the development could be
made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere and as a
result it would meet part of the Exception Test as set out in the Framework.

With regards to the Sequential Test, he noted that the Council did not
consider that the Sequential Assessment submitted with the applicant was

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

3.7

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

sufficient to demonstrate that all available site had been considered. The
Inspector set out in his decision letter his reasoning for disagreeing with the
Council on this issue and concluded that he was not persuaded that there
were sufficient preferable alternative sites available within the Borough and
as a result, he concluded that the development proposed could not be
directed towards areas with a lower probability of flooding.

He therefore considered that the proposal would comply with flood policies
Ut4 of the former Local Plan (2005) (LP) and CS10 of the CS and the
Framework.

The appeal was dismissed therefore on the grounds that the proposals did
not comply with Part (iii) of former Local Plan Policy EM10 and exceeded the
threshold of 300m? stated in the policy.

Following the receipt of the appeal decision letter, the Council adopted the
Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan on 26™ September
2019. Former Policies Em10 and Ut4 were replaced by new Policies EMP3
and CCF2 respectively.

Proposal and Design Approach

This is a full for the erection of a two storey building to be used as offices.
The proposed building would be sited towards the southern side of the site,
and would share the existing access to the A23 with the neighbouring
residential development. The building would be similar in design and
appearance to the residential dwellings with a gable roof to the southern side
of the building and a hipped roof design to the north. A matching pallet of
materials is proposed that would assist in integrating the appearance of the
building with the locality.

Ten additional parking spaces are proposed, along with the relocation of six
of the existing parking spaces that serve the residential properties. The
relocated parking spaces make way for the access road and an area of
landscaping to the south of the proposed building. The parking spaces would
be arranged in a linear form to the east and south of the office building. Open
space is proposed to the west and north of the building.

A design and access statement should illustrate the process that has led to
the development proposal, and justify the proposal in a structured way, by
demonstrating the steps taken to appraise the context of the proposed
development. It expects applicants to follow a four-stage design process
comprising:

Assessment;

Involvement;

Evaluation; and

Design.

Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below:

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Planning Committee
29t April 2020

4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item: 8
20/00162/F

Assessment

The character of the site is assessed as being bounded
by residential development on the southern and western
boundaries — Willow Heights to the south, a two and three
storey development of flats and houses, and Park View
Road to the west, comprising two-storey flatted blocks
located between 2 to 15 metres from the boundary. Along
this boundary on the western side is a line of high
conifers. To the north of the site lies Salfords Stream
where there is a line of mature trees on the boundary with
the site, and a pumping station is located near to the
north eastern corner of the site by the A23.

No site features worthy of retention were identified.

Involvement

No community consultation took place.

Evaluation

The statement does not include any evidence of other
development options being considered.

Design

The applicant’s reasons for choosing the proposal from
the available options were informed by the appeal
decision and pre-application advice.

Further details of the development are as follows:

Site area

0.5 hectares

Proposed parking spaces 10

Parking standard

11 (maximum)

Policy Context

Designation

Urban area

Adjacent to Metropolitan Green Belt

Flood Zone 2
Flood Zone 3

Reigate and Banstead Core Strateqy

CS1(Sustainable Development)

CS2 (Valued Landscapes and Natural Environment)
CS4 (Valued Townscapes and Historic Environment)
CS5 (Valued People/Economic Development)

CS10 (Sustainable Development)

CS11 (Sustainable Construction)

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc




Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

5.3 Development Management Plan 2019

EMP3 (Employment development outside employment areas)
DES1 (Design of new development)

TAP1 (Access, parking and servicing)

CCF2 (Flood risk)

NHE3 (Protecting trees, woodland areas and natural habitats)

54 Other Material Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide
A Parking Strategy for Surrey
Parking Standards for Development

Other Human Rights Act 1998
Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010

6.0 Assessment

6.1 The application site is situated within the urban area where there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and where the principle of
such residential development is acceptable in land use terms. During the
course of the recent appeal of application the Inspector found the proposal
acceptable in terms of design and character, impact upon neighbour amenity,
highways matters. The Inspector concluded ‘Whilst | have found that the
development proposed would meet the requirement of the Sequential
Assessment test, would have no harmful effect on flood risk and would be
safe for its lifetime, it would represent development outside of the designated
employment areas.’ The proposal was found to be contrary to policy EM10 of
the Borough Local Plan 2005, criterion (iii) whereby the proposal was
approximately 10% greater in floor area than the threshold of the policy
allowed. Since this time the policy position has changed through the adoption
of the Development Management Plan and policy EM10 is replaced by EMP3
. Policy EMP3 does not have the same maximum floor area criteria as Policy
EM10 had

6.2 The main issues to consider are:

Employment use
Flood risk

Design appraisal
Neighbour amenity
Highway matters
Impact on trees

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F
. Other matters

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Employment Use

In August 2019, an identical proposal (18/00751/F) was dismissed on appeal.
At the time, the Council’s development plan was comprised of the “saved”
policies of the Borough Local Plan (BLP) (adopted 2005) and Core Strategy
(adopted 2014 and reviewed 2019). The application was refused as it failed to
comply with the limits of permitted gross floorspace outside of designated
employment areas within criterion (iii) of BLP Policy Em10. Criterion (iii) of
“saved” Borough Local Plan Policy Em10 stated that “no individual unit should
exceed 300sgm of gross floorspace, unless it is for an existing firm wishing to
extend or redevelop within its own curtilage or on land immediately adjacent
for its own occupation”.

The amplification text to the saved policy stated that the term individual unit
means “a structurally separate building of not more than 300sgm”. And the
Inspector felt that “whilst the development proposed would make effective use
of the land, it would be significantly bigger, being more than 10% of the
threshold set out in criteria (iii)". (Paragraph 14 of the Decision Notice). In
addition, the Inspector noted that “the appellant has provided no evidence
which indicates that the appeal site would be occupied by an existing
business or that it would meet the expansion needs of an existing firm and
therefore it would not meet the requirement as defined by criteria (iii) of saved
Policy Em10”. (Paragraph 15 of the Decision Notice)

Since the determination of this appeal, the Council has adopted its
Development Management Plan (DMP). The policies in the Council's DMP
have superseded the “saved” policies of the BLP (2005) and therefore the
Council’'s development plan is comprised of the Core Strategy (2012-2027)
adopted in 2014 and reviewed in July 2019 and the Development
Management Plan (DMP), adopted in September 2019.

The applicant has now resubmitted the proposal to be assessed against the
Council’'s updated development plan. For proposals outside of designated
employment areas, DMP Policy EMP3: ‘Employment development outside
employment areas’ states that “outside of designated employment areas and
town centres:

1. Planning permission will be granted for employment uses (excluding all
Class A uses other than A2) provided:

a. The proposal would not harm the character of the building or surrounding
area.

b. There would be no harm to the amenity of neighbouring
properties/occupants through impacts such as noise, odour, fumes, litter,
general disturbance and late night activity.

c. The type, scale and intensity of the proposed business activity is
appropriate to the locality and the accessibility of the site.

d. Sufficient on-site, off-street parking is available to cater for both the
business use and, where relevant, any remaining residential use.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

2. Through the use of conditions, the Council may limit the type and level of
activity, including hours of work, of any such employment uses”.

These tests are similar to those contained previously within the Local Plan
policy framework and against which the proposal was found acceptable. The
fundamental change in policy has been the removal of the policy resistance to
employment proposals over 300 sqm outside designated employment areas.
This change reflects the NPPF’s requirement for a flexible, positive and
proactive approach to plan making and development locations. There is
therefore no longer any principle policy resistance to the office provision on
the site.

Flood risk

The site is located within Flood Zones 2 and 3 and therefore in accordance
with DMP Policy CCF2 ‘Flood risk’ a Sequential Test is required to ascertain
whether the development is appropriate to the locality of the site. DMP Policy
CCF2: ‘Flood risk’ states that “development proposals must avoid areas at
risk of flooding where possible and prioritise development in areas with the
lowest risk of flooding. The Sequential Test shall be undertaken for
developments in Flood Zones 2 and 3 except where exempt in accordance
with the requirements of the NPPF and Planning Practice Guidance.
Development will not be permitted if there are reasonably available sites
appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower probability of
flooding. Where necessary the Exception Test must also be satisfied in line
with national guidance”.

The Sequential Assessment from March 2018 submitted with the previous
application (18/00751/F) concluded that even though there were alternative
sites available, taking into consideration office floorspace losses due to
permitted development rights, there wouldn’'t be enough office space in the
pipeline to satisfy the identified need over the plan period and therefore the
Sequential Test for the application site should be passed. The appeal
Inspector supported this conclusion, disregarding employment site allocations
from the emerging DMP. The Appeal decision (para 3 & 23) states that the
Inspector has attached little weight to the DMP as it had not at the time yet
been adopted.

The applicant has submitted an updated Sequential Assessment in January
2020 in support of this latest application, which identified four potential sites
for office development that are in sequentially preferable locations and are
potentially available, suitable and achievable. However, as per the previous
proposal, the applicant argues that the application site is essential to restore
losses of office floorspace in order to meet the demand identified in the Core
Strategy and should therefore pass the Sequential Test.

The Planning Policy Team considers that sufficient sites exist to fulfil the
identified office needs. These are set out in the DMP and include a
combination of the reuse and intensification of existing employment areas
and town centres (through planning permissions such as 19/00062/F for

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

4,850m? of B1(a) floorspace on the Horley Gasholder Site in the Balcombe
Road employment area); small scale planning permissions within the urban
area (such as 19/02164/CU for change of use of 340m? of A1 floorspace to
B1(a) at 46 Church Street, Reigate); and through a number of specific site
allocations in the DMP.

Whilst the Planning Policy Team have raised concerns relating to the flood
risk as a result, this must be balanced against the support to the scheme
given by the previous appeal decision which considered flood risk and is a
significant material consideration. Furthermore, alongside the application
proposes two smaller office spaces, providing opportunity for smaller
businesses work space and is a different offering to the allocated sites.
Balancing the policy advice against the previous findings of the appeal
Inspector, significant weight is afforded to the appeal decision and on this
basis, the proposal is considered acceptable on this basis and the
requirements of the Sequential Test met.

A flood risk assessment was submitted with the application and no objection
subject to conditions is raised by the Environment Agency. In view of this
there is no objection to the proposed technical design and it is considered
that the development could be made safe for its lifetime without increasing
flood risk elsewhere. In this context, it is considered to satisfy this limb of the
Exception Test as set out in National Policy.

Design appraisal

The site is made up of an open area of land that forms part of a wider
development of 20 residential dwellings that has been recently built. The land
under application reference 15/02755/F formed an area of shared outside
amenity space for the residential development. At the time of the site visit the
land remains delineated from the site by a 2m high close boarded fence.

The application proposes the erection of a two storey building to be used as
offices. The proposed building would be sited towards the southern side of
the site, and would share the existing access to the A23 with the
neighbouring residential development. The building would be similar in design
and appearance to the residential dwellings with a gable roof to the southern
side of the building and a hipped roof design to the north. A matching pallet of
materials is proposed that would assist in integrating the appearance of the
building with the locality.

Ten additional parking spaces are proposed, along with the relocation of six
of the existing parking spaces that serve the residential properties. The
relocated parking spaces make way for the access road and an area of
landscaping to the south of the proposed building. The parking spaces would
be arranged in a linear form to the east and south of the office building. Open
space is proposed to the west and north of the building.

The proposed building has been designed to match the style of the 20
dwelling scheme, with a similar design approach and palette of materials. The

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

proposal would reduce in scale towards the northern side, reducing the bulk
and massing in this transitional location adjacent to the green belt. Given the
reduction in scale on the northern side and separation distance of between
approximately 9.5m and 12.2m to the northern boundary of the site, the
proposal is considered to provide an acceptable transition to the open green
belt land beyond to the north.

In the course of the recent appeal, the Inspector found no harm in regard to
the design of the proposal. The proposed development would be acceptable
in terms of its design and impact upon the character of the wider area, and
complies with policy DES1.

Neighbour amenity

The proposed building would be sited to the north of the recently built
residential development with a separation distance of 7.5m to the nearest
neighbouring dwelling. The office building would be set back from the
neighbour to the south, creating a staggered relationship. Given the level of
separation and juxtaposition, the proposal is not considered to result in to
neighbour amenity. A first floor side facing window is proposed to face the
neighbouring dwelling; were the application recommended for approval a
condition could be attached to secure obscure glazing to avoid overlooking or
loss of privacy.

The proposed building would be sited approximately 18m to the north east of
the closest properties in Park View Road (7 - 14 Altdam Farm) and
approximately 26m to the properties at 15 - 20 Altdam Farm, Park View
Road. A mature boundary of trees is sited outside the application site which
provides some screening between these two sites. Given this level of
separation and screening the proposal is not considered to result in harm
amenities of these properties

Objection was raised on the grounds of inconvenience during the construction
period. Whilst it is acknowledged there may be a degree of disruption during
the construction phase, the proposal would not warrant refusal on this basis
and statutory nuisance legislation exists to control any significant disturbance
caused during the construction of the proposal. A construction method
statement would be secured by planning condition.

Objection was raised on the grounds of noise and disturbance. The proposed
building would be in office use and is not therefore considered to give rise to
a significant degree of noise and disturbance.

The proposal would involve the loss of a portion of open space that originally
was proposed to provide a communal area of outdoor space to be used in
conjunction with the recently built residential properties. At the site visit it was
observed that this are of land remains divided from the residential site by way
of a close boarded fence. The presence of the office building is considered to
result in the remaining outdoor space being less well used by residents
however, the houses have private rear gardens and the flats are sited

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

approximately 200m from the Mead Avenue Recreation Ground and 620m
south of Petridgewood Common, providing outside space within reasonable
distance.

6.23 Overall, the proposal is not considered to result in harm to neighbour amenity
and would comply with policy DES1 and EMP3 in this regard.

Highway matters

6.24 The County Highway Authority has undertaken an assessment in terms of the
likely net additional traffic generation, access arrangements and parking
provision and are satisfied that the application would not have a material
impact on the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway. The
County Highway Authority therefore has no highway requirements subject to
conditions.

6.25 The County Highways Authority notes ‘the developer is proposing an
adequate number of car parking spaces for the proposed development.
The sites selected to forecast traffic generation are not representative of the
location of the site. However the access has adequate geometry and sight
lines to accommodate a higher level of traffic generation that would be more
akin to the location of the site.” The scheme provides 10 parking spaces with
the DMP operating a maximum standard for destination uses such as offices,
with the maximum in this case being 11. The scheme could not therefore be
resisted on this ground.

6.26 The CHA have recommended a condition for the developer to submit a travel
statement in accordance with the sustainable development aims and
objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework, Surrey County
Council's “Travel Plans Good Practice Guide”, with information to be
distributed to staff on the sustainable travel options next to the site and a
condition for an electric vehicle charging point. Both these recommended
conditions would be attached to a grant of planning permission along with the
recommended conditions in relation to parking for vehicles, bicyles and the
requirement for a construction transport management plan.

Impact on trees

6.27 A report has been submitted in support of the application that is the same as
that submitted during the course of the previous application. In assessing the
previous application, the Tree Officer undertook a desk top assessment of the
arboricultural report by PJC Consultancy, reference PJC 4617/1701 and the
information provided demonstrated this scheme can be implemented without
having an impact on the existing tree stock. Whilst none of the trees surveyed
are significant specimens in terms of quality and value they provide screening
for the neighbouring properties. Therefore the Tree Officer did not object to
the application subject to the conditions regarding tree protection and
landscaping details being attached to the decision notice were the application
to be approved.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

6.28 The trees and landscaping around the site remain similar to that of the
previous assessment, and therefore submit the recommended conditions, the
proposal is considered acceptable in terms of impact upon trees.

Other matters

6.29 Objection was raised on the grounds of conflicting with a covenant, loss of a
private view and property devaluation; these are not material planning
considerations.

6.30 Objection was raised on the grounds of harm to wildlife habitat. The site is not
within nor adjacent to Site of Nature Conservation Importance and its
previous use was one of a commercial site for the sale of caravans. It is not
therefore considered the proposal is likely to result in significant impact on
existing wildlife habitats. Furthermore, protected species legislation applies
independently of planning permission.

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason:

To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act

2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:
Plan Type Reference Version Date Received
Other Plan J4354 HW04 2 7.01.2020
Location Plan 2017-111-01 27.01.2020
Landscaping Plan 2017-111-09 01 27.01.2020
Site Layout Plan 2017-111-08 27.01.2020
Landscaping Plan 2017-111-06 27.01.2020
Proposed Plans 2017-111-03 27.01.2020
Elevation Plan 2014-111-04 27.01.2020
Floor Plan 2017-111-05 27.01.2020
Proposed Plans 2017-111-02 27.01.2020
Reason:

To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out in accord
with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning Practice
Guidance.

3. The development shall be constructed in accordance with the proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished ground floor levels of the buildings
submitted and approved as per plan ref: 017-111-08 External Levels Plan.
Reason:

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details of the
proposal and its relationship with adjoining development and to safeguard the
visual amenities of the locality with regard to Development Management Plan
2019 policies DES1 and CCF2.

4. The development shall be constructed in accordance with the materials
specified in this application and there shall be no variation unless agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:
To ensure that a satisfactory external appearance is achieved of the
development with regard to Development Management Plan policy DES1.

5. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated January
2018, Project Code A/GPDSALFORDS.10 Issue 1 by Mayer Brown Limited
and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:

e Provision of compensatory flood storage as shown in appendix F.

e Finished floor levels are set no lower than 5§5.44 m above Ordnance
Datum (AOD)

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and

subsequently in accordance with the timing and phasing arrangements

embodied within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently

be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:

To prevent flooding elsewhere by ensuring that compensatory storage of

flood water is provided and reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed

development and future occupants.

6. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans
for cars to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave
the site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking and turning areas shall be
retained and maintained for their designated purposes.

Reason:

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy
TAP1 of the Development Management Plan 2019

7. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with a scheme to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for a
minimum of three bicycles to be stored in an accessible and sheltered
location. Thereafter the bike storage area shall be retained and maintained
for its designated purpose.

Reason:

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Reigate
and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29th April 2020 20/00162/F
8. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management

10.

Plan, to include details of:

(a) parking for venhicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors

(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

(c) storage of plant and materials

(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)

(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones

(f) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway

(g) on-site turning for construction vehicles

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the
construction of the development.

Reason:

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy
DES8 of the Reigate and Banstead Local Plan Development Management
Plan 2019.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until one
parking space is provided with a fast charge socket (current minimum
requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 Amp single
phase dedicated supply) and an additional one parking space has been
provided with an electric supply to retrospectively fit a fast charge socket if
demand dictates this in accordance with a scheme to be submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter retained
and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Reigate
and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17.

Prior to the occupation of the development a Travel Statement shall be
submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority in
accordance with the sustainable development aims and objectives of the
National Planning Policy Framework, Surrey County Council’s “Travel Plans
Good Practice Guide” to include information on the sustainable transport
mode options adjacent to and within 600 metres of the site including details of
how such information is to be distributed to staff. The approved Travel
Statement shall be implemented upon first occupation and the associated
information shall be distributed to staff for each and every subsequent
occupation of the development, and thereafter maintain and develop the
Travel Statement to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:

The condition above is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users,
and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Reigate
and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29th April 2020 20/00162/F
11.  No development shall commence including groundworks preparation and

12.

13.

14.

demolition until all related arboricultural matters, including arboricultural
supervision, monitoring and tree protection measures are implemented in
strict accordance with the approved details contained in the Tree Protection
Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement compiled by PJC Consultancy 29t
September 2017, reference PJC4617/17-01

Reason:

To ensure good arboricultural practice in the interests of the maintenance of
the character and appearance of the area and to comply with policy NHE3 of
the Development Management Plan 2019 and the recommendations within
British Standard 5837.

No development shall commence until details of hard and soft landscaping is
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
These shall include frontage tree and hedge planting and any other existing
or proposed, soft or hard, landscaping in the front garden area, or adjacent to
boundaries where appropriate. The soft landscape details shall include an
establishment maintenance schedule for a minimum of 2 years, full planting
specifications, planting sizes & densities. Upon implementation of the
approved development all the landscaping works shall be carried out in strict
accordance with the landscape details as approved, and these shall be
completed, before building completion, occupation or use of the approved
development whichever is the earliest.

If any of the new or existing tree/s or hedge/s, detailed and approved under
this condition, are removed, die, or become significantly damaged or
diseased within 5 years of completion, it/they shall be replaced before the
expiry of one calendar year, to a planting specification agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The hedges detailed shall be retained at a
minimum height of 1 metre, or if new, once grown to this height thereafter.
Reason:

To ensure good landscape practice in the interests of the maintenance of the
character and appearance of the area and to comply with policies DES1 and
NHE3 of the Development Management Plan 2019.

The first floor windows in the south side elevations of the development
hereby permitted shall be glazed with obscured glass which shall be fixed
shut, apart from a top hung opening fanlight whose cill height shall not be
less than 1.7 metres above internal floor level, and shall be maintained as
such at all times.

Reason:

To ensure that the development does not affect the amenity of the
neighbouring property by overlooking with regard to Development
Management Plan 2019 policy DES1.

The development hereby approved shall be provided with the necessary
infrastructure to facilitate connection to a high speed broadband. Unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, this shall
include as a minimum:

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

a) A broadband connection accessed directly from the nearest exchange or
cabinet

b) Cabling and associated installations which enable easy access for future
repair, replacement or upgrading.

Reason: To ensure that the development promotes access to, and the
expansion of, a high quality electronic communications network in
accordance with Policy INF3 of the Reigate & Banstead Development
Management Plan 2019.

INFORMATIVES

1.

Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as
an integral part of new development. Further information is available at
www.firesprinklers.info.

The applicant is encouraged to provide renewable technology within the
development hereby permitted in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be
taken during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking:

(a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be carried out
between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00hrs to 13:00hrs
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any Public and/or Bank Holidays;

(b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used on
site. Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are
necessary, they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels;

(c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) above;

(d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance
beyond the site boundary. Such uses include the use of hoses to damp
down stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate airborne dust,
to damp down during stone/slab cutting; and the use of bowsers and
wheel washes;

(e) There should be no burning on site;

(f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours stated
above; and

(g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the highway
and contractors’ vehicles should be parked with care so as not to cause
an obstruction or block visibility on the highway.

Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained from
the Council’s Environmental Health Services Unit.

In order to meet these requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the
Council recommends that this site is registered with the Considerate Constructors
Scheme - www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration.

. The applicant is advised that the essential requirements for an acceptable

communication plan forming part of a Method of Construction Statement are
viewed as: (i) how those likely to be affected by the site's activities are

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc


http://www.firesprinklers.info/
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration

Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

identified and how they will be informed about the project, site activities and
programme; (ii) how neighbours will be notified prior to any noisy/disruptive
work or of any significant changes to site activity that may affect them; (iii) the
arrangements that will be in place to ensure a reasonable telephone
response during working hours; (iv) the name and contact details of the site
manager who will be able to deal with complaints; and (v) how those who are
interested in or affected will be routinely advised regarding the progress of
the work. Registration and operation of the site to the standards set by the
Considerate Constructors Scheme (http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/) would help
fulfil these requirements

5. Please be advised that given the proximity to Salford Stream, this project may
require a Flood Risk Activity Permit (FRAP). Guidance on how to check if you
need a permit can be found at:
www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits

Measures will also need to be taken to ensure protection of both ground and

surface waters — for example, should oil storage/refuelling be placed here,

drainage infrastructure and oil storage must be designed with environmental

protection as a priority. Likewise, operators should take appropriate

measures to manage their construction site to avoid pollution entering the

watercourse. This might include;

e Placing spoil piles where they pose the least risk of runoff;

e Constructing internal drainage in the spoil piles;

e Keeping spoil piles covered;

e Constructing a small trench along the riverside boundary to redirect silty
water away from the river into a silt-buster/sediment trap;

e Undertaking regular inspections of the water course

6. The permission hereby granted shall not be construd as authority to carry out
any works on the highway or any works that may affect a drainage
channel/culvert or water course. The applicant is advised that a permit and,
potentially, a Section 278 agreement must be obtained from the Highway
Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath,
carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. All works on the
highway will require a permit and an application will need to submitted to the
County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months in advance of the
intended start date, depending on the scale of the works proposed and the
classification of the road. Please see http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-
transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-traffic-management-permit-scheme.
The applicant is also advised that Consent may be required under Section 23
of the Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-
and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice.

7. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be
carried from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from
uncleaned wheels or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek,
wherever possible, to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or
repairing highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders. (Highways
Act 1980 Sections 131, 148, 149).

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc


http://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-traffic-management-permit-scheme
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-traffic-management-permit-scheme
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice

Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 8
29t April 2020 20/00162/F

8. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge
developers for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of
vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of
any excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage.

9. The use of a suitably qualified arboricultural consultant is essential to provide
acceptable supervision and monitoring in respect of the arboricultural issues
in respect of the above condition. All works shall comply with the
recommendations and guidelines contained within British Standard 5837 .

REASON FOR PERMISSION

The development hereby permitted has been assessed against development plan
policies EMP3, DES1, NHE3, TAP1, CCF2 and material considerations, including
third party representations. It has been concluded that the development is in
accordance with the development plan and there are no material considerations that
justify refusal in the public interest.

Proactive and Positive Statements

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development where possible, as set out within
the National Planning Policy Framework.

M:\BDS\DM\CTreports 2019-20\Meeting 12 - 29 April\ Agreed reports\8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road.doc



A It
20/00162/F - Developm%%?%?te %\TI-Bormer 18 Brighton Road

Salfords

K S
g

9
s

’ a

Scale 1:1,250

162

Crown Copyright Reserved. Reigate and Banstead Borough Council.

Licence No - 100019405-2018



€91

Beedess

RS LS
Q0
, %‘; }\\\

,\'
S

o A

‘\ ‘."[’)’o ‘gA»"' = X
N *‘%“‘?&5&‘1")‘&""

4

)
MR

Z

=

s

Y

~za

i

ol
2
P2

i
1\\\1\\\,\\\\\1*111\\1\ . @':%‘;‘

FAEA
QLN By
SRR

\“‘*\“
S2
XL

o
e
o
5SS
(AL
A
?i%‘&

=
KL

2
LR
AR

RS
CEAEA
o
. < ""“,' |
Office e
BRI
TR ’Q“

\ ] -
‘ »

K

Teae

a2\ S

2\

=S

AR
O AN

¥z
\ S
DS

~ ‘
a

Schedule of Materials

Bituminous Tarmac

Brindle Block Paving

Paving Slabs
F1
--------------------- 1.5M Close Borded Fence
F2
w1, 8M Close Boared Fence

whismms 900mm Picket Fence (White)

@ Street Lamp — Coach lamp
See detalls

BRIGHTON ROAD -

SALFORDS

‘ SUBJECT TO PLANNING APPROVAL \
SUBJECT TO BUILDING REGS APPROVAL

NOTES

This drawing and all the information
shown is the property of DK Designs and
shall not be copied whole, or in part, or

used

ALL DIM
ALl

for any other purpose without written
permission of the Company

ENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE

L SUBJECT TO STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERS CHECKS AND
CALCULATIONS

IF ANY VARIATIONS ARE MADE TO

SPECI

FICATION/DRAWINGS WITHOUT DK

DESIGNS KNOWLEDGE, DK DESIGNS WILL
NOT BE HELD ACCOUNTABLE FOR NON

COMPL

IANCE OF PLANNING AND BUILDING
REGUALTIONS

to Clients Approval

0 5 10 15 20 25

Meters 1: 200 @ A1

Rev.

Date. Remarks

DK DESIGNS

FUTURE PROJECTS TODAY

7A HEywoopb HOUSE,

HYDRA BUSINESS PARK, NETHER LANE
SHEFFIELD

535 9zX
TEL:- 07591 206 852

EMAIL :- DESIGNS(@DK-DESIGNS.CO.UK
WEB:- www.DK-DESIGNS.CO.UK

Client.

Gold Property Developments

Project/Title.

Brighton Road - Salfords - Surrey
Phase 2 - Hardlandscaping Plan

Scales.

1:200 @ A1

Date.

Aug 17

Drawing Number.

2017-111-06

Revision.

Drawn by.

g wa)| epuaby



AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
v

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Open Space

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Bin Storage

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Existing MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
 Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
v

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Cycle Store x 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Cycle Store x 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Cycle Store x 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Apartments No 1-11

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Parking Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Parking Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
C10

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Street Lamp - Coach lamp  to Clients Approval

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
See details


o1

Office
Unit

0 5 10 15 20 25

Meters 1: 200 @ A1

g waj| epuaby

BRIGHTON ROAD -

SALFORDS

‘ SUBJECT TO PLANNING APPROVAL \
SUBJECT TO BUILDING REGS APPROVAL

NOTES

This drawing and all the information
shown is the property of DK Designs and
shall not be copied whole, or in part, or
used for any other purpose without written
permission of the Company

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE

ALL SUBJECT TO STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERS CHECKS AND
CALCULATIONS

IF ANY VARIATIONS ARE MADE TO
SPECIFICATION/DRAWINGS WITHOUT DK
DESIGNS KNOWLEDGE, DK DESIGNS WILL

NOT BE HELD ACCOUNTABLE FOR NON
COMPLIANCE OF PLANNING AND BUILDING
REGUALTIONS

Rev. Date. Remarks

DK DESIGNS

FUTURE PROJECTS TODAY

7A HEywoopb HOUSE,

HYDRA BUSINESS PARK, NETHER LANE
SHEFFIELD

535 9zX
TEL:- 07591 206 852

EMAIL :- DESIGNS(@DK-DESIGNS.CO.UK
WEB:- www.DK-DESIGNS.CO.UK

Client.

Gold Property Developments

Project/Title.
Brighton Road - Salfords - Surrey
Phase 2 - External Levels Plan

Scales. 1 200 @ A1 Date. Aug 17

Drawing Number. Revision. Drawn by.

017-111-08



AutoCAD SHX Text_76
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
v

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Open Space

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
Bin Storage

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
Existing MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
 Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
v

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Cycle Store x 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Cycle Store x 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Cycle Store x 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
Apartments No 1-11

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Parking Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Parking Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
C10


ltanmm Q

AnonedAa

NOTES:

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT AND THE PROPERTY OF BELL MUNRO
CONSULTING LTD. THE DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED IN PART
OR IN WHOLE WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN AUTHORITY.

2. THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE SCALED BY EITHER CONTRACTORS OR
OTHER CONSULTANTS ANY DIMENSIONAL OR SETTING - OUT
DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE REPORTED TO BELL MUNRO CONSULTING
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION / FABRICATION COMMENCING.

3. THIS DRAWING MUST BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE RELEVANT
BMC SPECIFICATIONS TOGETHER WITH THE APPROPRIATE ARCHITECTS
AND SERVICES CONSULTANTS DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

L. ALL PRECAST CONCRETE KERBS AND QUADRANTS SHALL BE To DOT
SPEC. CLAUSEIIOl & BS7263, IN PRESSED CONCRETE WITH HARDSTONE
AGGREGATE.

5. TYPE A DROPPED KERBS ON RADII OF LESS THAN [2000 SHALL BE
125 X 150 BULLNOSE OF THE APPROPRIATE RADIUS LAID TO 25 OR 6
FACE, AND TRANSITIONS |25 X 225 X 12.5 DEG. SPLAY OF THE
APPROPRIATE RADIUS CUT TO FIT. TRANSITION KERBS TO BE PROVIDED
EITHER SIDE OF DROPPED KERBS.

6. MINIMUM LENGTH OF KERB TO BE 450MM

7. HANDLING AND LAYING OF KERBS AND CHANNELS - THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL AVOID THE MANUAL HANDLING OF PRECAST
CONCRETE KERBS AND CHANNELS BY USING PURPOSE-MADE
MECHANICAL LIFTING EQUIPMENT FOR THEIR HANDLING, LIFTING AND
LAYING

8. ALL TRAFFIC SIGNS TO COMPLY WITH BS873 AND TO BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH TRAFFIC SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL
DIRECTIONS 1994.

HONEYCROCK LANE

9. ALL CARRIAGEWAY MARKINGS SHALL CONFORM TO THE
REQUIREMENTS OF TRAFFIC SIGNS REGULATIONS AND GENERAL
DIRECTIONS 1994.

HTON ROAD

BRIG!

MENT
pROPOSED peveLo”
10

120X2.4M VISBILITY
SPLAYS TO EACH SIDE
OF PRIORITY ROAD

FOOTWAY

I‘\HCIIUQ I O

120x2.4mM VISBILITY
SPLAYS TO EACH SIDE
OF PRIORITY ROAD

PROPOSED

DEVELOPMENT

LAYOUT SHOWN & EXACT LOCATION OF NEW GHOST

ISLAND AND RIGHT TURNING LANE WIDTHS TO BE PLAN SHOWING PROPOSED HIGHWAYS SCHEME LAYOUT
CONFIRMED BY SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS il

7Y sPLavs a0 | o026 | o

165

WITH VISIBILITY SPLAYS

=] ConmENTs |

1:300 @ Al, 1:600 @ A3

BMC

BELL MUNRO
CONSULTING LTD

CONSULTING CIVIL 8 STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS.
TURING HOUSE

EMAIL: CONSULTING@BELLMUNRO.CO.UK
WWW.BELLMUNRO.CO.UK

GOLD PROPERTY DEVELOPMENTS

PROMECT

BRIGHTON ROAD, REDHILL

e

HIGHWAY SCHEME SHOWING
VISIBILITY SPLAYS

§§ %@sﬁh
JH SJB  ASS SHOWN 02/16

JL35L HWOL




991

Office
2

: = BBE
° =
:

Parking Area

Office
Unit

wWC

WC f Lobby \

BRIGHTON ROAD - SALFORDS

NOTES

This drawing and all the information
shown is the property of DK Designs and
shall not be copied whole, or in part, or
used for any other purpose without written
permission of the Company

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE

ALL SUBJECT TO STRUCTURAL
SUBJECT TO PLANNING APPROVAL ENGINEERS CHECKS AND
CALCULATIONS

IF ANY VARIATIONS ARE MADE TO
SPECIFICATION/DRAWINGS WITHOUT DK
DESIGNS KNOWLEDGE, DK DESIGNS WILL

SUBJECT TO BUILDING REGS APPROVAL NOT BE HELD ACCOUNTABLE FOR NON

COMPLIANCE OF PLANNING AND BUILDING

REGUALTIONS

g waj| epuaby

Rev. Date. Remarks

Client.

D(DESIGI\IS Gold Property Developments

FUTURE PROJECTS TODAY ProlectTite

Brighton Road - Salfords - Surrey

7A HEYWOOD HOUSE, Phase 2 - Site Plan
HYDRA BUSINESS PARK, NETHER LANE
0 5 10 15 20 25 SHEFFIELD

535 9zX

TEL:- 07591 206 852
Meters 1: 200 @ A1

EMAIL :- DESIGNS@DK'DESIGNS.CD.UK

WEB:- wwWwW.DK-DESIGNS.CO.UK Scales. Date.

1:200 @ A1 Aug 17

Drawing Number. Revision. Drawn by.

2017-111-02



AutoCAD SHX Text_150
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
v

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Open Space

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Bin Storage

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
Existing MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
 Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
v

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
Cycle Store x 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
Cycle Store x 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
Cycle Store x 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Apartments No 1-11

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
Parking Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
Parking Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
C10


g < ¥ ; ; : 4 . g
i1 il e mH : : :
mq T A I i i i T i [ 10 11 1 i |
(liT— I I i i o o 1 1 il
Front Elevation Side Elevation

Rear Elevation Side Elevation

JOT

—| Parking Areal——

First Floor Plan 161msq |

Office
Unit

Office
1

[

c -~ 118
s H
5

1

WC / Lobby \
V7]

Ground Floor Plan175msq

wWC

g wa)| epuaby

Client.

Thisdraw:::jhse _— D(DESIGI\IS Gold Property Developements

shown is the property of DK Designs and F P T ——
shall not be copied whole, or in part, or roject/Title.
used for any other purpose without written U T U R E R D 'J E B T S D D AY

permission of the Company

Brighton Road - Salfords - Surrey
Phase 2 Scheme

ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE

ALL SUBJECT TO STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERS CHECKS AND

CALCULATIONS SHEFFIELD

7A HEywoob HOUSE,
HYDRA BUSINESS PARK, NETHER LANE

IF ANY VARIATIONS ARE MADE TO S35 92X

SPECIFICATION/DRAWINGS WITHOUT DK TEL:- O7591 206 852

DESIGNS KNOWLEDGE, DK DESIGNS WILL

NOT BE HELD ACCOUNTABLE FOR NON . -
COMPLIANCE OF PLANNING AND BUILDING EMAIL " DESIENS@DK DESIGNS'CD'UK
REGUALTIONS WEB:- WWW.DK-DESIGNS.CO.UK Scales Date.
1:200 1:100 @ A1 Oct 16
Drawing Number. Revision. Drawn by.
2017-111-03



AutoCAD SHX Text_224
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
v

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Open Space

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Bin Storage

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
Existing MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
 Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
v

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
Cycle Store x 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
Cycle Store x 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Cycle Store x 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
Apartments No 1-11

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
Parking Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
Parking Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
C10


891

REGUALTIONS

q %
T
I 1T I 1T 11l 1l 1T 11l 1T 1l 1T I 1T 11 1T
= [LOLIITT [LLTIIITT [LLTTCT ] — — — [
[TITTIT TTITITTT [TTITTT
ITITITT] [TITTITI] TTTITTT
| | [TITTIT TTITITTT [TTITTT
ITITITT] [TITTITI] TTTITTT | | | | | |
[TITIIT [TITITT] [TIITT1
ITITITT] [TITTITI] TTTITTT
[TITTIT TTITITTT [TTITTT
ITITITT] [TITTITI] TTTITTT
[ ] [TITTIT TTITITTT [TTITTT
ITITITT] [TITTITI] [TTITTT
RuuuL ELLLL T L L 1 1 1 L 1 L 1
I
I
I
[T ITTTIITITTIIIIITITIIITIITIIIIIIIIITIIITT]
I
I
T TITTITIITTITITIIITITTITITIITITITIITITITIITT
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Front Elevation Rear Elevation
%7 0 1 2 3 5
Meter's 1:100 @ A3
A
/’%/ \§§\
A ™\
\§\
™R
\§§
W
A
A
LA
A
A
A
LA
A
A
A
9 P =l
»
TTIT]
mE
[TTTT
mE =
[TTTT
mE
[TTT]
mE |
[TTTT
mE
[TTTT
mE ||
[TTT] —
mE
[TTTT —
mE
[TTTT
mE
[TTT]
mE
[TTTT
mE
[TTTT
\‘\‘\‘\‘\‘
I I 1
Date. Remarks
NOTES Client
This drawing and all the information D( D E S I G N S Gold Property Developments
shown is the property of DK Designs and
shall not be copied whole, or in part, or
 emsn o Company FUTURE PROJECTS TODAY|f o=
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE Brlghton Road - Salfords - SUrrey
7a HEYWBOD HOUSE, Phase 2
CALCULATIONS HYDRA BUSINESS PARK, NETHER LANE Elevations
SHEFFIELD
S35 9zX
IF ANY VARIATIONS ARE MADE TO TEL:- 07591 206 852
P
DESIGNS KNGWLEDGE. DK DESIGNS WILL EMAIL :- DESIGNS@DK-DESIGNS.CO.UK
COMPLIANGE OF PLANNING AND BULOING WEB:- www.DK-DESIGNS.CO.UK Soales Do

1:100 @ A3 Aug 17

2014-111-04

Drawing Number. | Revision. Drawn by’

g Wwa)| epuaby




Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT
TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 29 April 2020
J . REPORT OF: HEAD OF PLANNING
- B AUTHOR: James Amos
Reigate & Banstead
BOROUGH COUNCIL | TELEPHONE: | 01737 276188
e AR SR | EMAIL: james.amos@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
AGENDA ITEM: 9 WARD: | Lower Kingswood Tadworth And Walton
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/02598/0UT VALID: 15/01/2020
APPLICANT: Mr Mattocks AGENT: WS Planning Ltd
LOCATION: 76, SHELVERS WAY, TADWORTH, KT20 5QF
DESCRIPTION: | Outline planning application (means of access and layout to be
determined at this stage with indicative scale, appearance and
landscaping) for residential development of 4 no. 4 bed
detached houses. As amended on 17/03/2020.
All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for
detail.

SUMMARY

This is an outline planning application for the erection of 4 detached two storey
dwellings with associated access, parking following the demolition of the existing
bungalow on the site. At this stage, means of access and layout are to be
determined. lllustrative plans have been submitted for the external appearance and
scale of the proposed development. Landscaping is also a reserved matter

The site is located on the northern side of Shelvers Way, at its junction with
Fairacres. The site is one of the largest in the area and is characterised by a mature
garden with large protected trees to the rear and side boundary. The eastern flank
is marked by public footpath.

The existing access to the site would be reused and a new access road would be
constructed leading northwards into the site. One of the proposed dwellings would
be sited broadly on the footprint of the existing bungalow, albeit further forward,
whilst three others would be situated in the rear garden. Each property would be of
two storeys in height, would contain 4 bedrooms and would be provided with an
integral garage and parking, together with private amenity space. A further two
unallocated parking spaces are proposed.

The site falls in level from the highway and then is generally flat before rising to the
rear boundary.

169



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

Each of the proposed dwellings would have a plot size that would fall within the
range of sizes in the area. The proposed dwellings would be of a traditional design
which would complement neighbouring properties in the area. Each dwelling would
be provided with a garage and parking spaces and with good levels of private
amenity space. Existing planting and protected trees on the property boundary
would also be retained and protected.

The proposals would make efficient use of this site for new housing without harming
the amenities of neighbouring properties and are considered acceptable.

The applicants have also offered to re-surface the public footpath which adjoins the
application site as a public benefit.

RECOMMENDATION
Subject to the completion of all documentation required to create a planning
obligation under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended to secure:

(i) The re-surfacing of the footpath adjacent to the site;

(i) The Council’s legal costs in preparing the agreement;
Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions.
In the event that a satisfactorily completed obligation is not received by 29" July

2020 or such longer period as may be agreed, the Head of Places and Planning be
authorised to refuse permission for the following reason

170



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

Consultations:

Highway Authority: The County Highway Authority has assessed the application on
safety, capacity and policy grounds and is satisfied that the application would not
have a material impact on the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway
with respect of access, net additional traffic generation and parking. The County
Highway Authority therefore has no highway requirements subject to conditions.

Surrey CC Rights of Way officer — We welcome the removal of the hedge which will
improve visibility and reduce the need for maintenance to ensure the required width
of the path is available. It will also enable easier access to the right of way by
residents. The recorded width of the footpath is 8’ and this must remain available at
all times. The applicant has offered to improve the surface of the public footpath for
30m from Shelvers Way to benefit residents of the development, but as they are not
the landowner, this would need to be secured by section 106 agreement or similar.
They state that they are always keen to work with developers to improve local
facilities for the community and would therefore invite the applicants to undertake to
improve the entire path between Shelvers Way and The Rise. The applicant should
contact the Countryside Access officer to discuss this further if they are willing to
proceed.

In addition, further comments are made as follows:

e While development is underway, safe public access must be maintained
along the public footpath as all times;

e There are to be no obstructions on the public right of way at any time, this is
to include vehicles, plant, scaffolding or the temporary storage of materials
and/or chemicals;

e Should the applicants feel they are unable to ensure public safety while work
is underway, a temporary closure may be necessary. A minimum of 3 weeks’
notice must be given and there is a charge.

e Any alteration to, or replacement of, the existing boundary with the public
right of way, or erection of new fence lines, must be done in consultation with
the rights of way group.

Tadworth and Walton Residents Association — Accept that there is development
potential on this large site but consider that as originally proposed, the site is
overdeveloped with a cramped form of development because of the constraints on
the site. In particular:

e Proposed dwellings are too close to peripheral trees. In the case of plots 4
and 5, the trees are high with a canopy and root spread which covers most of
the gardens. The dwellings should be removed further from the northern
boundary. The same applies to plots 2, 3 and 4 which will suffer from a loss
of light and afternoon sunshine. Likely to be pressure to heavily prune or
remove these trees in the future. Removal of one of the dwellings on plots 2
or 3 would give less cramped layout with more open amenity space.

e The parking is inadequate for 4 bedroom houses. Adopted parking standards
require 2.5 spaces per unit, and 3 of the units only have 2 spaces which are

171



Planning Committee
29 April 2020

Agenda Item 9

Agenda Item: 9
19/02598/OUT

unsatisfactory as they would require the car on the drive to be moved to
enable a car in the garage to be moved. This area has low accessibility , and
there are few unallocated spaces which will be needed for visitors and
servicing.

The plans show a public footpath within the layout, an indication of
overdevelopment of the site. Unclear who would maintain this and also the
visual impact.

Narrow access not wide enough for two cars, and turning head appears to be
of inadequate size;

Cumulative impact of a number of developments in the area needs to be
assessed.

The site has already suffered a loss of tree cover, particularly from the middle
of the site, which it was preferred should have been retained;

Although indicative, the houses appear to have been designed with roof
space accommodation in mind. This should be avoided as the parking
requirements of large dwellings could not be met;

Would prefer to see a better mix of dwelling sizes;

Potential of overlooking from plot 5 to the garden of 74A, Shelvers Way.

Representations:

Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 16" January 2020 and a site notice
was posted 12" February 2020. Neighbours were re-notified on the revised plans for
a 14 day period commencing 18" March 2020.

39 responses have been received raising the following issues on the originally
submitted plans:

Issue

Inadequate parking

No need for the development
Noise & disturbance
Inconvenience during construction

Out of character with surrounding area
Increase in traffic and congestion

Overdevelopment
Hazard to highway safety

Harm to Conservation Area (the site is not
located in a conservation area)

Overlooking and loss of privacy

Health fears

Response

See paragraph 6.19
See paragraph 6.1

See paragraph 6.15
See paragraph 6.18
See paragraph 6.3 — 6.11
See paragraph 6.20

See paragraph 6.3 — 6.11
See paragraph 6.20

See paragraph 6.3 - 6.11

See paragraph 6.12 - 6.18

See paragraph 6.12 - 6.18

172



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9

29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT
Poor design See paragraph 6.3 — 6.11

Loss of/harm to trees See paragraph 6.9 - 6.10

Harm to wildlife habitat See paragraph 6.22
Drainage/sewage capacity See paragraph 6.17

Flooding See paragraph 6.17

Adverse impact on services for residents See paragraph 6.24

Harm to Green Belt/countryside The site is not located within the

green belt / countryside

Property devaluation This is not a material planning
consideration

No need for development / alternative location  Each application must be assessed
or proposal preferred on its own merits

Covenant conflict This is not a material planning
consideration

Loss of private view This is not a material planning
consideration

1 email was received expressing support for the proposals.

With regards to the revised plans which reduced the number of units proposed to 4
detached dwellings, a further 20 responses were received. The comments generally
reiterate the previous objections made and state that the reduction of 1 units from
the original submission does not address the concerns raised.

1.0 Site and Character Appraisal

1.1 The application site comprises a detached bungalow within a spacious plot
located at the corner of Shelvers Way and Fairacres. The dwelling on the site
is set back from the frontage with a vehicular access point close to the
eastern boundary. The rear garden is extensive and contains a large amount
of mature planting, including a number of protected trees, most of which are
located close to the site boundaries.

1.2  The site is located in a residential area which is characterised by two storey
detached houses. Fairacres is a newer development located to the west and

north of the site. The eastern boundary adjoins public footpath which runs
between Fairacres and Tadorne Road.

2.0 Added Value

173



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT
2.1 Improvements secured at the pre-application stage: the applicant entered into

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

pre-application discussions with the Council (PAM/19/00424). Advice was
provided regarding the quantum of development and the proposed layout The
applicants were advised to reduce the number of units on the site from 7 to a
more acceptable number, and on the layout of development to provide a
street frontage to Shelvers Way, on the impact of the proposals on trees on
the site and on the impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties..

Improvements secured during the course of the application: During the
course of the application, the number o units on the site has been further
reduced from 5 to 4 and the relationship with trees on the site has bene
improved.

Further improvements could be secured through the use of conditions and a
legal agreement to secure improvements to the surface of the public footpath
adjoining the site.

Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
There is no planning history of relevance.
Proposal and Design Approach

This is a full application for the demolition of the existing property on the site
and the erection of 4 two storey detached houses, each with a garage and
parking, a new access road, landscaping and amenity areas.

A design and access statement should illustrate the process that has led to
the development proposal, and justify the proposal in a structured way, by
demonstrating the steps taken to appraise the context of the proposed
development. It expects applicants to follow a four-stage design process
comprising:

Assessment;

Involvement;

Evaluation; and

Design.

Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below:

Assessment The character of the surrounding area is assessed as
Site features meriting retention are listed as protected
trees.

Involvement No community consultation took place.

Evaluation The other development options considered were a
greater number of units on the site, including smaller
dwellings.

Design The applicant’s reasons for choosing the proposal from

174



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

the available options were informed by pre-application
consultation with the Council which advised smaller
number of units in a more spacious layout, which
protected existing trees on the site.

4.4 Further details of the development are as follows:

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

Site area 0.35ha
Existing parking spaces 2
Proposed parking spaces 12
Parking standard 10
Number of affordable units 0

Net increase in dwellings 3
Existing site density 3 /ha
Proposed site density 11.4/ha
Density of the surrounding area 9.5/ha

Policy Context

Designation
Urban area
Tree Preservation Officer RE538
Footpath 31

Reigate and Banstead Core Strateqgy

CS1(Sustainable Development)

CS10 (Sustainable Development),
CS11 (Sustainable Construction),
CS12 (Infrastructure Delivery),

CS13 (Housing Delivery)

CS14 (Housing Needs)

CS17 (Travel Options and accessibility)

Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019

DES1 (Design of New development)

DES2 ( Residential garden land development)

DES5 (Delivering high quality homes)

DESS8 (Construction Management)

TAP1 (Access, Parking and Servicing)

CCF1 (Climate Change Mitigation)

NHE3 (Protecting trees, woodland areas and natural habitats)
INF3 (Electronic communication networks)

175




Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/0OUT
5.4  Other Material Considerations

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide
Vehicle and Cycle Parking
Guidance 2018

Other Human Rights Act 1998
Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010

Assessment

The application site is situated within the urban area where there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and where the principle of
such residential development is acceptable in land use terms.

The main issues to consider are:

Design appraisal

Neighbour amenity

Highway matters

Sustainable Construction
Impact on Bio-diversity
Affordable housing
Community Infrastructure Levy

Design appraisal

DMP Policy DES1 relates to the Design of New Development and requires
new development to be of a high quality design that makes a positive
contribution to the character and appearance of its surroundings. New
development should promote and reinforce local distinctiveness and should
respect the character of the surrounding area. The policy states that new
development will be expected to use high quality materials, landscaping and
building detailing and have due regard to the layout, density, plot sizes,
building siting, scale, massing, height, and roofscapes of the surrounding
area, the relationship to neighbouring buildings, and important views into and
out of the site.

Policy DES2 relates to Residential Garden Land development. It states that
development of residential garden land, including infilling schemes and
development on back garden land, will be required to comply with the
following criteria: Proposals must:

a. be designed to respect the scale, form and external materials of
existing buildings in the locality to reinforce local distinctiveness

176



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

b. be of a height, bulk, mass, and siting to ensure the development is in
keeping with the existing street scene

c. forinfilling, incorporate plot widths, front garden depths, building
orientation and spacing between buildings in keeping with the
prevailing layout in the locality

d. provide well-designed access roads, with space for suitable
landscaping and maintain separation to neighbouring properties

e. retain mature trees and hedges, and other significant existing
landscape features, and include grass verges and street planting that
supports wildlife and maintains green corridors

f. demonstrate they have been carefully designed to ensure a good
standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants; and

g. not create an undue disruption to the character and appearance of an
existing street frontage, particularly where the form and rhythm of
development within the existing street frontage is uniform.

The site comprises a large plot located on the northern side of Shelvers Way.
There is a variety of dwelling types and styles in the area, with older
development fronting onto Shelvers Way and more recent infill development
located to the north of the site. As a result, plot sizes vary with longer plots
retained for those original properties on Shelvers Way and shorter plots for
infill development. The proposals in this seek permission to sub-divide the
existing plot into 4 smaller plots, each of which would be similar or larger than
neighbouring properties in Fairacres and The Rise to the north and east. In
this regard there would be no conflict with adopted Policy DES2.

The proposed layout includes a new dwelling broadly on the footprint of the
existing property on the site, with the front elevation orientated south. The
proposed access road into the site utilises the existing access point to the
property. The dwellings at the rear of the site would be generally screened
from view from the highway by frontage properties and as a result, it is
considered that the development would be in keeping with the existing street
scene.

The design of the dwellings would be a traditional two storey, similar to others
in the area. The illustrative plans submitted with the outline application show
dwellings with pitched roofs with a ridge height ranging from 9.6m to 10.2m.
Two types of house types are shown, one of which has half hipped roofs with
the second type incorporating fully hipped roofs. Given the mixed variety of
building forms and styles in the area, it is considered that the illustrative
proposals in this case would be in keeping with the visual appearance of the
area.

An indication of the materials to be used has been provided including red
bricks and tile hanging to the main elevations and clay roof tiles. These
materials would be reflective of those in the area and would provide and
appropriate finish to the proposed development.

The Council’s tree officer reviewed the plans as originally submitted and
noted that, whilst the location of each dwelling is located outside the RPA of

177



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

the nearby trees, the number of houses would have an impact on the long
term retention of the existing tree stock and prevent a meaningful landscape
being implemented. He also noted that permission has been granted to
remove T19 and a replacement tree is to be planted in the same position,
however the location of plots 4 and 5 were likely to prevent it from reaching its
full potential. Furthermore, T15 and T18 dominate the rear garden of plot 5
and this will result in pressure to undertake works to increase light and
alleviate concerns that occur when trees dominate residential gardens. It was
recommended that a reduction in the number of dwellings would allow a
landscape scheme to be implemented and reduce the post development
pressure on the trees.

Following the receipt of revised plans which reduced the number of units to 4,
it was noted that an updated arboricultural report by DAA identifies the extent
of pruning that will be required to ensure there is adequate distance between
tree T34 and house 1 without having a drastic impact on its appearance.
Whilst the trees to be removed may be low quality specimens, it would not be
unreasonable for landscape scheme to include a diverse selections of tree
species of various size that will contribute to the local green infrastructure. In
the event that outline planning permission was granted, landscaping would be
a reserved matter for approval at a later date.

Overall, the proposed development would be of appropriate scale and design
and would not be unduly detrimental to the street scene of Shelvers Way or
the character of the wider locality. It therefore complies with policies DES1
and DES2 in this respect.

Neighbour amenity

In addition to the comments noted above DMP Policy DES1 also requires
new development to provide an appropriate environment for future occupants
whilst not adversely impacting upon the amenity of occupants of existing
nearby buildings, including by way of overbearing, obtrusiveness,
overshadowing, overlooking and loss of privacy. This guidance is reiterated in
Policy DES2.

The proposed dwellings would possess a sufficient level of separation from
dwellings neighbouring the site so as to not appear overbearing or cause
significant overshadowing. At the front of the site, plot 1 would benefit from
good separation to its neighbours to either side with a gap of at least 20m to
no.1 Fairacres to the west and approximately 14m to 74a, Shelvers Way to
the east. At the rear of the site, the proposed dwelling on plot 3 would be
located approximately 23m from the rear elevation of no. 8 Fairacres, whilst
the proposed dwelling on plot 4 would be approximately 29m from the rear
elevation of no 14, Fairacres. @ To the south, the front elevation of the
dwelling proposed for plot 4 would face towards the rear elevation of 74A,
Shelvers Way, albeit at a distance of over 30m at first floor level. Although
the Council does not have specific guidance on distances between dwellings,
at least 20m would be expected to prevent significant overlooking.

178



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT
6.14 The separation distances, together with the retained vegetation on the

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

boundary would ensure that the amenities of residents in neighbouring
properties are not significantly impacted.

The additional vehicles that would result from the development and access
road are of a sufficient distance from existing and proposed dwellings so as to
not cause a significant level of noise and disturbance to those properties.

In conclusion the proposal would not have a significant adverse effect upon
existing neighbouring properties and would accord with the provisions of DMP
Policies DES1 and DES2.

Objections have been received due to the loss of private views and loss of
property value due to the proposed development, but these are not a material
planning considerations. The existence or otherwise of covenants or
otherwise on the site is not a matter for a planning application. Concern has
been raised from neighbouring properties regarding fear of crime, flooding
and drainage/sewage. The proposal would result in the redevelopment of rear
gardens, new boundary treatment is proposed, and the development is not
considered to cause crime issues. The site is not located within a flood zone
and sewage capacity would be assessed at building control stage. The
proposal is considered to have a satisfactory impact with regards flooding and
drainage/sewerage capacity. It is noted a condition could be applied to a
grant of permission to ensure that sustainable drainage is present on the site
and an appropriate surface water drainage scheme implemented.

Objection has been raised on the grounds of inconvenience during the
construction period. Whilst it is acknowledged there may be a degree of
disruption during the construction phase, the proposal would not warrant
refusal on this basis and statutory nuisance legislation exists to control any
significant disturbance caused during the construction of the proposal. A
construction method statement could be secured by planning condition in the
event that planning permission was to be granted.

Highway matters

The proposed dwellings would be accessed from a new access drive which
would utilise the existing access into the site. In respect of parking, the
proposed development would provide sufficient off-street parking on-site: a
minimum of two spaces, including a garage would be provided for each
dwelling with an additional 2 unallocated spaces on the site. Overall, it is
considered that the proposals offer sufficient and practical parking provision
on-site such that the proposed development should not exacerbate existing
parking stress or constraints on Shelvers Way.

Whilst concerns have been raised by surrounding residents in respect of
parking and highway safety, the County Highway Authority has undertaken an
assessment in terms of the likely net additional traffic generation, access
arrangements and parking provision and are satisfied that the application
would not have a material impact on the safety and operation of the adjoining

179



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

public highway. The County Highway Authority therefore has no highway
requirements subject to conditions

Sustainable Construction

DMP Policy CCF1 relates to climate change mitigation and requires new
development to meet the national water efficiency standard of
110litres/person/day and to achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the
Dwelling Emission Rate (DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as
defined in Part L1A of the 2013 Building Regulations. No evidence has been
submitted to demonstrate that that the proposed development can achieve
either of the two requirements. However, in the event that planning
permission was to be granted, a condition could be imposed to seek such
information prior to the commencement of development. In this regard, there
would be no conflict with DMP Policy CCF1.

Impact on Bio-diversity

Concern has been raised regarding the potential for harm to wildlife. Bats and
their roosts are protected by law and the protected species legislation applies
independently of planning permission. Whilst the proposal would result in the
redevelopment of rear gardens, it is not considered likely to result in
significant impact on existing wildlife habitats and may provide opportunities
to incorporate features into the design which are beneficial. Measures to
enhance biodiversity within the site could be designed into the development
in accordance with para 118 of the NPPF and secured by planning
conditions.

Affordable Housing

DMP Policy DES6 requires affordable housing to be provided be provided on
housing developments of 11 units or more. As this proposal is for a net
increase in the number of units of 3, no affordable housing is required.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a fixed charge which the Council
will be collecting from some new developments from 1 April 2016. It will raise
money to help pay for a wide range of infrastructure including schools, road,
public transport and community facilities which are needed to support new
development. This development would be CIL liable and the exact amount
would be determined and collected after the grant of planning permission.

CONDITIONS

1.

Approval of details of the scale, appearance and the landscaping of the site
(hereinafter called the “reserved matters”) shall be obtained from the Local
Planning Authority in writing before any development is commenced and
carried out as approved. Plans and particulars of the reserved matters
referred to above, shall be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority

180



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee
29 April 2020

Agenda Item: 9
19/02598/OUT

before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. The
development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of
five years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two
years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be
approved, whichever is the later.

Reason: To comply with Article 5 of the Town and Country Planning (General
Development Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and
re-enacting that Order) and Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51(2) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

Plan type Reference Version Date Received
Location Plan J0003165-DD-01 A 30/2/2019
Existing block plan J0003165-DD-02 A 30/2/2019
Existing site layout J0003165-DD-03 A 30/2/2019
Existing house plans J0003165-DD-04 A 30/2/2019
Existing house elevations J0003165-DD-05 A 30/2/2019
Existing outbuildings J0003165-DD-06 A 30/2/2019
Proposed block plan J0003165-DD-07 B 18/03/2020
Proposed site plan (Ground) J0003165-DD-08 B 18/03/2020
Proposed site layout (First) J0003165-DD-09 B 18/03/2020
House type 1 proposed floor plans J0003165-DD-10 B 18/03/2020
House type 1 proposed elevations J0003165-DD-11 B 18/03/2020
Proposed house type 1.1 J0003165-DD-12 B 18/03/2020
House type 2 proposed floor plans J0003165-DD-13 B 18/03/2020
House type 2 proposed elevations J0003165-DD-14 B 18/03/2020
Existing and proposed street J0003165-DD-17 B 18/03/2020
scene

Proposed site plan (tech info) J0003165-DD-18 B 18/03/2020

Reason: To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out
in accord with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning
Practice Guidance.

3. No development shall take place until the developer obtains the Local
Planning Authority’s written approval of details of both existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished ground floor levels of the buildings.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved levels.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details
of the proposal and its relationship with adjoining development and to
safeguard the visual amenities of the locality with regard to Reigate and
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 policy DES1.

181



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT
4. No development shall take place above ground level until written details of

the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, including
fenestration and roof, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, and on development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details
of the proposal and its relationship with adjoining development and to
safeguard the visual amenities of the locality with regard to Reigate and
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 policy DES1.

No development shall commence including demolition and or groundworks
preparation until a detailed, scaled Tree Protection Plan (TPP) and the
related Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) is submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). These shall include details of
the specification and location of exclusion fencing, ground protection and any
construction activity that may take place within the Root Protection Areas of
trees (RPA) shown to scale on the TPP, including the installation of service
routings. The AMS shall also include a pre-start meeting, supervisory regime
for their implementation & monitoring with an agreed reporting process to the
LPA. All works shall be carried out in strict accordance with these details
when approved.

Reason: To ensure good arboricultural practice in the interests of the
maintenance of the character and appearance of the area and to comply with
British Standard 5837:2012 ‘Trees in Relation to Design, demolition and
Construction — Recommendations’ and policies DES1 and NHE3 of the
Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management
Plan, to include details of:

(a) parking for venhicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors

(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials

(c) storage of plant and materials

(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)

(e) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway

(f) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and a
commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused

(g) on-site turning for construction vehicles

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the
construction of the development.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Policies DES1 and TAP1 Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

182



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT
7. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until

10.

11.

the proposed vehicular access to Shelvers Way has been constructed in
accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead
Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans
for vehicles to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and
leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking /turning areas shall be
retained and maintained for their designated purposes.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead
Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

The development shall not be occupied until a plan indicating the positions,
design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
boundary treatment shall be completed before the occupation of the
development hereby permitted.

Reason: To preserve the visual amenity of the area and protect neighbouring
residential amenities with regard to the policy DES1 of the Reigate and
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015, (or any Order revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification), no first floor windows, dormer
windows or rooflights other than those expressly authorised by this
permission shall be constructed.

Reason: To preserve the visual amenity of the area and protect neighbouring
residential amenities with regard to the policy DES1 of the Reigate and
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification), no extensions permitted by Classes
A B and C of Part 1 of the Second Schedule of the 2015 Order shall be
constructed.

183



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

12.

13.

14.

Reason: To preserve the visual amenity of the area and protect neighbouring
residential amenities with regard to the policy DES1 of the Reigate and
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until
each dwelling has been provided with a fast charge socket (current minimum
requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 Amp single
phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a scheme to be submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter retained
and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework
2019 and Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17.

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until

an Energy and Water Efficiency Statement has been submitted to and

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall

detail how the development will:

a) Ensure that the potential water consumption by occupants of each new
dwelling does not exceed 110 litres per person per day

b) Achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the Dwelling Emission Rate
(DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as defined in Part L1A of the
2013 Building Regulations

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
and any measures specific to an individual dwelling(s) shall be implemented,
installed and operational prior to its occupation.

Reason: To ensure that the development supports the efficient use of
resources and minimises carbon emissions with regard to Policy CS10 of the
Reigate & Banstead Core Strategy 2014 and Policy CCF1 of the Reigate &
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

All dwellings within the development hereby approved shall be provided with

the necessary infrastructure to facilitate connection to a high speed

broadband. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning

Authority, this shall include as a minimum:

a) A broadband connection accessed directly from the nearest exchange or
cabinet

b) Cabling and associated installations which enable easy access for future
repair, replacement or upgrading.

Reason: To ensure that the development promotes access to, and the
expansion of, a high quality electronic communications network in
accordance with Policy INF3 of the Reigate & Banstead Development
Management Plan 2019.

184



Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT
15.  Notwithstanding the indicative elevations submitted, all dwellings shall have

fully hipped roofs

Reason:

To prevent a bulky appearance and reflect the local vernacular with regards
Policy DES1 of the Development Management Plan 2019.

INFORMATIVES

1.

Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as
an integral part of new development. Further information is available at
www.firesprinklers.info.

The applicant is encouraged to provide renewable technology within the
development hereby permitted in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

The use of a landscape/arboricultural consultant is considered essential to
provide acceptable submissions in respect of the above relevant condition.
The planting of trees and shrubs shall be in keeping with the character and
appearance of the locality.

The use of a suitably qualified arboricultural consultant is essential to provide
acceptable submissions in respect of the arboricultural tree condition above.
All works shall comply with the recommendations and guidelines contained
within British Standard 5837

The applicant is advised that prior to the initial occupation of any individual
dwelling hereby permitted, to contact the Council’s Neighbourhood Services
team to confirm the number and specification of recycling and refuse bins that
are required to be supplied by the developer. The Council’s Neighbourhood
Services team can be contacted on 01737 276292 or via the Council's
website at http://www.reigate-
banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling _and waste
developers quidance

You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be

taken during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking:

(a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be carried out
between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00hrs to 13:00hrs
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any Public and/or Bank Holidays;

(b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used on
site. Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are
necessary, they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels;

(c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) above;

(d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance
beyond the site boundary. Such uses include the use of hoses to damp
down stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate airborne dust,
to damp down during stone/slab cutting; and the use of bowsers and
wheel washes;

(e) There should be no burning on site;

185


http://www.firesprinklers.info/
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance

Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

(f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours stated
above; and

(g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the highway
and contractors’ vehicles should be parked with care so as not to cause
an obstruction or block visibility on the highway.

Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained from
the Council’s Environmental Health Services Unit.

In order to meet these requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the
Council recommends that this site is registered with the Considerate Constructors
Scheme - www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration.

7. The applicant is advised that the essential requirements for an acceptable
communication plan forming part of a Method of Construction Statement are
viewed as: (i) how those likely to be affected by the site's activities are
identified and how they will be informed about the project, site activities and
programme; (ii) how neighbours will be notified prior to any noisy/disruptive
work or of any significant changes to site activity that may affect them; (iii) the
arrangements that will be in place to ensure a reasonable telephone
response during working hours; (iv) the name and contact details of the site
manager who will be able to deal with complaints; and (v) how those who are
interested in or affected will be routinely advised regarding the progress of
the work. Registration and operation of the site to the standards set by the
Considerate Constructors Scheme (http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/) would help
fulfil these requirements.

8. The applicant is advised that the Borough Council is the street naming and
numbering authority and you will need to apply for addresses. This can be
done by contacting the Address and Gazetteer Officer prior to construction
commencing. You will need to complete the relevant application form and
upload supporting documents such as site and floor layout plans in order that
official street naming and numbering can be allocated as appropriate. If no
application is received the Council has the authority to allocate an address.
This also applies to replacement dwellings. If you are building a scheme of
more than 5 units please also supply a CAD file (back saved to 2010) of the
development based on OS Grid References. Full details of how to apply for

addresses can be found
http://www.reigatebanstead.gov.uk/info/20277/street_naming_and_numberin
g

REASON FOR PERMISSION

The development hereby permitted has been assessed against development plan
policies CS1, CS10, CS11, CS13, CS14, CS17, DES,1 DES2, DESS5, DESS, TAP1,
NHE3, CCF1, INF3 and material considerations, including third party
representations. It has been concluded that the development is in accordance with
the development plan and there are no material considerations that justify refusal in
the public interest.

186


http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration

Agenda Item 9

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 9
29 April 2020 19/02598/OUT

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development where possible, as set out within
the National Planning Policy Framework.

187



Agend
19/02598/0UT - 76 Shlsarsa WIS Tadworth




681

1

14 22

19

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for all structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

12

10

v
o™ Plan Legend

Tarmac

Permeable concrete
block paving (parking)

21

House 4

23

Grass

Existing trees

Proposed trees

OI-Iouse 3

310

“\

—\

Site Plan with Technical information As Proposed

O
0 ©
.“ed‘\f'

e

\\ Root protection area
U Unallocated parking

Visitor parking

\
= T \
= ] \
EH o2 3 i

Proposed 1.8m close board fence

Lo
House 2 | ~ |
E ;
O b @ 000

ooo I

-

850

72

Proposed 1.8m close board fence

Slab paving (paths/patio)

Amendments following
B |17.03.20 cient's comments
Elctia Amendments following
AL A 120.12.19 cient's comments
Rev | Date Description

% +3480mm
161.28 AOD

0 5 10 15 20 25m
SCALE 1:250

m ™ WS PLANNING &
ARCHITECTURE

]

Europe House
Bancroft Road,

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311

Reigate

Surrey. RH2 7RP www.wspa.co.uk
Date Drawn By
November 2019 1]

Scale Checked
1:250@A1 LB

Client

Andrew and Chris Mattocks

Project

76 Shelvers Way
Tadworth

KT20 5QF

Title
As Proposed
Site Plan

With Technical information

Drawing. No.

Rev.

J003165-DD-18 | B

6 Wa)| epuaby



061

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.

Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.
Refer to Structural Engineers details for all structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Plan Legend

Tarmac

Permeable concrete
block paving (parking)

Slab paving (paths/patio)

Grass

Existing trees

Proposed trees

Proposed hedge

L

Unallocated parking

Visitor parking

6 Waj| epuaby

Amendments following
B 117.03.20 Case Officer's

Amendments following
A 1250220 recommendations from tree survey.

Rev | Date Description

WS PLANNING &
m 5 ARCHITECTURE

Europe House

Bancroft Road, T. 01737 225711
Reigate F. 01737 226311
Surrey. RH2 7RP Www.wspa.co.uk
Date Drawn By
November 2019 J]

Scale Checked
1:250@A1 LB

Client

Andrew and Chris Mattocks

Project

76 Shelvers Way
Tadworth

KT20 5QF

A\

—\

Title
As Proposed

Site Plan

With Ground Floor Plan

0 5 10 15 20 25m

. . Drawing. No. Rev.
Site Plan with Ground Floor Plan As Proposed e e | ,003165.00.08 | B




Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

(Type 2)

House 3
(Type 1.1)

Turning

House 2
(Type 2)

16T

(Type 1)

Proposed
vehicular access

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

C LML DNLINAVY
o Wwigl EpPuoby

B |17.03.2020 | Amendments following CO's comments

A | 20.12.2019 | Amendments as per client's comments

Rev | Date Description

™ WS PLANNING &
|.|.| sl ARCHITECTURE

Europe House

Bancroft Road, T. 01737 225711
Reigate F. 01737 226311
Surrey. RH2 7RP www.wspa.co.uk
Date Drawn By
November 2019 1]

Scale Checked
1:500@A3 LB

Client

Andrew & Christopher Mattocks

Project

76 Shelvers Way
Tadworth
KT20 5QF

Title
As Proposed
Site Block Plan

Site Block Plan As Proposed SCALE 1:500

Drawing. No. Rev.

J003165-DD-07 | B




c6T

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.

Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.
Refer to Structural Engineers details for all structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

6 Wa)| epuaby

>
Existing Street Scene E =
& | S|
| o
| @ |
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
} } 169.8
| \
| \
\ \
| \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ 166.47 \
166.1 [%5 } 16%.82
— \
. \ 1
= \ |
E ‘ = i 1
= | _ :
- | L : rrororipg A .-—1rm. — 4>
— \ I | G 11—
= = = é{%ﬁ (
= = 1] S
1 Fairacres Fairacres Site 76 Shelvers Way 74A Shelvers Way
>
Proposed Street Scene g R}
& | 2|
| o
\ @ |
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
\ \
: :
| 169.78 \ 169.8
| |
| \
\ \
| \
\ |
| \
\ \
\
166.1 ‘
— \
— \
= | : I I : s S T :
— — A e S T B = Amendments following
= } D D[D famu D D D m B |17.03.20 Case Officer's comments
— = — Amendments following
— } = = —— L =l : : A 120.1219 | Genvs comments
- | M Q m m m H H ‘ J—‘—MH—MQJ— Rev | Date Description
= T AR s T T === I m I_ WS PLANNING &
i 2EIGE, = ] B el ARCHITECTURE
%35%*%@"“ Es“ﬁg | T Europe House
e - Bancroft Road, T. 01737 225711
T Reigate F. 01737 226311
@ u u _____________________________________________________________ T Surrey. RH2 7RP WWW.WSpa.co.uk
e I B | Date Drawn By
»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»» } November 2019 1]
_____________ ‘ Scale Checked
\ 1:100@A1 LB
} Client
Andrew and Chris Mattocks
1 Fairacres Fairacres Site 76 Shelvers Way 74A Shelvers Way
Project
76 Shelvers Way
Tadworth
KT20 5QF
Title

As Existing & As Proposed
Street scene

- . ‘ Drawing. No. Rev.
Street Scenes As Existing & As Proposed | e 0D | B




et

House Type 1.1 (House 3) As Proposed

Utility/
Laundry/

——

i Wi W i
- ——

&
I

O
O SSges e,
O

38.5m2

Hall

First Floor Plan

(B

Kitchen/Living/Dining

— 19m2

i

— ”‘ Reception [

3

Side Elevation

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.

Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.
Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

House Type 1.1
4/5Bedroom 8Person
Area: 198m2
Garage: 33.5m2

(GF Plan and rest of
elevations as per
House Type 1)

C LML DNLINAVY
o Wwigl EpPuoby

B |17.03.2020 | Amendments as per CO's comments

A |20.12.2019 as per client's

Rev|Date Description

lu l_ WS PLANNING &
wedl ARCHITECTURE

ot Rond T ow737 25711

Reigate F. 01737 226311

Surrey. RH2 7RP www.wspa.co.uk

Date Drawn By

November 2019 1]

Scale Checked

1:100@A3 LB

Client

Andrew and Chris Mattocks

Project

76 Shelvers Way

Tadworth

KT20 5QF

Title

As Proposed
House Type 1.1 (House 3)

SCALE 1:100

Drawing. No. Rev.

J003165-DD-12 | B




V6T

Clay roof tiles

White barge board

White soffit

T

|

I

Stone cilt

Red brick:

N\

[T

L 1

il

|
— 1 1
|

Front Elevation

L

(TR

Side Elevation

Rear Elevation

Indicative Elevations House Type 3 (House 4) As Proposed

A1l

W W

Side Elevation

SCALE 1:100

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.

Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.
Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

P IR Eat IR s 2l B a) 21V}
o W9l EPuUobYy

A |20.12.2019 as per client's

Rev|Date Description

lu l_ WS PLANNING &
wedl ARCHITECTURE

ot Rond T ow737 25711

Reigate F. 01737 226311

Surrey. RH2 7RP WWW.Wspa.co.uk

Date Drawn By

November 2019 1]

Scale Checked

1:100@A3 LB

Client

Andrew and Chris Mattocks

Project

76 Shelvers Way

Tadworth

KT20 5QF

Title

As Proposed
Indicative Elevations
House Type 3 (House 4)

Drawing. No. Rev.

J003165-DD-16 | A




Clay roof tiles

White soffit

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.
Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.

("\

Vertically hung tiles

(1]
[
|

[ 1]

I
L]

—
i

Brick soldier course

Red Brick

G6T

— 1
(-]
|

Front Elevation

pd

E&x
E_ 1 [

il

Rear Elevation

Indicative Elevations House Type 1 (House 1) As Proposed

Side Elevation

R\

o
©

N §

Side Elevation

This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

C LML DNLINAVY
o Wwigl EpPuoby

B |17.03.2020 | Amendments as per CO's comments

A |20.12.2019 as per client's

Rev|Date Description

lu l_ WS PLANNING &
wedl ARCHITECTURE

ot Rond T ow737 25711

Reigate F. 01737 226311

Surrey. RH2 7RP WWW.Wspa.co.uk

Date Drawn By

November 2019 1]

Scale Checked

1:100@A3

Client

Andrew and Chris Mattocks

Project

76 Shelvers Way

Tadworth

KT20 5QF

Title

As Proposed
Indicative Elevations
House Type 1 (House 1)

SCALE 1:100

Drawing. No. Rev.

J003165-DD-11 | B




961

Clay roof tiles

White barge board

Lead cill

|
o
]
[ ]
]

Vertically hung tiles

Red brick————————

— 1 1

Front Elevation

|

Rear Elevation

Indicative Elevations House Type 2 (Houses 2 & 4) As Proposed

EN

o
o)

Side Elevation

SN

/ BN

o
2]

—

Side Elevation

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.

Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.
Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

P IR Eat IR s 2l B a) 21V}
o W9l EPuUobYy

B |17.03.2020 | Amendments as per CO's comments

A | 20.12.2019 as per client's

Rev | Date Description

WS PLANNING &
m 5 ARCHITECTURE

Europe House

Bancroft Road, T. 01737 225711
Reigate F. 01737 226311
Surrey. RH2 7RP WWW.Wspa.co.uk
Date Drawn By
November 2019 1]

Scale Checked
1:100@A3 LB

Client

Andrew and Chris Mattocks
Project

76 Shelvers Way
Tadworth

KT20 5QF

Title

As Proposed

Indicative Elevations
10m | House Type 2 (H. 2 & 4)

|
#—i—i—i—id Drawing. No. Rev.

SCALE 1:100

J003165-DD-14 | B




Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F
TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE: 29 April 2020
REPORT OF: | HEAD OF PLANNING
- Nk AUTHOR: Clare Chappell
Reigate & Banstead
Banstead | Horley | Redhill | Reigate . .
s e | EMAIL: Clare.Chappell@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
AGENDA ITEM: 10 WARD: | Banstead Village
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/02553/F VALID: 9 January 2020
APPLICANT: Mr Weldin AGENT: PRA
LOCATION: LAND ADJACENT TO THE FORMER ROYAL MAIL DELIVERY
OFFICE REAR OF 28 HIGH STREET BANSTEAD SURREY SM7
2LQ
DESCRIPTION: | Erection of block comprising 2 new apartments. As amended
on 03/03/2020, 19/03/2020 and on 24/03/2020.

All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for
detail.

SUMMARY

This is a full planning application seeking permission for the erection of a three-storey
building comprising two 1-bed apartments; one at first floor and one at second floor, with
the ground floor arranged as undercroft car parking for the sole use of the adjacent
‘Shapes’ children’s day nursery.

The site is located 39.0m approx. back from Banstead High Street, to the rear of Prezzo at
no.28 High Street. The site would have a shared access with the nursery via a driveway
between the high street fronting buildings. This site used to be a Royal Mail sorting office
and the old main building is now the children’s day nursery. The proposed new apartment
building would be sited on (and above) the car parking area for the nursery.

The proposed development would not include parking spaces for the new residential
apartments, however, this lack of parking provision is deemed acceptable. The DMP
acknowledges that lower provision may be made for sites within town (or village) centres,
with local services and public car parks and has met with no objections from the County
Highway Authority owing to the to the sustainable location of the site, with adequate public
transport provision in close proximity, and suitable on street parking controls in the
surrounding area. The applicant has supported the application with a transport statement
including a local parking survey, and various other data to demonstrate that the
development is acceptable from a transport perspective.

This application follows an application last year for a larger building with three apartments
which was refused in August 2019 due to its cramped, overdeveloped appearance and the

197



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

impact on the amenity of adjacent residential properties. The current application is
considered to overcome these reasons for refusal.

The site, in a central, urban location with good access to facilities and transport is
considered to be well-placed for this type of residential development. The arrangement
proposed allows for both the nursery (D1 use) and the new residential use to coexist
without compromising the existing car parking for Shapes nursery.

The design of the building would have a reasonably contemporary and functional form,
predominately finished in brick. Its appearance is considered acceptable within the
context of the varied forms and styles of the surrounding buildings, especially given its less
prominent rear of High Street location.

The floor plans, staircase access and windows have been thoughtfully arranged to create
an acceptable amenity relationship for both neighbouring properties and the future
occupants of the proposed apartments.

The proposed development would make effective use of land within the urban area,
contributing to identified housing need and supply, and would particularly meet the greater
need for smaller family housing in the borough.

RECOMMENDATION

Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions.

198



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

Consultations:

Banstead Village Residents Association — “This is a second application for this site. This
latest one has reduced the number from three to two apartments. The space is not large,
there is no outlook and it is still somewhat cramped but an improvement on the previous
application. It is a pity that no provision has been made for on-site parking as laid down in
TAP1c and class C3 of the DMP. As we said before, on-street parking is difficult and such
side roads as are within reach are already occupied with residents’ cars. We note the
comments by the Environmental Officer and would recommend that an investigation for
on-site contamination be carried out.”

Contaminated Land Officer — potential contamination due to historic land uses, informative
on safe working to be added.

Highway Authority — No objection subject to conditions. Site specific comment:

“The development proposes to create 2 new apartments. It is understood that the existing
car parking at the site will be retained for Shapes Day Nursery. Therefore there will be no
car parking provision for the proposed apartments. However, owing to the sustainable
location of the site, with adequate public transport provision in close proximity, and suitable
on street parking controls in the surrounding area the CHA have no objections to this.

It is confirmed in writing that the 4 parking spaces are retained for staff of Shapes Day
Nursery only. The CHA provided initial comments raising concerns about the layout of the
4 vehicular parking spaces. The layout of 'back to back' parking would not typically be
accepted. However, written confirmation has been provided, confirming that the double
parked space will be used solely for the manager of the nursery. The space designated for
the manager is to be occupied from opening to closing of the nursery, minimising the
potential for parking conflict. Any potential parking conflict is unlikely to cause an impact on
the adjoining public highway, as parking and turning would take place on land that is
entirely within the applicants control and as such, the CHA does not raise a concern with
regards to highway safety.

In addition, in line with condition 2 above, the CHA recommend that cycle parking is
provided at ground level, to allow for the storage of electric bikes.”

Representations:

Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 15 January 2020. A site notice was posted
on 7 February 2020. No representations have been received.

Site and Character Appraisal

1.1 The application site formerly comprised part of a Royal Mail sorting office. The
existing sorting office building has been converted to a pre-school day nursery
(planning application ref. 18/02168/F). The old sorting office building appeared to
have previously had two single storey projections beyond the main north gable
elevation. These projections have been demolished and the resultant cleared land
forms the main part of the application site for this proposed apartment building.

1.2  The main part of the site is located 39.0m approx. back from Banstead High Street
to the rear of Prezzo at no.28 High Street. The site would have a shared access

199



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

with the day nursery via a driveway between the high street fronting buildings at
no.28 and no.30.

The character of the area within the high street is predominantly retail, but with
some cafés, restaurants and offices. There are residential units at first floor above
30 to 36 High Street. It appeared at the time of my site visit that renovation works
were underway at Lamborn Place at no.26 High Street. This may include
conversion of the second floor to residential as per planning application ref.
17/01887/PAP30. Briarwood to the southeast of the site comprises 16 sheltered
dwellings. To the west of the application site are car parks serving commercial
buildings. The area is relatively flat throughout with no significant trees in close
proximity to the site.

Added Value

Improvements secured at the pre-application stage: The applicant did seek pre-
application advice following the previously refused planning application for three
flats.

The reasons for refusal on the previous application were:

“1. The proposed apartment building, by virtue of its site coverage, scale and
height, extending tight to the boundaries and neighbouring buildings would
constitute a cramped, overdevelopment of the site which would appear obtrusive
and out of keeping with the character and amenity of the locality...”

“2. The proposed apartment building, by virtue of its proximity to the flats at
Briarwood and its proximity to the potential future flat at the second floor of Lamborn
Place, in conjunction with the proposed building's height and first and second floor
balconies, would have a harmful impact on neighbour amenity in terms of loss of
privacy and overbearing...”

The applicant has taken on board the reasons for refusal and a number of the

suggestions made at pre-application stage. These improvements include but are

not limited to:

- The scale of the building has been reduced (3 flats to 2 flats), bringing the
elevations away form the boundaries of the site.

- Use of various texture and materials rather than solely render, and the
predominant use of masonry.

- Omission of the uncharacteristically shallow pitched roof in favour of a flat roof.

- More attention to allowing for achievable structural depths/floor-to-ceiling
heights.

- Balconies on east and west elevations omitted to improve privacy/overbearing.

- The main outlook of the flats has been shifted northwards to improve impact on
Briarwood.

- The long hallway in the first-floor flat has been reduced.

Improvements secured during the course of the application:

- A statement on the parking arrangements was made by the applicant in
response to the Highways Officer’s initial queries.

200



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

- The professional transport statement from the previous application has been re-
submitted as supporting evidence for the absence of resident parking on this
current application.

- Minor amendments to the application drawings; inclusion of structural framing at
ground floor level; better positioning of car parking spaces, cycle racks and
bins; cross-section drawing showing roof detail and floor to ceiling heights;
minor corrections to labelling.

Further improvements to be secured through conditions or legal agreement:

The following conditions shall be attached to the permission:

- Material samples including staircase details (before development above ground
floor level)

- Highways — parking spaces for nursery (compliance)

- Highways — cycle storage (pre-occupation)

- Highways — Construction transport management (pre-commencement)

- Bin store (before development above ground floor level)

- Side windows obscure-glazing/restricted opening (compliance)

- Building efficiency (pre-occupation)

- Broadband (compliance)

Relevant Planning and Enforcement History

There is a long planning history for the site which mostly relates to the conversion of
existing post office building to the front of the site into a delicatessen, brasserie and
restaurant. However, for the delivery office to the rear, there has been only three
recent planning applications and then the most recent pre-application advice:

15/02474/F - Demolition of existing rear boundary masonry wall and replacement
with a new galvanised steel palisade fence - approved with conditions.

18/02168/F - The proposed application is for a change of use and full planning
permission to create a day nursery (shapes day nursery) within the existing
building, formally a royal mail sorting office. Shapes day nursery have acquired the
site intending to retain the existing building and create a much required local day
nursery to accommodate children 0 to 5 years of age. APPROVED WITH
CONDITIONS.

19/01247/F - Creation of 3 new apartments located at an unutilised site within the
urban setting of Banstead High Street. REFUSED.

Proposal and Design Approach

The application is for a three-storey building comprising two 1-bed residential
apartments. There would be undercroft parking at ground floor level but these 4no.
parking spaces are reserved for the nursery school (as per planning permission
18/02168/F).

The applicant has submitted a design and access statement. A design and access

statement should illustrate the process that has led to the development proposal,
and justify the proposal in a structured way, by demonstrating the steps taken to

201



Planning Committee
29 April 2020

4.3

4.4

5.0

5.1

5.2

Agenda Item 10
Agenda Item: 10
19/02553/F

appraise the context of the proposed development. It expects applicants to follow a
four-stage design process comprising:

Assessment;
Involvement;
Evaluation; and
Design.

Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below:

Assessment

The design statement submitted by the applicant does
demonstrate a level of assessment of the surrounding area, with
focus on making use of redundant, previously developed land.

Involvement

Pre-application advice was sought from the Council. No
community consultation took place.

Evaluation

The design statement demonstrates that the shortcomings of
previous schemes have been considered, with attention given to
the reasons for refusal, case officer report and pre-app advice.
Amendments and refinements of the design have been made.
The statement does not include any evidence of multiple design
options being considered, rather just evidence of amendment to
the original scheme.

Design

The applicant’s design choices have been steered by the pre-
application process.

Further details of the development are as follows:

Site area
Existing use

Proposed use

0.038 hectares (including access road)

D1 use class (parking for pre-school day
nursery)

C3(a) (dwellinghouses — 2 apartments)

Proposed parking spaces No spaces for proposed residential
apartments, 4 spaces retained for
nursery.

DMP parking standard 2 spaces (1 space per unit)

Policy Context

Designation
Urban Area

Reigate and Banstead Core Strateqy

CS1(Sustainable Development)
CS2 (Valued Landscapes and the Natural Environment)
CS4 (Valued Townscapes and Historic Environment)

202




Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

5.3

5.4

6.0

6.1

6.2

CS10
CS11
CS12
CS14

Sustainable Development)
Sustainable Construction)
Infrastructure Delivery)
Housing Needs)

P

Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan

DES1 (Design of New development)
DES4 (Housing mix)

DESS (Delivering high quality homes)
DES8 (Construction Management)

DES9 (Pollution and Contaminated Land)
TAP1 (Access, Parking and Servicing)
CCF1 (Climate Change Mitigation)

INF3 (Electronic communication networks)

Other Material Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Local Distinctiveness Design Guide
Householder Extensions and
Alterations

Other Human Rights Act 1998

Nationally Described Space Standards
Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010

Assessment

The application is for a three-storey building comprising two 1-bed residential
apartments. There would be undercroft parking at ground floor level but these 4no.
parking spaces are reserved for the nursery school (as per planning permission
18/02168/F).

The main issues to consider are:

Principle of development

Design and effect on the character of the area
Effect upon neighbour amenity

Amenity for future occupants

Highways matters

Contaminated land issues

Principle of development

6.3

The application site is within the urban area, right in the centre of Banstead and
hence very conveniently positioned for the high street amenities and local bus
services. It would be close to other residential properties; namely the flats above

203



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

6.4

6.5

high street units and properties off Court Road. Therefore, with good community
facilities and public transport nearby, there is a presumption in favour of sustainable
residential development in this location.

The development would be on land previously in commercial use (the Royal Mail
delivery office), but due to the recent implementation of the planning permission for
the pre-school nursery on the site, the land would be considered to be in community
use. The current application site occupies the area that is designed to be used for
vehicle access and parking for the nursery. The intention of the current application
design is to retain the access and parking for the nursey, albeit partially in the
undercroft beneath the proposed apartments. Therefore, from a policy perspective,
it is not considered that the proposed scheme would result in any significant loss of
land or functionality for the nursery (see Highways matters section below).

The proposed scheme would create two new residential units, and such a
redevelopment would help the Council meet some of the Borough's identified
housing need and furthermore would be welcomed as a contribution to housing
supply. The residential units would be one-bedroom flats which is appropriate in
terms of housing mix for a town centre location. However, the principle of
acceptability in this case rests upon considering the impact of the proposal and
resultant harm and the need to provide additional housing, and its resultant benefit.
The following report sets out the key considerations.

Design and effect on the character of the area

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

The proposed building would be slotted into the space to the north of the nursery
building (in the place of single storey buildings which have been previously
demolished). The elevations of the building now allow space to the closest
boundaries of 1.5m approx., 2.8m to the gable wall of the nursery building and 7.8m
approx. to the east boundary. These offsets to the boundaries/adjacent buildings
and the reduced scale of the building overcome the previous reasons for refusal of
being too cramped and overdeveloped.

The east elevation is set-back relative to the elevation of the nursery building and
the roofline would be lower than the ridge of the nursery building. The height of the
proposed building would be comparable with that of Lamborn Place which sits a
short distance from the northwest corner of the proposed building. As well as
Lamborn Place, there other examples of three storey buildings. There are also a
variety of roof forms and architectural styles in the vicinity (60s/70s flat roofs,
mansard roofs and more traditional steeper pitched roofs) and flat roofs on upper
storeys. Consequently it is not considered that the more simple, contemporary, flat-
roofed form proposed would be uncharacteristic within its varied setting.

Although the composition of the building appears a little awkward, as if it rests on
slender stilts, this is functional to allow the car parking beneath, and the steel
framing at ground floor level would be reasonably well concealed and not easily
visible from the High Street.

The building would be finished largely in brick with areas of feature brickwork, small
rendered panels and grey glazed panels to give relief and interest to the elevations.

204



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

6.10

6.11

Brickwork is appropriate given the predominance of brick in the vicinity and
preferred because it will visually recede and age better than render. Full details of
the materials to be used and the design of the external staircase shall be controlled
by condition.

Finalised details of the refuse storage and collection point shall be controlled by
condition, but it appears that the scheme can accommodate a workable solution.

In summary, the proposed development would be acceptable in terms of its design
and impact upon the character of the wider area, and complies with policy DES1 of
the emerging DMP.

Neighbour Amenity

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

The proposed building would not adversely affect the amenity or functionality of the
nursery as the four parking spaces and turning space would be retained for the sole
use of the nursery (see Highways matters section below).

The rear of no.28 High Street has no windows and the directly adjacent land to the
north is used for vehicle parking and refuse, presumably for Prezzo. Hence, there
would be no adverse effect on the amenity of no.28.

Lamborn Place at no.26 High Street, previously in commercial use, may be in the
process of implementing permitted development approval (17/01887/PAP30) for
residential flats on the second floor. The corners of the two buildings would be
5.4m approx. apart from each other, with a clear gap of 4.3m approx. to the edge of
the stair landing. The closest part of Lamborn Place to the proposed building would
be a living/kitchen/dining room at the second floor served by the existing large
windows which give the room triple aspect (according to the drawings on application
ref. 17/01887/PAP30). Given the proposed building would be sited corner-to-
corner with Lamborn Place, it is not considered that the outlook and light levels to
the potential living space windows at second floor would be harmfully affected. The
bedroom windows in the west elevation of the proposed building would be far
enough from Lamborn Place and at right angles, and so would avoid significant
privacy concerns. The proposed bathroom windows would avoid a direct view but
can be sensibly conditioned to be obscure-glazed/restricted opening. The entrance
for the proposed second floor flat with its stair landing, would allow views across to
the second floor windows at Lamborn Place, however, it is likely that this stair
landing would be mostly used for fleeting access, and given the nature of town
centre homes allowing mutual views from external staircases, this relationship
would not be harmful.

The west elevation of the proposed building would lie directly next to car parks
belonging to the various commercial properties and so there would be no issue in
this area.

To the northeast of the site are the roof terraces of the first floors of the high street
buildings. The nearest first floor properties here (nos.30A and 32A/B) are
residential.  No. 30A has recently implemented planning permission (ref.
19/01155/F) for an extension to create an additional flat. The existing roof terrace

205



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

6.17

6.18

area would be divided to create two outdoor amenity spaces for these flats. |
consider the proposed building is far enough from the rear windows and terraces to
not cause any significant loss of light, however, it is clear that the new building
would give rise to views from windows and stair landing. In the context of the 'back
of high street' location where there is a close relationship between buildings and
where the existing first floor flats already have open terraces which can clearly
overlook one another, it is not considered that the proposed apartments would
harmfully change the amenity circumstances for the existing residential properties
to the rear of the high street.

Flat 17 Briarwood is the closest sheltered accommodation property to the proposed
development. Its front door at ground floor level directly faces the far end of the
existing nursery building. All of the habitable accommodation at flat 17 is at first
floor level. There are three windows serving bedrooms and a single window serving
the kitchen which face onto the application and nursery site. None of these four
windows would be directly aligned with the east elevation of the proposed
apartment building. The distance from the proposed east elevation to the elevation
of Briarwood would be 10.0m approx. The proposed building would not breach the
25 degree line from the closest window at no.17 (as per section 4.4 of the Councils
SPG) and so there would be no significant loss of light. The balconies proposed as
part of the previous application have been removed from the east elevation and
windows would have obscured glazing/restricted opening. Consequently, it is
considered that the proposed building would preserve an acceptable level of
amenity for flat 17 and the other Briarwood flats, and would not be overbearing or
result in a loss of privacy.

In summary, while giving rise to a degree of change to the relationship between
buildings, the proposed scheme would not adversely affect the amenity of
neighbouring properties, and complies with policy DES1.

Amenity for future occupants

6.19

6.20

6.21

Policy DES5 has several requirements to ensure all new residential developments
provide high quality, adaptable accommodation, and provide good living conditions
for future occupants. One of the requirements of policy DESS is that new
accommodation must meet the nationally described internal space standard
(NDSS).

Both flats would be 1-bedroom, 2-person flats and so would need to meet the
minimum NDSS gross internal area of 50 square metres. Both flats have an area of
53sgm and hence comply.

The layouts are sensibly arranged with outlook northwards towards the rear of the
Prezzo building. Although the rear of Prezzo is not a desirable outlook compared to
an ordinary street view, the Prezzo building is low and so views of the sky would be
available, and there would be no direct overlooking into the flats because the rear of
Prezzo is windowless. The main living/kitchen/dining space in the flats would also
benefit from south and east facing windows, and although the east windows would
be obscured, these would still allow good levels of natural light. The bedrooms
would also have two windows; one to the south and one to the west. Therefore, |

206



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

6.22

6.23

6.24

consider that the flats would provide a satisfactory level of light and outlook for
future occupants.

The flats would have built in storage to comply with the NDSS. The floor to ceiling
heights would be 2.3m throughout, and so would also meet the NDSS requirement.
Other than the cycle storage space, the flats would not have outdoor space,
however, this is not considered objectionable for a town/village centre flat with
recreation ground nearby.

It is acknowledged that the proposed building would have a very close relationship
with the pre-school nursery. The nursery use would give rise to a level of noise and
disturbance. Noise may also arise from any future alternative 'D1 use' of the
building. The nursery planning permission has a condition which restricts 'outside
play' to certain times of the day. Viewing the nursery use in the context of the
town/village centre location where it is accepted that various land uses (including
residential) coexist and there is likely to be relatively high levels of noise and
disturbance, | do not consider the environment for future occupants would be
unsatisfactory.

In summary, the proposed scheme is considered to provide adequate amenity for
future occupants and complies with policy DESS5.

Highways Matters

6.25

6.26

The proposed scheme would not provide any car parking for the new apartments.
The cycle storage position has been shown on the application plans. Surrey
County Council Highways (CHA) have recommended three conditions; 1) the
retention of the parking and turning area for the nursery (four spaces as per
application ref. 18/02168/F), 2) implementation of the of cycle storage 3) a
construction transport management plan.

The Highways Officer’s initial comments requested the following information from
the applicant [the applicant’s responses are shown in brackets]:

“ Confirmation that the 4 parking spaces included within this proposal are for the
use of staff from the Shapes Day Nursery only? [4 parking spaces are for Shapes
Day Nursery]

“ Details on how the 4 parking spaces will be retained for Nursery staff only (if this
is the proposal) and not be used by residents of the development? [The residents
will not have access to the parking bays. In the rental agreements in will state that
the flats are without parking. The flats will only ever have a right of way by
pedestrian use. To accommodate both cycling and walking. The land underneath
the flats will be owned by Shapes Day Nursery].

“ A revised parking layout to show 4 parking spaces located side by side. The
proposed plan shows two car parking spaces located one behind the other, which
would result in conflict. [With the experience of our other nurseries, the four spaces
marked as they are work best. This is because the Space that is double parked will
be used solely for the manager of the nursery. This is the only space that is

207



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

6.27

6.28

6.29

designated to the manager. It means the manager’s vehicle will use this space
from opening to closing of the nursery, resulting in no conflict]”

The Highways Officer's final comments (which included the recommended
conditions noted above), were as follows:

“The development proposes to create 2 new apartments. It is understood that the
existing car parking at the site will be retained for Shapes Day Nursery. Therefore
there will be no car parking provision for the proposed apartments. However, owing
tfo the sustainable location of the site, with adequate public transport provision in
close proximity, and suitable on street parking controls in the surrounding area the
CHA have no objections to this.

“It is confirmed in writing that the 4 parking spaces are retained for staff of Shapes
Day Nursery only. The CHA provided initial comments raising concerns about the
layout of the 4 vehicular parking spaces. The layout of 'back to back' parking would
not typically be accepted. However, written confirmation has been provided,
confirming that the double parked space will be used solely for the manager of the
nursery. The space designated for the manager is to be occupied from opening to
closing of the nursery, minimising the potential for parking conflict. Any potential
parking conflict is unlikely to cause an impact on the adjoining public highway, as
parking and turning would take place on land that is entirely within the applicants
control and as such, the CHA does not raise a concern with regards to highway
safety.

“In addition, in line with condition 2 above, the CHA recommend that cycle parking
is provided at ground level, to allow for the storage of electric bikes.”

Policy TAP1 states:

“1. All types of development, across the borough, will be required fto.....

...C. Include car parking and cycle storage for residential and non-residential
development in accordance with adopted local standards (see Annex 4) unless
satisfactory evidence is provided to demonstrate that non-compliance would not
result in unacceptable harm.

Such evidence could include on-street parking surveys, evidence of parking
demand, and/ or further information on accessibility. Development should not result
in unacceptable levels of on-street parking demand in existing or new streets.”
Annexe 4 containing the parking standards would normally require 2 spaces (1
each per 1-bed flat) but also states that a lower amount of parking may be
appropriate in areas within, or adjacent to town centres.

The applicant has submitted a Transport Statement by Connect Consultants (which

was submitted at the time of the previous application). This statement concludes

that the proposed development is acceptable from a transport perspective. Some

of the key conclusions include:

- The site is located near to Banstead High Street and is highly accessible by a
choice of non-car modes including foot, cycle, bus and rail.

- Census data indicates that a high proportion of existing residents living in
central Banstead do not own a car or van, and therefore are likely to make use
of the public transport links.

208



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

6.30

- Car parking survey undertaken (Tuesday 18 September 2018) demonstrated
that there is ample spare capacity, during certain times of the day, on local
roads for visitors of the proposed development.

- The development will be sold as “car-free” and will primarily appeal to residents
who do not own a car and want to live off Banstead High Street, which is within
close proximity to facilities/transport links.

- A TRICS assessment of the number of trips likely to be generated by the
proposed residential apartments has been made and suggests that the proposal
site will experience a negligible increase in trip generation as a result of the
proposed development.

In summary, it is considered that the applicant has provided satisfactory evidence to
demonstrate that this is one such example of those cited within the DMP where
town (village) centre sites may provide parking below standard. The Highways
Officer also reaches this same conclusion. Therefore, with the addition of the
recommended conditions, the proposed development would comply with policies
TAP1 and DESS.

Contaminated Land Issues

6.31

The Council's Contaminated Land Officer has been consulted and made the
following comments:

"I have reviewed this planning application and would like to recommend a
contaminated land informative as per the wording below.

The application site is situated on or in close proximity to land that could be
potentially contaminated by virtue of previous historical uses of the land. As a
result, there is the potential for a degree of ground contamination to be present
beneath part(s) of the site. Groundworkers should be made aware of this so
suitable mitigation measures and personal protective equipment measures (if
required) are put in place and used. Should significant ground contamination be
identified the Local planning Authority should be contacted promptly for further
guidance”

The informative shall be attached to the permission decision notice.

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Plan type Reference Version Date Received
Site Layout Plan 0064-P-101 C 19.12.2019
Location Plan 0064-P-102 C 19.12.2019
Elevation Plan 0064-P-115 F 03.03.2020
Proposed Plans 0064-P-111 F 03.03.2020
Floor Plan 0064-P-112 D 03.03.2020

209



Planning Committee

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item: 10

29 April 2020 19/02553/F
Roof Plan 0064-P-114 D 03.03.2020
Elevation Plan 0064-P-116 F 03.03.2020
Proposed Plans 0064-P-118 A 03.03.2020
Elevation Plan 0064-P-117 F 03.03.2020
Floor Plan 0064-P-113 D 03.03.2020
Floor Plan 0064-P-110 E 03.03.2020
Site Layout Plan 0064-P-103 D 03.03.2020

Reason: To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out in accord
with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning Practice Guidance.

. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

. No development shall take place above ground level until samples of the materials to
be used in the construction of the external surfaces, including fenestration, roof and
staircase, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, and on development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory external appearance is achieved with regard to
Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan policy DES1.

. The existing vehicle parking (and turning) area at the premises (as shown on the
application drawings) shall be permanently retained and maintained for their
designated purposes (for the sole use of the Shapes Day Nursery staff or for vehicle
parking for any subsequent new owner/occupier of the D1 use of the current day
nursery site).

Reason: The above condition is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users, and to
accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking,
access, and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead Local Plan Development
Management Plan September 2019.

. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until space
has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for cycles to be
parked in a covered and secure location. Thereafter the cycle parking area shall be
retained and maintained for its designated purposes.

Reason: The above condition is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users, and to
accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking,
access, and Servicing of the Reigate and Banstead Local Plan Development
Management Plan September 2019.

210



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

6. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management Plan, to
include details of:
(a) parking for venhicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials
(d) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway
(e) on-site turning for construction vehicles (including measures for traffic
management)
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only
the approved details shall be implemented during the construction of the development.

Reason: The above condition is required in order that the development should not
prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other highway users, and to
accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking,
access, and Servicing and DES8 Construction Management of the Reigate and
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019.

7. Prior to the commencement of the development full details (and plans where
appropriate) of the waste collection point, (and pulling distance), shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

All waste storage and the collection point should be of an adequate size to
accommodate the bins and containers required for the dwelling in accordance with the
Council's guidance contained within Making Space for Waste Management in New
Development.

The dwellings shall be provided with the above facilities in accordance with the
approved details prior to occupation.

Reason: To provide adequate waste facilities in the interests of the amenities of the
area and to encourage in accordance with Development Management Plan 2019 policy
DES1.

8. The first and second floor windows in the east elevation and the bathroom windows in
the north elevation of the development hereby permitted shall be glazed with obscured
glass and shall be non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be opened
are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed,
and shall be maintained as such at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not affect the amenity of the
neighbouring property by overlooking with regard to Reigate and Banstead
Development Management Plan 2019 policy DESA1.

9. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until an
Energy and Water Efficiency Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall detail how the development will:
(a) Ensure that the potential water consumption by occupants of each new dwelling

does not exceed 110 litres per person per day.

211



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

(b) Achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the Dwelling Emission Rate (DER)
over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as defined in Part L1A of the 2013 Building
Regulations.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and any

measures specific to an individual dwelling(s) shall be implemented, installed and

operational prior to its occupation.

Reason: To ensure that the development supports the efficient use of resources and
minimises carbon emissions with regard to Policy CS10 of the Reigate & Banstead
Core Strategy 2014 and Policy CCF1 of the Reigate & Banstead Development
Management Plan 2019.

10.The new dwelling hereby approved shall be provided with the necessary infrastructure
to facilitate connection to a high speed broadband. Unless otherwise agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority, this shall include as a minimum:
(a) A broadband connection accessed directly from the nearest exchange or cabinet
(b) Cabling and associated installations which enable easy access for future repair,
replacement or upgrading.

Reason: To ensure that the development promotes access to, and the expansion of, a
high quality electronic communications network in accordance with Policy INF3 of the
Reigate & Banstead Development Management Plan 2019.

INFORMATIVES

1. The application site is situated on or in close proximity to land that could be
potentially contaminated by virtue of previous historic uses of the land. As a result,
there is the potential for a degree of ground contamination to be present beneath
part(s) of the site. Groundworkers should be made aware of this so suitable
mitigation measures and personal protective equipment measures (if required) are
put in place and used. Should significant ground contamination be identified the
Local Planning Authority should be contacted promptly for further guidance.

2. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried from
the site and deposited on or damage the highway from un-cleaned wheels or badly
loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, to recover any
expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway surfaces and
prosecutes persistent offenders (Highways Act 1980 Sections 131, 148, 149).

3. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge developers
for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of vehicles to and from a
site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any excess repairs compared to
normal maintenance costs to the applicant/organisation responsible for the damage.

4. The applicant is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway works
required by the above conditions, the County Highway Authority may require
necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road markings,
highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges, highway surfaces,
surface edge restraints and any other street furniture/equipment.

212



Agenda Item 10

Planning Committee Agenda Item: 10
29 April 2020 19/02553/F

5. Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as an
integral part of new development. Further information is available at
www.firesprinklers.info.

6. It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is
sufficient to meet future demands and that any power balancing technology is in
place if required. Please refer to: http://www.beama.org.uk/resourcelLibrary/beama-
quide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html for guidance and further information on
charging modes and connector types.

7. The applicant is advised that the Borough Council is the street naming and
numbering authority and you will need to apply for addresses.
This can be done by contacting the Address and Gazetteer Officer prior to
construction commencing. You will need to complete the relevant application form
and upload supporting documents such as site and floor layout plans in order that
official street naming and numbering can be allocated as appropriate. If no
application is received the Council has the authority to allocate an address. This
also applies to replacement dwellings.
If you are building a scheme of more than 5 units please also supply a CAD file
(back saved to 2010) of the development based on OS Grid References. Full
details of how to apply for addresses can be found http://www.reigate-
banstead.gov.uk/info/20277/street naming _and _numbering

REASON FOR PERMISSION

The development hereby permitted has been assessed against development plan policies
CS1, CS2, CS4, CS10, CS11, CS12, CS14, DES1, DES4, DES5, DESS8, DES9, TAP1,
CCF1, INF3 and material considerations, including third party representations. It has been
concluded that the development is in accordance with the development plan and there are
no material considerations that justify refusal in the public interest.

Proactive and Positive Statements

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and subsequently
determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of
sustainable development where possible, as set out within the National Planning Policy
Framework

213


http://www.firesprinklers.info/
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20277/street_naming_and_numbering
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20277/street_naming_and_numbering

19/02553/F - Land A4S

enda_lt
cen

oejfnh:eu?:ormer Royal Mail,

Rear Of 28 High Street, Banstead

e Lodge

bé a
> SV
3
»
¥ s\
)
Sub S -
% s
2\ \ & 29 159.7
<
% O
\ N\ : \
@ AS
'o; <
eld Colft a5 QEC
wett
29 50
33‘0 [YA
02— cB Shelter g . o)
»f
o )
=
Car Park :
22 Curzon
House .
riarwood War Mem
9
U %g\a A
> PC
% 'l
>
° A
% ‘0\“\0
% la
% ES ?
% c °
=
. 12
Po
(3]
>
2
'—
L
|
OAD
B 157.6m p AN

Crown Copyright Reserved. Reigate and Banstead Borough Council.
Licence No - 100019405-2018 214

Scale 1:1,250



Agenda Item 10

rrrrr

OTHER Lol wirHIN

215

Fev i) e Tt (Wit Crrmrmests | 1183 308
Prl | FULL PLUBIMG B5E 120
Patx CLENT 5.5 FOR COMMENT iz,
teud | PRE APALITION ESUE [E ]
L Geicription L
==

Weldin Builders Ltd

\

O PROPOSED SITE PLAN

1. -1
_ PLANNING ISSUE _

* INFORMATION OMLY _

Grawing No
0064-P-103 RE¥ D




Agenda Item 10

O PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION IN CONTEXT

SCALE 1:100

.
=

| P T
= Sl —
M _
4 f\
5 S 2
¢ X >
SHAFES DAY NURSERY PROFPQEED FRONT ELEVATION Mmro_”__.u_ww.ﬂ ﬂ_mm_h RESTAURANT
(PREZZO}

FevF | e tn o OfTicer Covmants | C2 10,000

Fae £ | PULL PG 5K kan

Rer D | CLENT ESLE FOR COPOAINT K120

Rer | CLIENT SSE FLOMMENT (09002509

P B | CLEST EXa FOR (T wEMT (AL L]

Bend | PREAPRICATION G5 a3

L Cexrpion L]

T
Weldin Buiders Ltd

b vl
Eanstead High Streat

[T
Propoged Front & Rear
Elevations in Cantet

EBinuciural erosg Beacrg fasslion
doed e aflect pawking

™

CAR PARK & OFFICE
BUILCING IN DISTANCE

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

7 "\ PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION IN CONTEXT

N

SCALE 11100

X

SHAPES DAY NURSERY

PHILIP ROY ARCHITECTURE
phillproyarchelecture, coum

_ PLANNING ISEUE 7

_ INFORMATION ONLY 7

Traveg 0
006d-P-116 REWF

216



Agenda Item 10

I

=)

I
A

05

¥

77\, PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

/

SCALE 1100

|

_E L

Y

O PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:100

MATERLALS KEY

D - Corbelled facing brick fastum

2 - Facing Shock beck

03 - Double Glazed Windows & Doors:
b4 - Entrance Door

05 - White Render Tnzet

QP - Gpague giazing

5P - Glazed Gray Spandrel Pane|

[ P ———— |

/" ™\ PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

\_/

SCALE 11100

O PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

SCALE 1:904}

D | CLEWT SSUE FON COlAENT WAL

Ferd | MRENFPLICATICN TEAM L ALE ]
Rax L tote
THIK

Weidin Guligers Lid

Job e

Barstead High Strest

_ FRE APP ISEUE 4

_ INFORMATION OHLY _
Crmwvng No
00&4-p-115 REVF

217



Agenda Item 10

NEIGHRORING OFFICE BUILDING iN _
DISTANCE/BACKGROUND WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARK

IR (I

|
|
|
N

&/

Cottrartory must verfy o Sovrmers
o BT SeT mEag o,
lpwlrdlauunii

Siriscrral cross bracing iocton,

does ol alfect paniag

N

X

NEIGHBORING OFFICE BUILDING IN DISTANCE
WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARK

FROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

X

RewF | Meveiiad bn Cota Offezs Commesdy

LLERE)

FerE | RULLIMANNNG FSE

[IAEE 1L}

Fex [ | CUENT SSUE FOR COMMENT

E12 008

Ree | CLENT S50 508 COMMENT

Lohekiibi]

N | CLEWT EXUF POR CaiT

LErdal ]

Foh | PREAMLIETEN ELE

LUk L)

L P

Tt
Weldin Buildars Lid

Job Loe
Ganstead High Street

N

SHARED ENTRANCE & LANDSCAPED AREA VT

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATIONS IN CONTEXT

SCALE 1:700

PROFPOSED SIDE ELEVWATION

N/

V—A OFFICE BUILDING IN DISTANCE WITH
ASSOCIATED CAR PARK

[T
Proposed Side Elevations
in Context

PHILIP ROT ARCHITECTURE
philipeayarchitacture.com

7r PLANNING ISSUE 4

_ INFORMATICN ONLY 7

Dewing o

0063-P-117 REVF

218



Agenda Item 10

15mm Ballast
175mm PIR Insulation

150mm Concrete pre cast slab

16mm Plasterboard

PV Panels at 20° sit below roof
parapet

f.
35mm Gyvlon Screed
4mm High Impact mat

150mm Concrete pre dasf slab

15mm Plasterboard

N

7
35mm Gyvion Screed
23mm Insulation

4mm High Impact amum
s

150mm Concrete pre

50mm Rockwool Due Bla

18mm Cement Particle

LT 777

2.3m Clear

2.1m sfo

slab

ard with finish

2.3m Clear

\V/ N

PP 7777777 77777 7 7 77 7 77 77 7 PP PPl o P o 2 7 A

E )_

Window

Height

2.1msfo

s
/a—
Oguign®)

1740mm Standard

UK adult

< 2.1m Clear E|s>l

per standards

1840mm UK Range

Rover height

. RFL Level

. SFL Level

/N

c WIC
/ 5
. &
8 £3
Q Ew>
o o B
‘e XK
-uic
N

s
& %.w.

B
« £
/N

e
S

< 2.1m Claar

I
AN

Initial sation dznoting floor
heights, floor build ups that comphy
with robust detailing, structural
desgn, a00amstic and u-value
requinesmhents and brick caursang.

This 5 /@ demonstrata the scheme
<an be builk o the planning
drwings.

S700mm Vertical brick setting out

vk | L MANMNG ERE 2L Lk )

L] Derrigtion by

Ot
Wekdin Buikders Ltd

o0 e
Bansiead High Streat

iy e
Indicative Sectlon

PHILIP RDY ARCHITECTURE
philiproya rchitecture.com

PROPOSED SECTIONQUTLINED SCHEME
SCALE 1:50

_ PLAMNING ISSUE _

_ INFORMATHON OMLY _

Drawng No
0064-F-118 REV A

219



This page is intentionally left blank

220



	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 19/02591/F Site of the former De Burgh School, Chetwode Road, Tadworth
	5 - 19.02591.F - Former De Burgh School Area F Replan
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	1. The proposal fails to provide an agreed contribution of affordable housing provision within the Borough of Reigate & Banstead and is therefore contrary to policy CS15 of the Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014.
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	Response
	Issue
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	3.1 13/02282/OUT - Outline consent for the erection of 180 dwellings (including 25% affordable housing) on the former De Burgh Playing Field, together with associated parking and landscaping. Approved with conditions 23.09.2016
	3.2 16/02949/F - The construction of 229 dwellings together with associated car and cycle parking, refuse and recycling storage and soft and hard landscaping provision. Approved with Conditions - 23.08.2017
	3.3 Various conditions discharged in accordance with 16/02949/F.
	3.4 16/02949/NMAMD1 – Non-material amendment: A revision of the proposed site plan and tree protection plan to allow the addition of a substation, variation of the parking layout for plot A19 and removal of a hawthorn tree – Approved 19/12/2017.
	3.5 17/02496/F - Temporary use of four units at plots A14 - 92 De Burgh Gardens, A26 - 70 De Burgh Gardens, A27 - 68 De Burgh Gardens & A28 - 66 De Burgh Gardens as a marketing suite and show homes (sui generis) for a period of 3 years and ancillary t...
	3.6 18/02663/S73 - Variation of condition 1 of permission 16/02949/F allow substitute plans showing minor design changes – Granted 25/09/2019
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2      Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
	CS1(Sustainable Development)
	CS2 (Valued Landscapes and Natural Environment),
	CS6 (Allocation of land for development),
	CS10 (Sustainable Development),
	CS11 (Sustainable Construction),
	CS12 (Infrastructure Delivery),
	CS14 (Housing Needs)
	CS15 (Affordable Housing)
	5.3      Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	CONDITIONS
	INFORMATIVES
	REASON FOR PERMISSION

	OS
	19-02591-F combined
	3236_001


	6 19/01488/F Land bounded by Chequers Lane and Hurst Drive, Walton On The Hill, Surrey
	6 - 19.01488.F - Chequers Lane
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION(S)
	In the event that a satisfactorily completed obligation is not received by 29th September 2020 or such longer period as may be agreed, the Head of Places and Planning be authorised to refuse permission for the following reason:
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	Response
	Issue
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2       Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
	CS1(Sustainable Development)
	CS4 (Valued Townscapes and Historic Environment)
	CS10 (Sustainable Development),
	CS11 (Sustainable Construction),
	CS14 (Housing Needs)
	CS15 (Affordable Housing)
	5.3       Development Management Plan 2019
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	CONDITIONS
	INFORMATIVES
	REASON FOR PERMISSION

	All Combined- Scanned

	7 19/02536/F Land to the Rear of 31-41 Shelvers Way, Tadworth, Surrey
	7 - 19.02536.F 31-41 Shelvers Way
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION(S)
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2       Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
	CS1(Sustainable Development)
	CS10 (Sustainable Development),
	5.3       Reigate & Banstead Development Management Plan 2019
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	CONDITIONS
	INFORMATIVES
	REASON FOR PERMISSION

	OS
	19-02536-f combined
	3237_001


	8 20/00162/F Development Site at Former 18 Brighton Road, Salfords, Surrey
	8 - 20.00162.F - 18 Brighton Road
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION(S)
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	Response
	Issue
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2       Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
	CS2 (Valued Landscapes and Natural Environment)
	CS4 (Valued Townscapes and Historic Environment)
	CS5 (Valued People/Economic Development)
	CS10 (Sustainable Development)
	CS11 (Sustainable Construction)
	5.3     Development Management Plan 2019
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	CONDITIONS
	INFORMATIVES
	REASON FOR PERMISSION

	All combined
	OS
	Site 1
	Sheets and Views
	Landsccaping


	Site
	Sheets and Views
	Landsccaping


	Access
	Combined 1
	Sheets and Views
	Site Plan 1-200


	Combined
	Sheets and Views
	Site Plan 1-500


	Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	Eelvations




	9 19/02598/OUT 76, Shelvers Way, Tadworth, KT20 5QF
	9 - 19.02598.OUT - 76 Shelvers Way,Tadworth
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	Response
	Issue
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2      Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
	CS1(Sustainable Development)
	CS10 (Sustainable Development),
	CS11 (Sustainable Construction),
	CS12 (Infrastructure Delivery),
	CS14 (Housing Needs)
	5.3      Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	CONDITIONS
	INFORMATIVES
	REASON FOR PERMISSION

	All combined
	OS
	Site 1
	Sheets and Views
	18 As Prop Site Plan with Tech info


	Site
	Sheets and Views
	08 As Prop Site Plan with Grd Flr Plan


	Block
	Sheets and Views
	07-B As Prop Block Plan


	Street
	Sheets and Views
	17 Street Scene


	Combined
	Sheets and Views
	12 As Prop Floor Plans House Type 1.1


	Elevations 1
	Sheets and Views
	16 As Prop Elevations House Type 3


	Elevations 2
	Sheets and Views
	11 As Prop Elevations House Type 1


	Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	14 As Prop Elevations House Type 2




	10 19/02553/F Land Adjacent to the Former Royal Mail Delivery Office, Rear of 28 High Street, Banstead, Surrey
	10 - 19.02553.F - 28 High Street Banstead rear of
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	6.0 Assessment

	OS
	19-02553-f combined
	19-02553-f combined



